











A Snapshot of CEG in 2020
ST ERIRTEREE

& Head office of the European operations

EUMETS B E R

& Strongest region of operation in Scholz
Group
NI 76T 2k = ) P s SR B A 5 3 [

¢ Operates 80 yards, including joint
ventures, covering South-West, Central
and Eastern Germany
EES0E LR (AFEAE R , BEER
FER AL PES AR ERER
& Covering full scope of collection, sorting
and processing with all types of equipment
including the most advanced post-shredder
material recovery technology
RiRE e (IERAENRERYE RN
Al , MELENKE . D BENRIERT

& 3 yards in operation
2838 L5

& Divestment of most of the operations in Northeast US in
2020
FERIEBIREB D EBNR _E_FF R

& Future focus towards Southwest operations in Phoenix,
Arizona

RERERARFBAEDM RN BRI FAREE XS £

& Business model includes brokerage and yard business

EBRABEEZRTHES
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A Snapshot of CEG in 2020
S BRIRTEREE

& Operates 5 yards covering central and
southern Poland, the most industrialised
and scrap rich areas
EESMETS BERR LECIEERS R
[BE ZE W) &= % B9 R B0 K P

& Operations covering full scope of
collection, sorting and processing with all
types of equipment
REEE, SEDRERELENKE. O
18N R I AR 7S

Technical Equipment and Employee

iR ERES
Shears BJ 414 : 2

. PblANb | ol Employees {5 : >130
R/ L ]
P-4]

& Joint venture with steel mill Voestalpine Group
Hy R REBERER IS ERE

& Operates 12 yards
EIE12ETH

& Market leader for ferrous scrap trading in Austria
HMA EEELEEREENTHEEE

& Sourcing subsidiary in Hungary
IR & F RS F A 5

& Strong track record in project business (e.g. power
plant dismantling)

EEER GINEBRIFR RFER

Technical Equipment and Employee
RiiERES
Shredder ¥ pEH : 2
Shears 714 : &
Employees €& : >290

BABREMERAT —ZE-Z&E&HK 5



A Snapshot of CEG in 2020
ST ERIRTEREE

& 40 yards mainly situated in northern Bohemia and
Prague area
BEF EUNORA KRB IE R AR & F4018 T3
& Consolidation of yard network to further optimise cost
base in 2020
R_E_EBFEG ISR LUE—T B AER

& A very strong market share in ferrous market (covering
both old scrap and new scrap market)
REBEOEE™IS (HEEER RIERTIE) h™i5
IR

& Business model is comparable with Germany with
a dense yard network including a large number of
feeder yards and several processing yards
HRERBENEBER, I IHEOMEE, 2F
ZEMEE SR ZEN IS

Technical Equipment and Employee

EiiRERES
Shredder #7#14 : 2

EE’# fﬂ@ Shears B3 ]14 §S330

Employees /&

& Operates 18 yards
EE18ETI5

& Strong non-ferrous operations, including paper and
plastic recycling

BEZEXT (QEMRRERRIW 342

€ Well equipped with yard network, transportation assets
and processing capabilities to cover all suppliers (industry
and old scrap)
Fofs RN TI54E4 ERRERMNIREUEE 2
HAER (TR K ERER])

& New shear and plastic recycling/granulation in place in
2020

MBI R R R, SN — 2 R F R E I

L/
hnical i d |
;;;ﬁﬁ%c{;};‘éément and Employee M;g I#EE E

Shredder #3514 : 1
Shears Et7)1% : 3
Employees €8 : >320
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A Snapshot of CEG in 2020
S BRIRTEREE

& 31 yards in operation
EIE3ETS

& Joint venture with two experienced local business
partners
B St RE SN EBBHNIIEE R
& Covering the heavily populated and well

industrialised areas in this country
BEZEAORE kSEILECHME
& Market attractive due to strong supply from
industry as well as presence of old scrap
TEERRERERMMERER  mi5ERS| 7
& Proximity to Turkey enables significant scrap
exports
#irt HE > pIRS H O REK

& High non-metals share of sales, including

ROMANIA significant portion of wood, paper and plastics

FEE (BEREAM RERKRER) BVHERG

SR =

Technical Equipment and Employee
RiiiERIES
Shredder #p 4% : 3
Shears B tJ{4% : 6
Employees {28 : >500

& 4 yards in operation
EEAME LS

& Business model with feeder and
production yards

REMEHE N EE TIZREFER

& Divestment of Danish operations in 2021

REEFRN S-S

Technical Equipment and Employee

R ERES

Shears B {4 : 2
Employees {8 : >30
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A Snapshot of CEG in 2020
ST ERIRTEREE

& Owns 15 yards
BEEISETS

& 50% joint venture with a local co-
shareholder
B — S H F IR R AL I HE B 50 % B & HY
e

& Strong presence in northern part of
Mexico, with strong industrial supplier
base
REBEEFIMHNTIZEERRY, B
TR T (e

& Strong supply from industrial accounts
made operations more robust than peers in
North America
REMZIEERNHEDEBREERR
BALEIMNBEIZEE MR

Technical Equipment and Employee

RiimERES

Shredder #3714 : 2
Shears BJ4JJt4 : 2
Employees {8 : >350

& Joint venture with Heng Hup Group
HESEESE

€ Engaged in the dismantling of scrap
motors and other mixed scrap metal
NEBESHRAHEMBERSTEN
i

& Ferrous scraps are sold domestically
and non-ferrous scraps are exported
to China/Hong Kong markets
BEXEEEEREANHE BERE
EBHEOZERER FEHS

¢ Total labour employed: 199
BF% TAREL © 199
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A Snapshot of CEG in 2020
T RIRTEFEE

& Joint venture with Century Metal Recycling

Group
BCentury Metal Recycling Grouppl iz & &
i%

& Engaged in the dismantling of scrap
motors and other mixed scrap metal

REBFEBUMHEMBERSSBHVIFE

& Ferrous and non-ferrous scraps are sold
domestically

BERGHNAECEBIERAHEE

& Total labour employed: 447
RS TAREL 447

& Joint venture with Hidaka Yookoo mvu

Enterprises Co. Limited and Suzuki
Shokai Co. Limited

BiHidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited
BzSuzuki Shokai Co. Limited& 1€

& Engage in the dismantling of scrap
motors and other mixed scrap metal
REBFEERNAEMBEERSSEN
£

& Commenced operation in 2020
ERN"Z_TFRABE

& Ferrous scraps are sold domestically
and non-ferrous scraps are exported to
other Asia markets
BEROEBTEANNRE, BEEES
BHOZEHMEEMNTHS

& Total labour employed: 42
TRF% THEE © 42

BABREMERAT —ZE-EE&HR 9



Financial Highlights

MEIE

For the year ended 31 December

B#E+-_HA=+—HLEE

Increase/
(Decrease)
2020 2019 @,
—EITHF 2T G2
Operating results (HK$M) s (BEBT)
Segment revenue o E U IR
Asia EEDL 1,710.5 2,015.4 (15.1%)
Europe BUM 10,708.9 12,166.8 (12.0%)
North America d63=M 1,086.1 1,410.9 (23.0%)
Inter-segment sales DEPEIHE (137.4) (229.7) (40.2%)
Revenue Uk &= 13,368.1 15,363.4 (13.0%)
Gross profit EF 946.5 877.9 7.8%
Segment (loss)/profit DER (B548) E A
Asia =D (49.6) (126.9) (60.9%)
Europe BUM 218.5 379.7 (42.5%)
North America 6= (62.7) (48.4) 29.5%
Unallocated FAEC (683.5) (91.3) 648.6%
(Loss)/Profit before interest and ISR B R F IE A
g RE ) (#548) /7 (577.3) 113.1 (610.4%)
Finance costs, net SR FER (232.5) (212.6) 9.4%
Loss before income tax FRPTISIRATES 18 (809.8) (99.5) 713.9%
Income tax expense FriSip (54.4) (34.3) 58.6%
Loss for the year FAEE (864.2) (133.8) 545.9%
Financial position (HK$M) MR (BEEET)
Cash generated from operations KEMPIRE 953.7 803.6 18.7%
Cash and pledged bank deposits RE & EIRRIET
LEZ 1,036.5 976.5 6.1%
Total assets BEMRE 9,872.9 10,190.0 (3.1%)
Equity attributable to RAERREEE D
shareholders of the Company 4,477.6 4,941.3 (9.4%)
Per share data (HK$) SREN GBx)
Loss per share attributable to PN/ S
shareholders of the Company =REEE (0.53) (0.08) 562.5%
Shareholders’ funds per share EBRKREES 2.79 3.08 (9.4%)
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Financial Highlights
HBITE

For the year ended 31 December

#E+_HA=+—HLEE

Increase/
(Decrease)
2020 2019 @,
—ECRH —EBE—hE CRiZL)
Key ratios (%) T EHFEEEE(%)
Gross profit margin ESTIES 7.1 5.7 1.4%
Net profit margin’ fnF) = (6.3) (0.8) (5.5%)
EBIT/Revenue A B AR IERD
wmAL W (4.3) 0.7 (5.0%)
Return on shareholders’ funds? B2 R & £ [0 3R %2 (18.9) (2.6) (16.3%)

Revenue in Last 5 Years

BE R F U

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Asia Z5 ™ Europe BUM
W North America I3

HK$'M
BEET
25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

Gross Profit and Gross Profit
Margin in Last 5 Years?
BELFENK

EFF

HK$'M
BEET

2,000 12%

9.7%

1,600
9%

1,200

6%
800

3%
400

o

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Gross Profit EF
—— Gross Profit Margin EF %

Net profit margin is calculated as profit attributable to shareholders of the Company L

as a percentage of revenue

Return on shareholders’ fund is calculated based on the profit attributable to 2
shareholders of the Company as a percentage of average shareholders’ funds

These figures illustrate the impact after the adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue and HKFRS g

16 Lease for comparison purpose only.

Net Profit (Loss) and Net Profit
(Loss) Margin in Last 5 Years
BEREFEN BB K
Fimd (858) X

HKS'M
BEHET
600 40%
23% 1.9%
o 20%
0.0%
200
2.0%
g -40%
(200) -6.0%
@0) -8.0%
-100%
(600)
-12.0%
€L 13.8% -14.0%
- N 0
(1,000 -16.0%

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Net Profit/(Loss) sBiF],/ (5548)
—— Net Profit/(Loss) Margin 5%5F],/ (§518) =

MR R RBE AR B RREGEF GRS E D
EEEtE

IR E & [0 3R X B AR5 A A B IR IR FE A A
HRREESHNE DL E

ZEUTFTETRNE BYBREEN S 155K KRS
REBMBREENF1RBERZE EH
oot

ERRFERRRAR —EBEZFEFER
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

TS

The year 2020 was marked by the unprecedented health and
safety crisis resulting from the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
(“COVID-19") pandemic. As the crisis unfolded, our first priority
has been, and will continue to be, the safety of our employees, our
business partners and the communities in which we operate. As the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, | am proud of the management
team’s response to swiftly ensure a safe working environment for
our employees while keeping our business operations running. The
management teams and employees in our more than 250 sites across
the globe implemented the necessary measures to reduce costs,
preserve cash and ensure liquidity while being faced with lockdowns
and industrial shutdown. Safe operations have been ensured via an
increased utilisation of various kinds of protective gear combined with
social distancing.

Business operations in Asia were hit hardest in the first quarter when
a country-wide lockdown was imposed in China and which brought
our operations to a standstill from late January onwards. We resumed
operations when lockdowns in China were gradually lifted in April
2020. Following the resumption of industrial activity in the second
quarter, the Chinese economy was quick to resume growth leading to
an overall positive economic development.

Our operations in Europe and North America had a strong start into the
year 2020 resulting in first quarter results outperforming those in the
same period in 2019. As the pandemic spread across the globe, other
countries also adopted various lockdown measures which impacted
our operations in Europe and North America. As recycling and waste
management are considered essential industries, our operations in
Europe and the United States (“US" or “"USA") were allowed to
continue operations despite the lockdowns. However, many of our
customers and suppliers were affected. During the second quarter of
2020, inflow volume dropped approximately up to 50% during the
total lockdowns in Europe and US.

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

MEEMRFEEEE (TCOVID-191) 5IEEAAT
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woBLEHINR HMANBEAF —EHR (K
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

As the lockdowns were lifted, governments adopted various monetary,
fiscal, and administrative measures to jumpstart their economies. The
stimulus packages rolled out in China, Europe and North America
benefit our short-term and long-term business development as they also
include significant investments in infrastructure and transportation with
an emphasis on sustainability and green development. We already see
this translating into greater demand for ferrous and non-ferrous metal
scrap leading to a strong business recovery beginning in September
2020. After a very strong fourth quarter 2020, we see that momentum
going into 2021.

Most importantly, China resumed the imports of non-ferrous metal
scrap beginning 1 November 2020. Import restrictions imposed in 2018
have been detrimental to our Chinese operations for the last two years.
The new regulations provide clarity and a framework to resume imports
to the world’s biggest non-ferrous market — China. The new import
standards require recycled aluminium, recycled copper, and recycled
brass to meet certain quality requirements which we can ensure in our
Southeast Asian operations as well as our extensive yard networks in
Europe and US to provide the required recycled metal qualities for the
Chinese market.

Operationally, the second half of 2020 performed better than the
same period in 2019. As we strive to improve business efficiency, the
management team has conducted a thorough portfolio review leading
to various optimisation initiatives. While these initiatives included
cost savings and tapping synergies, it also involved restructuring and
disposal of certain non-performing assets. The restructuring efforts
helped to free up resources to target growth opportunities. The disposal
and restructuring initiatives lead to one-off non-cash impairments
amounting to HK$519.2 million. Including the impairments, the Group
reported a net loss attributable to shareholders of HK$848.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: net loss attributable to
shareholders of HK$128.7 million).

T8

PEE A TR AV AR PR B EIBUFRELT &1
B MR AT BUIE I AR R R B R E AR o
FE P B ~ BOM A0 JE S OM ¥ HR BB R B TS 28
HERTHRXBERNERRENAER
B LHEEARFEGBIRFRER  BHH
FMRERNRAEGERA - HMEEE
BEMFRREETRBHSHBERENS
BEBNRR ERMANEFR_F_=F
hARBRHER B _BFFENFERE
B E—FEFFEN T —F-

REENE FEBE-_ZE_ZFF+—F—H
ERERETBEREEEEN It —
T-N\EFETHNEORNEBEIMEE K
MNPEEBEET AAEE - HRERME
TEARMAESR UREEODZERMAZEA
NEBEBEHE—TE - MENREZRE
£ BERRRBERFEINETHEE
Ko AR U FERIPIR R LIS MY E miE
AFER BT A RAEBMAE
EHEA L SREEATETERBESENE
EEREe

EEIH —_ETETEENRER-S
—hERPAEE AERRNNESEBEX
# TEETHENERESES  MEY
ZIEBCER 2SR EENE R RS
KipEME My REBEANEEETIAIRE
E BHETEENNERERT H ML E#

o BE KRB EN X EIREHE
= ,\519 2EB BT ot ARER  AEBEE

—ECEFE+_A=+—HIEEHRER
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

TR

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s tonnage and revenue for the year declined by 9.7% and
13.0%, respectively, compared to 2019. The drop is largely attributed to
the decline in activities during the total lockdown period in the second
quarter of 2020 and the subsequent periods before rebounding in
September 2020.

Gross profit for the year rose 7.8% compared to 2019, with gross
profit margin increasing from 5.7% in 2019 to 7.1% in 2020. The
improvement in margins is largely attributed to focus on strict margin
management.

While operations in Europe were hit hard by the lockdowns in the
second quarter of 2020, a strong rebound in the second half of 2020
resulted in profitable European operations in 2020 excluding the one-
off non-cash impairments. This strong rebound is attributable in part to
the strong recovery in the construction and automotive sector.

In North America, where our operations are primarily based in the US,
revenue and tonnage dropped by 23.0% and 16.6%, respectively, and
reported a segment loss of HK$62.7 million. Operationally, US was the
hardest hit region from the pandemic, if measured in terms of tonnage
and revenue decline by percentage. The Group expects the exiting of
the loss-making Northeast US region to improve the bottom line of the
North America operation in the future.

Our Asian operations, including Greater China, were also affected by
the pandemic. Operations in India and Malaysia were closed during
the entire second quarter of 2020 before gradually resuming operation
in June 2020. In Thailand, lockdown measures and travel restrictions
allowed only for a slow start in July 2020 before skilled supervisors
and personnel were able to travel from China to Thailand to ramp up
operations from February 2021 onwards.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

In Greater China, the tough measures at the onset of the pandemic
helped mainland China to emerge out of the pandemic lockdown faster
than other countries. The pickup in demand from China subsequently
lifted the profitability of the Chinese operations. The domestic ferrous
scrap business in mainland China continued to grow. As a whole,
revenue in Asia has dropped 15.1% despite the tonnage sold increased
by 9.7% comparing to 2019. Gross profit for the year was HK$48.9
million, a remarkable turnaround from a gross loss of HK$83.0 million
compared to 2019.

Operationally, we adopted various cost-cutting measures to help the
Group become leaner and more efficient. During the lockdowns, while
the fixed costs were largely unavoidable, we focused on managing
variable cost. The initial lockdowns in the second quarter of 2020
caught most people unprepared. It also caused unforeseen issues such
as delays at ports which affected normal container shipments. We see
that returning to pre-pandemic level as the operators adapt to the new
normal.

Towards the end of 2020, with China moving out of the pandemic
faster than other countries, it is also exporting more compared
to imports. Meanwhile, Europe and US were at different levels of
managing the pandemic in their countries. This caused a disruption
in supply chains and shipping lines run short on empty containers for
China. A spike in freight rates followed. We see the situation easing
gradually as supply chains across the globe stabilise over time. We were
mostly able to pass this increase in freight cost to customer in China in

need of the supplies.

TR
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UEEEEEERBENIRE R R
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

TR e

PROSPECT

The various expansionary monetary policies combined with increased
infrastructure investments have an effect on inflation expectations and
commodities prices. We foresee commodities likely to move into the
upswing cycle. Stricter environmental requirements are also leading to a
higher utilisation of metal scrap.

In 2020, the Chinese government has announced its target to reach
carbon neutrality by 2060 and reaching a carbon dioxide emissions
peak in 2030. This goal translates into the Chinese government’s
requirement for the steel industry, which accounts for more than half
of global steel production and consumption, to implement measures in
the coming five years to reach a carbon dioxide emissions peak already
in 2025. As one of the requirements, the ratio of recycled ferrous scrap
in the production of steel in China has to increase to 30% by 2025
leading to an annual demand increase for recycled ferrous scrap of
more than 100 million tons to more than 300 million tons per year.

Similar measures are being required from non-ferrous metal producers
in China. Since the production of aluminium based on recycled scrap
material requires approximately 95% less energy, producers in China
have an increased demand for aluminium scrap. As part of our growth
strategy in China, we entered into a joint venture with a unit of China
Honggiao Group Limited (“Honggiao”) to jointly develop a recycling
industrial park project in Binzhou City, Shandong Province, China.
Combined Phase | and Il is envisaged to process up to 100,000 ELVs and
500,000 tonnes of aluminium per annum. As part of Phase Il, the Group
is preparing a feasibility study for the recycling of 50,000 electric vehicle
lithium batteries in Binzhou. As design, development and construction
are already underway, we expect first pour of liquid aluminium by end
of 2021, and ELV processing line going live by mid-2022.

The European Commission’s 2020 Circular Economy Action Plan, which
outlines policy solutions that would create compelling incentives for
aluminium recycling, had and will have positive implications for our
extensive business in the region and serves as important milestone for
the continent's transition to a climate-neutral and waste-free economy.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

PROSPECT (continued)

Our operations in Malaysia, Thailand and India are gradually ramping
up. Through our wide network, we are able to source the material to
feed the processing. We leverage on our local partners for domestic
ferrous sales, while exporting recycled copper scrap to China with our
in-depth understanding of the Chinese market. The focus for these
operations in 2021 is to increase productivity and expand production
level.

In the regions where we operate, we see effects from the strong
industrial rebound on both ferrous and non-ferrous metals. The
resumption of import of recycled non-ferrous metals into China
beginning late last year is also positive for our business. We see this
volume continuing to grow in 2021 as demand remains strong in the
Chinese market.

We are cautiously optimistic on the future as the global community is
adapting to the new normal. The vaccination roll out is also gathering
pace, and this improves the prospects of getting the pandemic under
control in the foreseeable future.

Last but not least, | would like to extend my heart-felt gratitude to
the members of the board of directors of the Company and all our
employees around the world for their loyalty, efforts, professionalism,
and valuable contributions, and also to our customers and partners for
their priceless support and trust. Keep safe and stay healthy.

Rafael Heinrich Suchan
Chief Executive Officer
1TIBAE &

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
B8 —2-—F=A=+—8
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREmR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group sold 4.3 million tonnes of recycled products in 2020, a 9.7%
decrease comparing to 4.8 million tonnes sold in 2019. Revenue for the
year was HK$13,368.1 million, a decrease of approximately 13.0% as
compared to HK$15,363.4 million last year.

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused significant impact to the up- and
downstream industries in all the countries where the Group operates,
as such, the Group's core recycling business has also been inevitably
affected, particularly in the first half of 2020. Thanks to the increasing
demand for metal across the globe, an ongoing recovery in the
automotive sector, increasing government spending on infrastructure
programs to restart economies, combined with newly realised business
opportunities, the Group’s tonnage volume of recycled metal has
improved over the second half of 2020, and also an improvement over
the same period in 2019.

B 7% [0l B8

g

KREBR _ZE_TFEHBEIIEEMEE
YER BR_S-NENHES48E BN N
9.7% c FARUWFHA13,368. 1HE BT BE
££15,363. 48 BB TR/ 4913.0%

COVID- 19 B AR E B ERRENMMABER
METHEXEETEARE FIb &%
EWZ OO ER AR BT 2
LTERZZZZF LHF-ZEREIREE
BB RAENER ABETEREER B
BB BAR I B9 B B 5% e 51 2 B BUS X 38
M NMEFERNER XEBNBESE
HER _Z_EFETHFEMNES BT
E—NEFEREATBRE-

2020 2019
ZEIEE “E-hE
As a Asa
percentage of percentage of
total segment total segment
HK$M revenue HK$M revenue
o R EKE 3 Epax= 16
BEAET BENFAL BEAT BENEDL
Europe EUM 10,708.9 79.3% 12,166.8 78.0%
North America SISl 1,086.1 8.0% 1,410.9 9.1%
Asia M 1,710.5 12.7% 2,015.4 12.9%
Total segment revenue DEB AR AR 13,505.5 100.0% 15,593.1 100%
Inter-segment sales DEREHE (137.4) (229.7)
Revenue Wz 13,368.1 15,3634
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREARR 2T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gross Profit/Margin

Despite of the drop in tonnage sold and revenue in 2020 as compared
to 2019, gross profit for year was HK$946.5 million, an increase
of 7.8% compared to the previous financial year and the gross
profit margin was 7.1% (2019: 5.7%) due to margin management.
Interruptions to the supply chains during the lockdowns in the first half
of 2020 and depletion of inventories did drive demand, as well as scrap
prices, up in the second half of 2020 as businesses recover.

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses were HK$1,138.8 million, an increase of
11.5% over the previous financial year. The increase is in part due to
one-time effects. Total operating expenses as a percentage of revenue
increased from 6.6% to 8.5%. Various cost cutting measures have been
adopted to make our operations leaner, which lead to higher efficiency
from 2021 awards.

BA 73l (48)

EHEFE
BE_Z_ZTENHEERNGR_ZE—NEF
B BAREEBIREFNM6SEEET B
B HEEENT.8%  EMRAET A% (Z
T—AE57%)  TSHERENEEERN-
BEERER —E T4 Y EHIMEAH
R REE RS T 5%
FRFHERERUERMBED LR

KEER

REBRELER,1388@ 8B BE—/
HEEBRI.5% BREADBHAR—RIE
RE - IS B RSB DL H6.6%
IEINZES.5% o I 2RI L TE A A B R 1
M UEEEEMBEE EME_F_—F
ERE 7K

2020 2019

k- et 33 “2-NE
As a Asa
percentage of percentage of
HK$M revenue HK$M revenue
BEAT (HRENEAL BEAT (haEnast
Distribution and selling expenses DIERHERS 54.0 0.4% 51.5 03%
Administrative expenses TBEEY 1,084.8 8.1% 970.1 6.3%
Total st 1,138.8 8.5% 1,021.6 6.6%

Loss Attributable to Shareholders and Loss Per Share

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020 was HK$848.1 million, as compared to a loss of
HK$128.7 million in the last financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Loss Attributable to Shareholders and Loss Per Share
(continued)

The increased losses mainly attributable to the one-off non-cash
impairment losses of HK$519.2 million recorded for the year ended 31
December 2020. As the Group strived to improve business efficiency,
it has conducted a thorough portfolio review, leading to various
optimisation initiatives. While these initiatives included cost savings
and tapping synergies, it also involved restructuring and disposal of
certain non-performing assets as the Group aims to free up resources to
target growth opportunities. These restructuring and disposal initiatives
included disposing our loss making operations in Northeastern US and
Denmark, and restructuring of certain Asia businesses, leading to the
one-off non-cash impairment losses.

Basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
HK$0.53 as compared to loss per share of HK$0.08 in the previous
financial year.

Analysis of Cash Flow from Operations

The Group's cash generated from operations for the year was HK$953.7
million, an increase of 18.7% compared to last year as operating profit
decreased. The Group has been carefully managing the working capital
in response to the uncertainties in the market conditions due to the
pandemic.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Shareholders’ funds as at 31 December 2020 were HK$4,477.6 million,
a decline of 9.4% from 31 December 2019, and included foreign
exchange gains from the appreciation of foreign currencies, namely
Euro and Renminbi, against Hong Kong dollar over the current year.
Shareholders’ funds per share dropped slightly from HK$3.08 as at 31
December 2019 to HK$2.79 as at 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREARR 2T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

The Group's financial resources remain steady. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had cash, various bank balances and pledged bank
deposits amounting to HK$1,036.5 million (2019: HK$976.5 million),
used mainly for repayment of external borrowings and working capital
needs for expansion of business operations.

The current ratio improved from 1.01 as at 31 December 2019 to 1.03
as at 31 December 2020. Certain long-term borrowings were classified
as current liabilities as they will be maturing within the next twelve
months. Management is in active discussions with lenders and potential
lenders to refinance the maturing borrowings.

Total external borrowings as at 31 December 2020 were HK$2,298.4
million (2019: HK$2,795.4 million).
utilised for the purchase of mixed recycle metal and working capital,

Such borrowings were mainly

and denominated in Euro, US Dollar and Renminbi. Approximately
HK$1,928.2 million (2019: approximately HK$2,102.8 million) of
borrowings are at fixed interest rates.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was 23.3%
(2019: 27.4%) which is calculated based on the total borrowings
divided by our total assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Working Capital Change

Inventories as at 31 December 2020 were HK$1,169.3 million (2019:
HK$1,495.9 million). The inventory turnover days for the financial year
was 39 days as compared to 45 days for 2019 as business activities
increased towards the end of year.

EEEA R
A5l eE (48)
BEASRT
W_F-_SE+_A=+-0 HHD

1,693 & BT (T —NF 1495988
BT cAMBEENEFEEREH#A39K

—NEAHLSEK  THHRERFTHNE
[ESSEI

Provision for inventories as at 31 December 2020 were HK$14.0 million, RI-ZZEZZHF+Z ﬁ +—B > EFE&E
as compared to the provisions of HK$35.9 million as at 31 December #14.0B&E BT MR _Z—AF+_8
2019. :+—EE@$§§1%E‘J2%35.9§%%750
2020 2019

All figures are in HK$M unless stated MREARBAN FRESREUEEET

otherwise £
Inventories =8 1,169.3 1,495.9
Average inventories as a percentage of THEEE MK

revenue 10.0% 11.7%
Turnover days BELOH 39 daysk 45 daysk
Net trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2020 were B REERWFRIER_-_ZE—NFE+Z

HK$1,302.0 million, increased from HK$957.3 million as at 31
December 2019. Debtor turnover days for the financial year increased
from 28 days to 31 days compared with the last financial year. Strong
volumes and sales were noted towards the end of 2020 as businesses
recover strongly as well as favourable commodity prices.

H = EE@9573E%%731‘71D1_?_
TE+"HA=+—H1,302.088 8 &
L —WBUEEARLL » A B U S B9 FE WL BR R
BEHHN28KRIEMEIIR N T _ZF
B BEEXEAMERRENNATERE
1o HEERIHERE 2 RTILREE -

2020 2019
ZEIEE -
All figures are in HK$M unless stated FR5 AR
otherwise Fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁuﬁ%%ﬁ%‘%ﬁ\
Trade and bills receivables, net FE SRR 1,302.0 957.3
Average receivables as a percentage of 39 FE U RN IE A U 2 Eﬁl:l:
revenue 8.5% 7.6%
Turnover days BEHE 31 daysk 28 daysk
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREARR 2T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Working Capital Change (continued)

Trade and bills payables as at 31 December 2020 were HK$1,377.2
million (2019: HK$639.3 million). Creditor turnover days for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were 30 days (2019: 21 days).

BA 73l (48)

EEEEEE (@

BEREEENRER _S_TE+_H
=t+—HA1377288 81t (CE—hN&F:
639.3EE BT - HE_ZE_ZTHF+_4
= +—HIEFEENEMEZFEEHHA30K
(CEBE—HE21K)

2020 2019

—EEF —E—hEF

All figures are in HK$M unless stated &S AR
otherwise FrEEBEMBERATRT

Trade and bills payables B 5 MBI 1,377.2 639.3
Turnover days BEEBH 30 daysX 21 daysk
Treasury Policies BB SR
The Group's treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact of AEBMNIMBEEREEFEREEIRIKE
fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates  EBPTSRAIE mERRIMEER KEZE -

arising from the Group’s global operations. The Group principally uses
future contracts to hedge the commodity risks, and forward foreign
exchange contracts to hedge the foreign exchange risks in the ordinary
course of business. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group invested HK$329.8
million (2019: HK$733.2 million) in the purchase of tangible assets
including land, buildings, plant, machinery and equipment, leasehold
improvements, office equipment for improving production efficiency.
These capital expenditures were financed through internal resources
and lease arrangements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Operational Performance

The Group continued to operate in our long established markets
and expanded into new markets in South/Southeast Asia. Through
the geographic diversification, we are in a good position to mitigate
the risks of depending overly on a single market. We are among the
processing and technology leaders in ferrous and non-ferrous metal
recycling worldwide, and own many advanced processing technologies
in scrap metal shredding and post-shredding processing.

Europe

Our Europe segment provides all steps in recycling mixed metal scraps
and is equipped with one-stop shop services for collecting, gathering,
sorting, processing and trading.

Our scrap metal services include cleaning, sorting, shearing, shredding,
baling, crushing, blending and briquetting. In post shredding
technologies, we are able to achieve approximately 97% recovery rate
for ELV, ranking as a world leader (95% recycling rate is the existing
recovery target under the European Union directive).

The Europe segment sold 3.68 million tonnes of recycled products for
the year ended 31 December 2020, a drop of 10.0% compared to
last year of 4.09 million tonnes. Segment revenue was HK$10,708.9
million, decreased by 12.0% against 2019. Steel producers have been
hit by a general freeze in steel consumption, shutdowns and disrupted
supply chains during the lockdown periods. Crude steel production in
2020 dropped by around 12% as compared to 2019. With automotive
manufacturing and steel mill production capacity recovering from late
August 2020 onwards, scrap flows have begun to ease up in the second
half of the year, driving our sales rebound in the latter half of the year.

Scrap prices remained at a low level in the first half of 2020 but have
been rising in the second half of this year as the production sector
restarted. Global infrastructure spending have further driven the scrap
price higher. Gross profit for the year reached HK$835.4 million, a
decrease of 4.7% compared with last year due to the reduced volume.
Gross profit margin for the year has increased from 7.2% in 2019 to
7.8% in the current year due to better margin management, product
mix and rising prices towards year end.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREARR 2T

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Europe (continued)

Segment profit for the year was HK$218.5 million (2019: HK$379.7
million) as impacted by lower sales volume during the lockdown
periods. Intensive cost cutting measures, including temporary work
reduction and people optimisation, were implemented also preserving
liquidity during the turbulent times. Apart from margin control, several
business improvement initiatives have been initiated, including yard
network reorganisations and restructuring plans at certain locations.

North America

The North America segment possesses extensive recycling process
know-how in all relevant process steps from collection, sorting,
processing to trading of materials. It operates state-of-the-art shredder
technology and has extensive post-shredding technologies in place for
recovery optimisation.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the North America segment
sold 0.37 million tonnes, as compared to 0.45 million tonnes last year.
Segment revenue was HK$1,086.1 million, a decline of 23.0% against
last year, as our operations in the US was the region hardest hit from
the pandemic. Similar to Europe, the pandemic and the subsequent
lockdown measures have continued to impede the scrap flows in North
America. Demand recovered as most electric arc furnace production
capacity has restarted, partly recovering the loss of sales and volume
from the first half of the year.

Segment gross profit for the year was HK$79.0 million (2019:
HK$103.2 million) as volume dropped but gross profit margin remained
constant at 7.3% as compared to 2019, as the global scrap prices have
been increasing towards the end of 2020.

While intensive cost cutting and people optimising measures were also
implemented to our North America operation to mitigate the impact
brought about by the pandemic, the low sales tonnage has inevitably
increased the segment loss from HK$48.4 million in 2019 to HK$62.7
million this year. To focus on growth opportunities and better utilisation
of resources, the Group is in the process of divesting the loss-making
business in the US Northeast region and expects the profitability of the
North America operation will improve in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Asia

Our Asia operation focuses on recycling of mixed metal, in particular
e-motor dismantling, waste electrical and electronic equipment
("WEEE") and waste oil. Our major production facilities in Asia include
China (Hong Kong, Taizhou and Yantai), Malaysia, India, and expanded
into Thailand in the current year.

The sales tonnage for the Asia segment increased by approximately
9.7% from 0.23 million tonnes in 2019 to 0.25 million tonnes in the
current year. Our Asian businesses were also affected by complete
lockdowns firstly in China and then in South/Southeast Asia, but a
growing domestic scrap steel business in China has compensated for
the lost tonnage during lockdowns. Sales tonnage increased with more
ferrous scraps sold in Asia in the current year, but segment revenue for
the year was HK$1,710.5 million, a drop of 15.1% from HK$2,015.4
million as compared to 2019, due to changes in the sales mix.

The Asia scrap prices followed the global upward trend as demand
boosted from government measures are in place to revive the economy.
Segment gross profit and gross profit margin for the year was HK$48.9
million and 2.9%,
HK$83.0 million and gross loss margin of 4.1% in 2019. Hence, Asia’s
segment loss has narrowed from HK$126.9 million in 2019 to HK$49.6
million in 2020.

respectively, a turnaround from a gross loss of

As the Chinese market resumes the import of non-ferrous scraps with
the lift of the import restrictions imposed by the Chinese government,
and the stimulus plans lay down by the Chinese government in
promoting investments and infrastructure, the performance of the Asia
segment will recover in the near future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREARR 2T

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged certain plants and
buildings, land use rights, inventories, trade receivables and bank
deposits with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$4,337.0
million (31 December 2019: HK$3,807.4 million) to secure borrowings.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment and additions
in construction in progress which are contracted for but not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements and amounted to HK$16.5
million (31 December 2019: HK$128.9 million).

As at the date of this report, save as disclosed below, the board of
directors of the Company (“Board”) is not aware of any material
contingent liabilities.

The Group has provided financial guarantees to a related party and
certain joint ventures of HK$9.5 million (31 December 2019: HK$1.2
million and HK$38.0 million (31 December 2019: HK$35.3 million),
respectively. As the risk of default is very remote and there is no history
of default, no financial guarantee liability was recognised.

A writ of summons was issued by Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”),
as plaintiff, on 21 December 2015 in the High Court of Hong Kong
(High Court Action No. 3040 of 2015, “HCA 3040/2015"), followed
by an amended writ on 5 December 2016, against the Company and
Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) as defendants for a sum of HK$57.8
million together with interest and costs. The claim relates to an alleged
nonpayment of a portion of the loans advanced by Delco Asia Company
Limited (“Delco Asia”) to subsidiaries of the Company in accordance
with the terms of a shareholders loan assignment dated 24 June 2010
between, amongst others, Delco Asia and the Company. The Company
filed its defence on 23 September 2016. An amended writ of summons
was filed by Delco on 5 December 2016, adding Mr. Fang as a
defendant to the proceedings. The Company filed its amended defence
on 13 December 2016 and the Plaintiff filed its amended reply to the
Company's defence on 21 December 2016. The case is still in progress,
with the parties filling amended pleadings and evidence, and preparing
for trial.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Each of Mr. Fang, a former director of the Company, and HWH Holdings
Limited ("HWH"), undertook to the Company to indemnify and hold
harmless on demand (on an after-tax basis) the Company against
all losses arising out of, inter alia, HCA 3040/2015 in accordance
with the terms of a letter of indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH
in favour of the Company on 17 December 2015. Such indemnity
was previously secured by a sum, including the amount of HK$57.8
million in an escrow account set up by HWH, and is now subject to a
Mareva injunction granted by the Court on 30 October 2019 until the
determination of, inter alia, HCA3040/2015 or further order of the
Court. As such, the Board does not consider HCA 3040/2015 to be a
claim of material importance.

A writ of summons was issued by Delco as plaintiff on 10 November
2016 in the High Court of Hong Kong (High Court Action No. 2939 of
2016, "HCA 2939/2016") against the Company as the 1st defendant,
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the 2nd defendant, HWH as the 3rd defendant, and Mr.
Fang as the 4th defendant. So far as the Company and its subsidiaries
are concerned, Delco claimed against the Company for damages for
an alleged breach of a letter of undertaking dated 3 March 2015 in
relation to a convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed
for by Delco on 1 March 2012. Delco further claimed against CTHK for
a sum of US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK
on or around 16 April 2009. Delco further claims interests, costs and
further or other relief. The Company and CTHK filed their defence on
24 March 2017 and the plaintiff filed its reply to the Company and
CTHK'’s defence on 20 June 2017. The case is still in progress, with the
parties filling amended pleadings and evidence, and preparing for trial.

Whilst the Board does not consider HCA 2939/2016 to be a claim
of material importance for the reason set out above, details of HCA
2939/2016 are disclosed herein for the sake of completeness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEREARR 2T

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market risks
such as commodity price risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group'’s risk management strategy is to
mitigate the adverse effects of these risks on its financial performance.

Since March 2018, the Group adopted a commodity price risk hedging
policy which the Board believes is suitable for the current operating
conditions. The commodity price risk hedging policy is recently
modified in February 2021 and is available on the Company’s website,
www.chihogroup.com.

As part of its foreign currency hedging strategy, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s foreign currency borrowings in view of the volatile
exchange rate of Euro, Renminbi and other relevant currencies to US
Dollar and considers various measures to minimise foreign currency risk.

Regarding credit risk, the Group continues to follow the best practices
of cash collection for sales of most recycled products in order to
minimise the carrying amounts of the financial assets in the Group’s
financial statements. In addition, the Group continues monitoring
closely its trade debtors to minimise potential impairment losses.

Regarding liquidity risk, the Group continues maintaining a balance

between the continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a workforce of 2,832
employees. In addition, we engaged approximately 270 separation
and selection workers through local recognised contractors. We have
not experienced any strikes, work stoppages or significant labour
disputes which have affected our operations in the past. We have
not experienced any significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining
qualified staff. We continue to maintain good relationships with our
employees.

The Group's total staff costs for the year was approximately
HK$1,065.6 million. The remuneration package of staff consists of
basic salary, mandatory provident fund, insurances and other benefits
as considered appropriate. Remuneration of the employees of the
Group is determined by reference to the market standard, individual
performance and their respective contribution to the Group.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) are
subject to the recommendations of the remuneration committee of
the Company and the Board’s approval. Other emoluments including
discretionary bonuses, are determined by the Board with reference to
the Directors’ duties, abilities and performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

For the Group, maintaining trusting relationships with investors has
always been paramount. The Board accordingly continues to engage
with them regularly and to keep them apprised of its latest corporate
and business developments in a timely manner.

Looking to the future, the Group will be taking steps to increase
transparency with both investors and shareholders to strengthen its
corporate governance in line with their best interests. As part of this
initiative, additional visibility will be provided around strategic plans
and approaches, with the aim of eliciting feedback and reaffirming the
collective understanding of the Group’s business, market activities and
growth opportunities.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREZNSREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS H{TEE

Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), aged 57, is an executive director of the Company. He was appointed as an executive director
in 2015. Mr. Tu is a member of each of the executive committee and the strategy and investment committee of the
Company. Mr. Tu also acted as the chairman of the Board from 29 April 2015 to 17 July 2017, and as the chief executive
officer of the Company from 16 February 2016 to 31 March 2016. He was the chairman of USUM Investment Group
Limited from April 2014 to November 2019. He has been a director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (BZE B AR E)) since
January 1996 and a director of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd ((BZ&Z#ZERBRAF]) since January 2003. USUM Investment
Group Limited, Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (BEZEEEBR2F) and Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (BZIZEKBRAR) are
controlling shareholders of the Company.

He served as the chairman of the board of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (EEZ A RAE))in the period from January
2003 to July 2010 and from February 2013 to December 2013, an executive director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. ((B&E &%
EABR/AE) from January 1996 to January 1997, and the chairman of the board of directors of Loncin Group Co., Ltd.
(FZZEEAPRAF) from January 1996 to December 2013. He served as a general manager of Chongging Loncin
Gasoline Engine Company (SinoAmerican Joint Venture) (FE& & BEREE /S MIEA B, a company that used to be
controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1995 to 1996, and served as the chief director of Chongging Loncin
Transportation and Machinery Factory (8 B [£ 2 22 i@ 1 M RK) , a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its
existence, from 1993 to 1996. He served as the chairman of factory director City Jiulongpo District Loncin Metal Factory
(BEETNENEEZSER), a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1991 to
1993 and the factory director of Chongging Cinhua Metals Factory (B Z £ BB RE) , from 1984 to 1990.

Mr. Tu graduated from the Economic Management (5B E IR E 2) of the Open College in Chongging City Municipal
Party School (EEHZERKZZMT) in December 1998. Mr. Tu previously acted as the deputy to the 11th, 12th
National People’s Congress, the deputy to the 2nd, 3rd and 4th Chongging Municipal People's Congress and the
member of the Finance and Economic Affairs Committee of Chongging Municipal People’s Congress. He currently serves
as a Member of the National Committee of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing
Committee Member of the Executive Committee of the 12th All China Federation of Industry & Commerce (£ B T
%), the president of Chongging City Industry and Commerce Federation (&2 ™ T 8#), the President of Chongging
City General Chamber of Commerce (EBEEM427 ), the president of Chongging City Technology Equipment Industry
Chamber of Commerce (EEMRIEEFEEB T ER), the vice president of Chongging City Charity Federation (2™
ZZ4a) and the vice president of Chongging City Private Entrepreneurs Confederation (EETRZ X2 RME D) .

Mr. Tu is a director of Loncin Motor Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 603766). Mr. Tu resigned as a non-executive director of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.* (HZEL =R (7D A R
‘AE]) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(stock code: 3903) with effect from 17 December 2020.

* For identification purpose only

* 2R
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFREHREEA\SREE

REERE (DREED 575 AADRTES BN B HFELZERNTES RAELARATIHTEES
@kﬁgﬁihﬁﬁaa.:.%z}ﬁia%ﬂfﬁiﬁﬁéiv —HFEMOE-+ARE"ZT— tEtﬁ-I—tEl?ﬁE%%éEzﬁ\_v
—AREZATARHEIE—RE-A=+—HEEFAETHER KA S —NENAZE_Z—AF+—AiEEn
@&é%@ﬁzfﬁﬁﬁﬁ@1%$§ BE-—ANARE-—RESEREEEERARNES B _ST=F—_RAESEESE
ERERABDEF -ABREEERNERAR REEEERARAKEZEZERERABDBELDERKR

BN B =F-—RE T ZFtANRKE TS = _RAE"Z—=F+_RHBEEEEERARAFE
ERR-NANAANE-—RBE-NACE-RRBEEZEEEERADNTES R-NANAANEF—RBE_ZT—=F+_
HHHF‘?#‘EW%%@%@@E%%%°ﬁﬁ?—ﬂjﬁifﬁfz—ﬂhﬁfﬂf*ﬁﬂp%A%\%%F‘;%}%JEH&’&T (FERHBR
?EEE?‘“% NRE) BEE R—AN=ZFE-NNARFREEEREEMRMM GERBERTEEFNAR) @KE,

—NNA—EE-NNAZFEFEETNERKERZZESER GFERBRLCEEFNNAR) BE > URK—AN\LOEE
—nhgﬁﬁﬁ&%%%ifﬁgiwuﬁﬁ%o

AEER—NANNE+ _BEERNEETZERRESRQAEEEFE  RAEEREEE T —RE S+ E2BEAR
REAEAR EF_E - F_EREFHEEETARARAGARAREETARARASGYHEREZEGELE KA
FEAEE+—EEEBREE S+ _E2EIABHRNTEZEEEFEE EET I AHER EETHEBEER &
ETRKERENSER EETA SR BRI S RAEETRELERHCERIE R

RAEEREBERDNRMERADES EZ2ERMN LBRFXFZM LM RHAE 1 603766)) > R EER TS
ESERNBERRT ERABDRMNEBMEXZMERAT (M) Ik (R ASE : 3903) ZIFATES>
BEEF+ A+t HEEEN-

BABREMERAT —ZE-Z&&4H 35



36

Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREREEA\SREE

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (“Mr. Suchan”), aged 39, was appointed as the chief executive officer and executive
director of the Company on 1 March 2020. Mr. Suchan serves as a member of each of the executive committee, pricing
committee and strategy and investment committee of the Company. He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Suchan started his career at Bayer AG, a German pharmaceutical and chemical company, as a management trainee
in 2002 where he worked across various marketing and finance functions in Germany and Poland. In 2006, he joined
Lanxess, a specialty chemicals company, as a strategy consultant working in Germany, Canada and China. From there
he moved to become the head of corporate development based in Shanghai at Lanxess Greater China in 2008. In
2010, Mr. Suchan joined Lanxess’ inorganic pigments business unit as the commercial director for Asia Pacific and
in 2012, he took over the responsibility as the vice president for global product management. In 2014, Mr. Suchan
was additionally appointed as the vice president for all operations of the inorganic pigments business unit in the Asia
Pacific region which also included the responsibility as the managing director for Lanxess’ three inorganic pigments
production sites in Shanghai and Ningbo, the PRC. Since April 2017, Mr. Suchan had been globally responsible for
identifying and implementing digital solutions which can be used along the whole chemical value chain within Lanxess’
digital transformation activities. In addition, Mr. Suchan was also the chief digital officer at Lanxess coordinating digital
transformation efforts in the Asia-Pacific region.

Mr. Suchan holds a Bachelor’s degree (Diplom-Kaufmann) in Business Administration and Economics from the University
of Applied Sciences in Essen, Germany and a Master's degree in Business Administration from Nanyang Technological
University in Singapore and from Tsinghua University in Beijing, the PRC, respectively.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFREHREEA\SREE

Mr. Martin Simon (“Mr. Simon”), aged 54, joined the Group as the chief financial officer of Scholz Group, a major
operation group of the Group, on 2 July 2019. He took up the additional roles as an executive director and the chief
financial officer of the Company with effect from 23 June 2020. He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Simon also serves as a member of each of the executive committee, pricing committee and strategy and
investment committee of the Company.

Mr. Simon started his career as an auditor at ERNST & YOUNG in 1995. In 1999, he moved to become a business
controller based in Germany at Dyckerhoff Group, an international producer of cement and ready-mixed concrete. In
2001, he was relocated for the Dyckerhoff Group as the finance vice president and chief financial officer of Glens Falls
Lehigh Cement Company in New York, United States. From 2005, Mr. Simon worked in the paper and packaging industry
for SCA Packaging Europe as the chief financial officer for the Region Central Europe and subsequently as the managing
director and vice president with full financial responsibility for the Region Central and Eastern Europe, successfully
steering the region through the 2008/09 world economic crisis. From 2013, Mr. Simon held chief financial officer
positions in the automotive supplier industry with NBHX Trim Group, a wholly owned subsidiary of Ningbo Huaxiang
Group, working in the field of interior surfaces for premium vehicles. and from 2016 onwards, with the German SHW
AG, a global supplier of motor & transmission oil pumps and brake discs, where he was responsible for the transition
after the takeover by a European strategic investor.

Mr. Simon holds a Master's degree in Business Administration (Diplom-Kaufmann) from University of Wuirzburg in
Germany.

Martin Simonst4 (TSimonfc4l) ' 545 BN _E—NELt B _HNMARERETAERFEESEEEIERERE
ENEENEE B S FE A+ - HE BRI A AN T ESRE BB E BN ASERETFAF
ZEESIMONEENARABTNITEES EELZEGUAEREARERZEEREZME.

SimonEER— NN AFIERBENMN LRGN EBABBEEEE LB B — AN NLENM ADyckerhoff&EE (7k
EHEARRTINEREER REEETEEBRE - FR 2T —FFAEEDyckerhofffE MIEEEFHARAA A
Glens Falls Lehigh Cement CoMYHA B RIBE R EFEMHBE - B ST HFIE > SimonsSE R Al m Ak B AT E M B 1E
SCA Packaging EuropefI B EEEM B E  BRECHEAREBMEEZRARKELRLE  2EEEMF > KI
Bzt eER_22)\  BAFEALERGK B — =& SimontEREFEMEEN L E T A SINBHX
Trim Group (X B S 1E BN R R E B ER) BERER ﬁﬁ%?‘&’]éfﬁﬁka BZZ—/RFHE FREREISHW AG
(—RE2KMBENSREHREEEBEMHER) £ BEZ AR —RENEBEEERE 2 BNEET(E

Simonstt 415 75 15 B 4 T 20 (R K 22 179 & FE B8 22 (iL(Diplom-Kaufmann) o

BABREMERAT —ZE-ZFEFR 37



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREREEA\SREE

Mr. Miao Yu (“Mr. Miao”), aged 42, was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 29 December 2020.
He also serves as a member of each of the executive committee, the strategy and Investment committee and the pricing
committee. He also acts as the president of USUM Investment Group Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Miao has extensive experience in investment management, corporate finance, financing structure and
implementation. He served as the investment and financing director of China General Consulting and Investment Co.,
Ltd. from 2017 to 2019 and as the senior vice president of Tensant Securities Limited from 2015 to 2017. He was the
vice general manager of Beijing Maosen Capital Management Ltd. from 2012 to 2015.

Mr. Miao holds a Bachelor’s degree in Finance from Hebei University of Economics and Business in the PRC.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFREHREEA\SREE

Former Executive Director il {TE 3=

Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin"), aged 57, joined the Group on 1 June 2016 as the executive vice president. He was
appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect from 30 June 2016, and as the chairman of the Board
from 17 July 2017. He also acted as the chief executive office of the Company from 24 October 2016 to 17 July 2017,
and from 11 October 2017 to 1 March 2020. Mr. Qin resigned as the chairman of the Board, an executive director of the
Company, and the chairman of each of the executive committee, the nomination committee, the strategy and investment
committee and the pricing committee of the Company with effect from 16 December 2020.

From 2004 to 2016, Mr. Qin worked with LafargeHolcim group and his last position with LafargeHolcim group was
the purchasing director of the China region, with a particular focus on raw materials and cementitious materials. Mr.
Qin served as the head of the purchasing department of Tianjin Henkel Detergent Co. Ltd. from 1996 to 1999 and the
finance director of Tianjin Philips Sy Catering and Entertainment Co., Ltd. from 1994 to 1996. Mr. Qin has extensive
experience in corporate operation management, process and budget control, strategic materials procurement and
supplier management.

Mr. Qin holds a Bachelor’s degree in Finance and Accounting from Renmin University of China and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Southampton in England.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREREEA\SREE

Mr. Chen Chunguo (“Mr. Chen"), aged 47, was appointed as the chairman of the Board and an executive director of
the Company on 16 December 2020. Mr. Qin Chen also served as the chairman of each of the executive committee, the
nomination committee, the strategy and investment committee and the pricing committee of the Company. He resigned
from these positions with effect from 3 March 2021.

Mr. Chen has extensive experience in corporate management, strategic investment and group restructuring. He joined
Dalian Shide Group Limited* (KEEBEEBEBPRAQE]) in July 1996 and served as the president and a director from
February 2004 to April 2012. He served as the president and a director of Dalian Hairunlai Construction Engineering
Co., Ltd.* (KREBBHEEBARRAE) and the chairman of Shanghai Chonghan Equity Investment Limited* (=35 /8%
fR I B ARAT) from October 2014 to June 2016. Mr. Chen then joined China Regenerative Medicine International
Limited whose shares are listed on Stock Exchange (stock code: 8158), in July 2016 and served as the president from
October 2016 to February 2017 and as the chief executive director from February 2017 to July 2018. He then served as
the president and the chairman of Anlian Group Limited* ($2/REEE B R/A ) from September 2018 to June 2020. Mr.
Chen joined Liaoning Guoke Industrial Co., Ltd.* (EEERI B ER/AE) as the chairman from June 2020.

Mr. Chen previously acted as the deputy to the 10th and the 11th People’s Congress of Liaoning Province, the PRC,
the vice chairman of Dalian Youth Federation* (K& M & H#) and the executive chairman of Beijing Youth Chamber of
Commerce* (bR S ER ). He previously served as a director of Sino Life Insurance Co., Ltd.* (£ AZRERDE
fR/A 7)), Bank of Dalian Co., Ltd. and Huahui Life Insurance Co., Ltd.* GEEASZRERIRMDEBRAE).

Mr. Chen holds a Master’'s degree in Finance and a Master’'s degree in Business Administration (“MBA") from the
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics in Liaoning, the PRC, and an Executive Master of Business Administration
("EMBA") degree from Tsinghua University in Beijing, the PRC.
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*  For identification purpose only

* (EHEER

40 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFREHREEA\SREE

Mr. Ding Zhiyi (“Mr. Ding"), aged 38, was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 29 December 2020.
He also served as a member of each of the executive committee, the strategy and Investment committee and the pricing
committee of the Company. He resigned from these positions with effect from 5 March 2021

He held various senior positions in China Huarong International Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2799) from 2014 to 2019, including
the assistant to the general manager and the general manager of the business review division. He was the head of the
corporate finance department of CCB International (Shanghai) Limited before 2014. He acted as an executive director,
the chairman of the board of directors and the chief executive officer of Silk Road Logistics Holdings Limited whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 988) from November 2017 to January 2019.

Mr. Ding holds a Bachelor’s degree in Pure Mathematics and Applied Mathematics from Shanghai University in the PRC
and a Master's degree in Mathematics Science from University of Adelaide in Australia.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BiIJE{TE S

Current Independent Non-Executive Directors IR{EEIIIEHMITES

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (“Dr. Loke"), aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 23 June 2010. Dr. Loke also serves as the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company.

Dr. Loke has over 42 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and public companies, financial
consultancy and corporate management. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti Teknologi
Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from University of South Australia. He is a fellow member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is also a member of The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Director Association.

He currently serves as an independent non-executive director of the following companies whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange: China Silver Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known as TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 515), Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited (stock Code: 3626), Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Company Limited (stock Code: 2882), Matrix Holdings Limited (stock Code: 1005), Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited (stock Code: 882), Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Forebase International
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 2310), TradeGo FinTech Limited (stock Code: 8017), V1 Group Limited (stock Code: 82),
Zhenro Properties Group Limited (stock Code: 6158), Zhong An Group Limited (stock Code: 672). He also serves as a
non-executive director of Veson Holdings Limited (formerly known as SCUD Group Limited) (stock code: 1399). He was
an independent non-executive director of CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (stock Code: 445) from 1 August
2006 to 1 February 2021.
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Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (“Mr. Ko"), aged 70, acted as an independent non-executive director of the Company from 19
February 2020 to 29 December 2020 and was re-appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 5 March 2021. He also serves as the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member of each
of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the strategy and investment committee of the Company.

Mr. Ko started his career at Dow Chemical Company in 1976 and spent 31 years in various manufacturing and
commercial leadership roles, with his most recent role from 2005 to 2007 as a vice president of Greater China for
business development. He also previously served as a director of operations of Greater China, a general manager of
Greater China, and also an executive director of various joint ventures of Dow Chemical Company. In 2007, Mr. Ko joined
AEA Investors, a global private investment firm focused on private equity and debt investments in the middle market, and
is currently a partner and an operating executive.

Mr. Ko holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering from the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the United States
and a Master's degree in Chemical Engineering from the University of Kentucky in the United States, and a Master ‘s
degree of Business Administration from Marshall University in the United States.
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Former Independent Non-Executive Directors B IEHITE S

Ms. Yang Yali (“Ms. Yang”), aged 35, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 29
December 2020. She also served as the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of the audit
committee and the nomination committee. She resigned from these positions with effect from 5 March 2021.

Ms. Yang obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Management from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics
and a Master’s degree in Law from Tsinghua University in the PRC. She is a lawyer with law professional qualifications
in the PRC. She is currently a trainee solicitor of Beijing Guan Heng Law Firm. She acted as the senior legal consultant
of Tencent Music (Beijing) Company Limited from May 2018 to May 2020 and the senior researcher for criminal law of
Tencent Technology (Beijing) Company Limited from March 2017 to May 2018. She held the positions as the prosecutor
and assistant prosecutor of Beijing Municipal People’s Procuratorate from July 2011 to March 2017.
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Mr. Wang Qiwei (“Mr. Wang”), aged 29, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 29 December 2020. He also served as a member of each of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee. He resigned from these positions with effect from 5 March 2021.

Mr. Wang graduated from Shenyang University of Technology— Engineering College in China with a major in
measurement and control technology and instrument. He is currently the manager of a health service management
company in the PRC. He is specialised in sale and marketing planning, research and analysis, and he is also experienced in
retails operations and management, administrative management and staff training.
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Ms. Qian Liping (“Ms. Qian”), aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in
2016. She also served as a member of each of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. She resigned from these positions with effect from 29 December 2020.

Ms. Qian is currently a professor at the School of Economics and Business Administration in Chongging University and a
managing director of Marketing Committee, Chinese Research Council of Modern Management. She was also a visiting
scholar of the Chinese University of Hong Kong from 2010 to 2011. She has more than 17 years of research experience
in B2B Marketing and Marketing Channel Management and has intimate knowledge of the marketing environment
and management mechanism in mainland China. Ms. Qian holds a doctoral degree in Management from School of
Management of Xi‘an Jiaotong University in the PRC.
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Mr. Zhu Hongchao (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in 2018 and resigned from an independent non-executive director of the Company, the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of each of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company on 19 February 2020.

Mr. Zhu holds a Juris Master from Fudan University in the PRC. He is one of the founding partners of Shanghai United
Law Firm and a senior lawyer. He has rich litigation and non-litigation experience in terms of Contract Law, Law of Torts,
Company Law and other legal fields.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SR EIEAS

Mr. Marc Breidenbach (“Marc”), aged 37, is the chief operating officer of the Company and the international chief
operating officer of Scholz group, a major operation group of the Group. Marc joined the Scholz group in January
2014 and has been playing a key role in the management of Scholz group. He took up the additional role as the chief
operating officer of the Company with effect from 23 June 2020. He also serves as a member of the strategy and
investment committee of the Company and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Marc has extensive
experience in growth and restructuring situations in family-run and listed companies in an international environment.
From 2008 to 2012, Marc worked as a consultant in an internationally active management consultancy firm focusing on
restructuring, operational excellence, mergers and acquisitions.

Marc holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration (Diplom-Kaufmann) from the International School of
Management in Germany. He also completed several courses at Nanyang Technological University in Singapore and
Euromed — Ecole de Management Marseille in France.

Marc Breidenbach#t (TMarciE)) > 375 WA ABNEFEEELRAERRER G AANTIEEEEE )
WEREFEEEE Marc AR T —NFE—BMAIERRER ¥ —BERIERREENEET L BEARFRA -8
ZRERA T+ HE RRELRFDEFEEEE BT RERANYRARESZSENE  URFERETFRE
ZEZ -MarcREREREEER LT ATNERKEETEEABERER - _ T N\EFE_E—"F > Mard? —BE
BRIRK SN EEAAR TR EERE 2B BANEL - s HEERHIEET -

Marc/e £ 75 A BRI B R B IR 2 8 T B E 2 1 2{I(Diplom-Kaufmann) « IR 7RI N B B T KRB AOEBI BB
BIERZPIERE

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFREHREEA\SREE

Mr. Goh Kian Guan (“Mr. Goh"), aged 43, is the vice president, the chief investment officer of the Company and the
general manager of the investment & development department of the Company. He also serves as a member of the
strategy and investment committee of the Company and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
joined the Group on 1 January 2016. Before joining the Group, Mr. Goh was the managing director for investments
at USUM Investment Group Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Goh has extensive experience in
merger and acquisition transactions, covering energy, commodities, transportation, telecom-media-technology (TMT)
and high end manufacturing industry. After graduation, Mr. Goh spent 6 years as an engineer, working on various
projects, including oil fields, refineries, petrochemical plants, pharmaceutical plants, power plants, oil rigs, real estates
and advance equipment manufacturing, covering technical, commercial and financial management. He then jointed the
strategic investment team of Singapore Telecom specialising in merger and acquisition. Mr. Goh also once worked in
Standard Chartered Corporate Advisory and BNP Paribas Investment Banking Energy & Commodities team and served as
the head of international merger & acquisition at an investment firm in Shanghai, the PRC.

Mr. Goh holds a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering in Civil from the Nanyang Technological University in Singapore and a
Master’s degree in Finance from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Australia.
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Directors’ Report

EFCHE

The directors of the Company have the pleasure in presenting their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out at in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group on
pages 121 to 122 of this annual report 2020 (“Annual Report”).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors did not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in sections headed “Chief Executive Officer’s
Statement”,
17 and pages 18 to 33, respectively, of this Annual Report which also
form part of this Directors’ Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has implemented a number of resources conservation
initiatives in its operations and workplaces. It is our strategy to
gradually embed sustainability into our daily management, thus, we will
continue to improve environmental sustainability measures in all our
facilities. During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant
environmental regulations in the PRC, Germany and the United States

“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 12 to

that have a significant impact on the Group's business. There were no
significant fines and no non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance
with environmental laws and regulations during the year. Details of
the above information will be set out in our environmental, social and
governance report which is scheduled to be published within three
months after the issuance of this Annual Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations during the year ended 31 December 2020 that would
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to issues such as
environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating
practices and the community.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS
AND EMPLOYEES

Maintaining and consolidating its relationship with customers is crucial
to increasing the profits of the Company. When carrying out business
with customers, the Group has adopted various methods to collect and
report their needs and expectations and taken corresponding measures
for improvement. The results of such measures were reviewed and
feedbacks were provided to the customers. The main duties include
conducting customer satisfaction survey by sending out questionnaires
to have their feedbacks, opinions, suggestions, complaints or praises to
ensure the service quality and to make improvement.

The Group's raw materials are required to be purchased in both
overseas and domestic markets. Maintaining a good relationship with
our scrap metal suppliers is one of the most important tasks in scrap
metal procurement. In addition, the Group continues to secure a group
of quality scrap suppliers by conducting regular evaluations, so as to lay
a solid foundation for the recycling and dismantling production of the
Group.

The Group is committed to providing equal employment opportunities
without regard to sex, age or nationality, which is in accordance with
anti-discrimination laws. We endeavor to ensure employees are treated
equally within our welfare system and are provided with effective
channels to freely express and communicate their opinions.

Our Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of ethical
and responsible conduct when conducting business. A group-level
Whistle-blowing Policy is in place to deter corruption or any possible
violation of law or company policy and to promote standards of good
corporate practices.
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CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL IN THE YEAR

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance with any member of the
Group as the contracting party and in which any of the controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries possessed direct or indirect
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substantial interests, and which was still valid as at 31 December 2020
or any time during such year and related to the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Chunguo (Chairman)
(appointed on 16 December 2020
and resigned on 3 March 2021)

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
(resigned on 16 December 2020)

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 1 March 2020)

Mr. Martin Simon (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 23 June 2020)

Mr. Ding Zhiyi
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)

Mr. Miao Yu
(appointed on 29 December 2020)
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Yang Yali
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Wang Qiwei
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)
Ms. Qian Liping
(resigned on 29 December 2020)
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed on 19 February 2020
and resigned on 29 December 2020,
re-appointed on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned on 19 February 2020)

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Tu

Jianhua shall retire from office and, being eligible, offer himself for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

under articles 84(1) & (2).

Mr. Martin Simon, Mr. Miao Yu, and Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew shall
hold office until the next forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company pursuant to article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association and then being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EERFBSHN
Start Expire Duration of contract
Mt il o ANER
Executive Directors Tu Jianhua 29 April 2018 28 April 2021 3 years
WTEZR REE “E-\FWAZ+AH ZBT-HMEAZFN\H =i
Rafael Heinrich Suchan 1 March 2020 29 February 2023 3 years
Rafael Heinrich Suchan “E-2F=F-H CBT=F"RA-+hH Ec
Martin Simon 23 June 2020 N/A perpetual
Martin Simon “2CEZEXBIFZH ENE):E YN
Miao Yu 29 December 2020 N/A perpetual
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DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT LETTERS SEHZEXMY
Start Expire Duration of contract
s b BHEH
Independent Non-Executive Directors Loke Yu 24 June 2019 23 June 2022 3 years
BIFRNTESR BBk “E-ngFRAZHME ZBZZHERAZTZH =F
Ko Frankie Andrew 5 March 2021 4 March 2022 1 year
S e _Z_—-#F=F1H “E__F=AMAH —F

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any services contract with the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set at
on pages 34 to 47.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”), the changes
in information required to be disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules after
the publication of the Interim Report 2020 of the Company are set out
below:

Experience including other directorships

Dr. Loke Yu, an independent non-executive director of the Company,
was appointed as a non-executive director of Veson Holdings Limited
(formerly known as SCUD Group Limited) (stock code: 1399) with effect
from 1 September 2020 and resigned as an independent non-executive
director of CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 445)
with effect from 1 February 2021.

Mr. Tu Jianhua, an executive director of the Company, resigned as a
non-executive director of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.* (stock
code: 3903) with effect from 17 December 2020.

*  For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

Saved as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 55 to 57 in this Annual Report and Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business (including
those to which the Company's subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party) in which a director of the Company or an
entity connected with a director had material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
against liabilities (to the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622)) incurred by him as such Director in the execution of his
duties or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any such Director.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceeding which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 59 to 60 in this Annual Report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or which subsisted at the end of the
year.

DIRECTOR'S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 59 to 60 of this Annual Report, during the year, none of
the Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings, including the maturity profile, currency
and interest rate structure of the Group are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason of their
holding of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. As at 31
December 2020, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$3,612.8 million.

DONATIONS

Donations to charitable organisations by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$0.4 million (2019: Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for 2.7% (2019: 1.6%) of the total purchases. The five
largest suppliers comprised 7.4% (2019: 6.1%) of the total purchases.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers were
less than 25% of total revenue in 2020.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers or five largest customers
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company’s business were entered into or subsisted during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had
the following connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions:

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 January 2020,
the sales framework agreement (the “Sales Framework Agreement”)
entered into between the Company and Loncin International Limited
("Loncin International”) on 11 January 2017 in relation to the sale of
the certain products by the relevant member (s) of the Group to Loncin
International expired on 31 December 2019, and the Company and
Loncin International entered into a new sales framework agreement
(the "New Agreement”) on 22 January 2020 (which is effective from
22 January 2020 to 31 December 2020), and set the annual cap for
the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the New
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020. Pursuant to the New
Agreement, relevant member(s) of the Group would continue to supply
certain non-ferrous metal products to Loncin International.

The annual cap in respect of the transactions contemplated under the
New Agreement was US$3.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Mr. Tu, a Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, holds
98% equity interests in Loncin Group Co.,
holds 98% equity interests in Loncin Holdings Co.,
Holdings”). Loncin International is wholly-owned by Loncin Holdings.

Limited, which in turn
Limited (“Loncin

Therefore, Loncin International is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tu.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for the annual cap in
respect of the New Agreement exceeded 0.1% but is less than 5%, the
New Agreement as well as the annual cap for the continuing connected
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting, annual
review, and announcement requirements but are exempted from the
independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 22 January and 17 February 2020, respectively.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 17 June 2020,
the Company and Loncin International entered into a supplemental
agreement to the New Agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
on 17 June 2020 to, among others, extend the term of the New
Agreement for an additional two years to 31 December 2022 and revise
the annual cap for the continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and set the annual caps for the continuing
connected transactions for the years ending 31 December 2021 and
20272

The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under
the Supplemental Agreement for each of the financial years ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are US$18.8 million, US$35.0 million
and US$50.0 million, respectively. The total amount of the transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was US$5.4 million.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for the annual cap
in respect of the Supplemental Agreement exceeded 5%, accordingly,
the Supplemental Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company and was subject to reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 31 July 2020,
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was convened and
the Supplemental Agreement was dully approved.

approval
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the independent non-executive directors of the Company. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company have confirmed
that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been entered
into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties;

(©) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and

(d)  within the respective cap amounts as disclosed in the previous
announcements in which the relevant continuing connected
transactions were disclosed.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected transactions, no other
related party transactions disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements entered into by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020 constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. The Company confirms
that it has complied with applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
(except Mr. Tu Jianhua, details of which are set out below) has interests
in any businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, pursuant to the Listing
Rules:

EENHGFERPIES
REE_Z_ZF+_F=+—HILFE"
R EHRE MEEE GREERLERIN
HepBHNOT) REREBREFEZR[
EERG IS RENEERDE
B

Description of businesses of the entity which

Name of entity which businesses are
considered to compete or likely to

are considered to compete or
likely to compete with the business of

Nature of interest of

Name of Director ~ compete with the business of the Group  the Group the Director in the entity
BRABEAREREBERRFH BEARFEREBER RPN

EEf AERRRFNERERERE

ARERRFNERERENEENHET

EENERNEREE

Mr. Tu Jianhua Chongging USUM Recycling Resources
Development Co., Ltd. (“Chongging

Usum”)*

According to the business scope as registered
with the State Administration For Industry
& Commerce of the PRC, this entity may

Controlling Shareholder

engage in, inter alia, recycling, processing,
marketing and sale of recycling resources,
scrap metal related businesses.

RRELE ERARBEERREARAT

(EEAE)

RERTEER IHTHEEZRETHNEE
BE LERIES (HHaf) BEERE

ERRR

BT -eEREE BEEBERES-

* for identification purposes only

Although the scope of business of Chongging USUM allows it to
engage in businesses that are considered likely to compete with the
business of the Group, Mr. Tu Jianhua reported to the Board that
Chongging USUM is currently only engaged in the disintegration of
automobiles and trading of steel scrap in the PRC, which are neither
the same as nor compete with the businesses of the Group. Further,
Chongging USUM has no intention to engage in businesses that
compete with or are likely to compete with the Group’s businesses.

The Board and management team of the Company and Chongging
USUM do not overlap with each other and are independent of each
other. Therefore, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
Chongging USUM in which Mr. Tu Jianhua has declared interests.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 23
June 2010 (the "Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme was approved by written resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company and as approved by the listing committee of the Stock
Exchange is valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
23 June 2010. It is a share incentive scheme established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants have
or may have made to the Group. Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, the Board may, as its discretion, offer to grant an option to
any director, employee, advisor, consultant, distributor, contractor,
supplier, customer, agent, business partner, joint venture business
partner, promoter, service provider of any member of the Group (the
"Participants”).

When the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted on 23 June
2010, the original scheme mandate limit in respect of which share
options could be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was
100,000,000 Shares and it was refreshed during the 2013 extraordinary
general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and in
compliance with the provisions in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules,
the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and all other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 161,973,829 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at
17 February 2017, being the date of the 2017 extraordinary general
meeting, when the scheme mandate limit was last refreshed.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is
not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The subscription price at which a grantee may subscribe for shares on
the exercise of an option under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time
of the grant of relevant option and in any case shall not be less than
the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of grant; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading dates immediately preceding
the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

There were no options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and no
share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
year.

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme expired on 22 June 2020. The Board
did not propose to adopt any new share option scheme up to the date
of this Annual Report.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS HmiRE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short ERERFETHRAEBRTAT R « 1HEE
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures &1 R R 75 S 45 A B B ELAR Bl A B Y (E (]
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the BEREPIERERE

Company and Its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the RZZEF+_B=+—H>'XATE=E
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares (the AREZITEHABRARE S EERBSERE
“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company or (E&ER(EFKIAEREM) (FE5KIBERF
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of 1) SEXVER) BIAH (TA&1H1) ~ HEARRD K&
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the R AR BIRIEFE S MBS KAE55352
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 RETFEMNE L MAFACERIRE EHR
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock  BUMfiEk+Fr#E L HETAEFETRSTRS
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by — BYIRZESPRI (MEZESPA) B & AA 5] K B
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules ~ 3XFTRIETR AT !

(the “"Model Code"), were as follows:

Long positions in Shares: RGBFE :
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
(Note 1)
Total number of LR ATIRRE
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares interested BE4E 2 LE
EEN4 815 HERiE HAERNRGER (MFE1)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
TRERELE RREGEE R (fFzE2)
Dr. Loke Yu Beneficial owner 730,000 0.05%
g mkiE L BmEAA

BSEREESRAT —T-SFEH 61
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EFEHS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations (continued)

Notes:

@)

Save

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued Shares of the Company was
1,605,152,291 Shares.

The 1,008,885,181 Shares were held by USUM Investment Group Hong Kong
Limited (“USUMHK"), a company in which Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”) was indirectly
interested. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Investment Group Limited
("USUM Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single
largest shareholder of USUM Group is Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Holdings"),
with an equity interest in USUM Group of approximately 53.29%. The remaining
equity interests in USUM Group are held by 13 individuals and 27 companies, all of
whom are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu, and they each
hold between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. The equity interests of
Loncin Holdings is 98% owned by Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”) and 2%
owned by Mr. Tu. The equity interests of Loncin Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1%
owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr.
Tu. USUMHK held 1,008,885,181 Shares as at 31 December 2020. Therefore, Mr. Tu
was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the

directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the

SF@)F

or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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iR (@)
EERFETHRASNEAERM 1EH
iR 1% R (R 352 4 A B) B EL AR A B BV (E
BEREPOESERRE (B

5T :

(1) N _EZEFE+RA=+—HB > ARTEETR
P48 #41,605,152,291 8% B {7 °

) 1,008,885,181RRMHHAHKREELEE (BB A
RAB (DAWEE) FAE AEEER—HHER
RESE (TREE)) BEEBRENAR AH
EEHNIBREEEARNERAR (TamEED)
ER2ERR AEERA BN PEEMMRIL
ZERAB - ABMERANRAE—RERERE
RAEMRAR (MEEER) > HNABEENRA
A #953.29% A E B TIREH13RE
AR2IBRE HRBUNERERMRTEDN
F=D) FR -ZFEARRBADNFEABER
0.29%FE10% R PEZIERMRE DRI HE
SEEERAR (MEREE)) HHIBRKRAFLE
HR2% EEEBENRERFTEREFTIS%; B
REHRLIRARB YL IRRTLENGHF 2

EHH1,008,885,1811 &% - AL > IR F B FH
REEHRG REERBARABEBRAENR
A o

MMEXFREIIN R _ZTFE+_H
=t+—HB AR EERETEITHAEHE
RAA B E A AR EE &) /8RR
HRESHETEEBERBESRBERGS
XVEETR8D BT M G 4 A B K B 22 Ff
(BEREESRIPERGEBIEXRE
HEREERREFEB ZRFAXA) s TA
REIRIEES MHAERGIFEIS2EBATEE
2B MR ; WRBZETABTM
FANB R A AESIRE



DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than the directors and chief executives of the Company,
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Long positions in Shares:

Directors’ Report

EFEHS

EmiEE (@
FERRNR AT RN RIERARGEDR
BR%E

A _ECEF+_A=1+—H BEAFTE
ERTBITHAEN  UTFTATREATRE
2 R FBRANRD R R BIRIE RS M EE 15
F336R BT EFEEZECMAFTCHFNER

F%E

BRIPEVIFE :
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested HEA TR
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest BFEREEN BAE oL
RERTE R 515 #EmtE B 15 48 8 (MF5E1)
USUM Investment Group Beneficial owner 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
Hong Kong Limited
REBREER () BRATE BEm#EREA (MF5E2)
USUM Investment Group Limited Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
AEREEERNBRAT REESEEZ#ED (MF5E2)
Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
EEERARAF REESEEZ#ED (MF5E2)
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%

EEEEARAT

corporations
REESEEZ#Em

GEY)

BABREMERAT —E-E&E&H 63
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EFEHS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions

in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

EmikE (8
FERRN T AFRMN RADWRA RS
Rk (4)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested & ATRRIE
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest BFEREEN BB DL
RERBE e g5/ #niE B 17 48 24 (CEAD
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 1,008,885,181 (Note 2) 62.85%
corporations
TREBEESYE MR2EGEEE 2 #m (fzE2)
Tai Security Holding Limited Beneficial owner 98,773,990 (Note 3) 6.15%
Tai Security Holding Limited EREEA (MF5E3)
Good Union Hong Kong Beneficial owner 44,700,000 (Note 4) 2.79%
Investment Limited
EESEARERERAR EmEE A (FF5E4)
Mr. Zhang Mingjie Interest in controlled 143,473,990 8.94%

SREAEE L

Notes:

(1)

corporations
RIEGER 2

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued Shares of the Company was
1,605,152,291 Shares.

The 1,008,885,181 Shares were held by USUMHK, a company in which Mr. Tu
was indirectly interested in. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Group, a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single largest shareholder of
USUM Group is Loncin Holdings, with an equity interest in USUM Group of 53.29%.
The remaining equity interests in USUM Group are held by 13 individuals and 27
companies, all of whom are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu,
and they each hold between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. The
equity interests of Loncin Holdings is 98% owned by Loncin Group and 2% owned
by Mr. Tu. The equity interests of Loncin Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned
by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu.
USUMHK held 1,008,885,181 Shares as at 31 December 2020. Therefore, Mr. Tu was
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.
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(Notes 3 & 4)
(Mf5E3 & 4)

RIZZEE+Z/A=+—H > A ABTBETR
R #HEE(#1,605,152,291 BEBZ (5 ©

1,008,885,181 KR MHHAEEETE > A
ERA—EHRRCEBREERGN AT caHE
EEHABNERER2ERS AnERA M
RAEFMRIZERAT ABERMNRAE
—RRAREER HRNASEENRAERES
53.29% o A E BV ER T IR RE R 13 B A K278
NE HABUNEEZREREENE=H) &
B ZEAARABDANFHEABERC29%E
10% 2R -BEERNKBREDHNREZEEE
BHI8% FARSEHEE 2%  EEEBMMRER R
EHEFI8%; HARSZ I RARB T (98%
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) HEmiNE ()

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions FERRNBAB RN RABRRMR R

in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company R¥%E (@)

(continued)

Notes: (continued) Wizt @ (&)

(3) The 98,773,990 Shares were held by Tai Security Holding Limited (“Tai Security”) 3) 98,773,9900& 8% 1 EaTai Security Holding Limited
as beneficial owner and Tai Security was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Mingjie (“Mr. (TTai Security 1) {FABRER ARFE MRS
Zhang") as at 31 December 2020. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested —ZE+"A=+—H>Tai Security I 3RBBHTE
in the same number of Shares as held by Tai Security pursuant to the SFO. (MRS 2BHEA - FIt > BIEB % RIS K

Bl > SR ERAR A BTai Security A BIAERI 8B &
PR -

4) The 44,700,000 Shares were held by Good Union Hong Kong Investment Limited @) 44,700,000 B N2 ESHBILEERAD (2
("Good Union”) as beneficial owner and Good Union was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang B FABREEASAE MR _E_SF+_
as at 31 December 2020. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in the B=+—0 BERELLEDEEE It 1R
same number of Shares as held by Good Union pursuant to the SFO. BERIAEKRY REEWEAREERANE

R B 2R M ES

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company had 4 F Y FRiFEIH > R _Z&F+_ B
not been notified by any persons (other than the directors and chief =+ _—g, &xAF T FAANBFFA L (EA
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the  FEER TEBFH A S RAEAT BRH
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be  s{iRRER P hES BIRIEE S L HASIE6]S
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of  xyZiEE2 B3 LETIBE T LR E 4 /A 5
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to  jR#E =& L A S IEHIE3361EBEFEENZ

be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO. SRR M RE RS B A o

EMOLUMENT POLICY AN EL SR

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the HEFHSHEEEBRESAERERESNE
senior management of the Group based on their performance, I8\ 4%Es & 1875 47 22 \& 131 38 7 S A B 56 LU
experience, and prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent 8254 HES -

employees.

The emolument of the Directors is decided by the remuneration  #E|HS & 4EEBEA AT AL 24 FA

committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, ISR L& IS SRS & 2 = M5 o
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company had adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to  #XAF PR - E—ZE B _+=HE_=
the Directors and eligible employees from 23 June 2010 to 22 June  —=4E,xH -+ A4 eRest 2| LUNED
2020, details of which are set out on page 59 to 60 of this Annual #EERABHREDS SHZHSHNAERS

Report. 59F60H ©

ERRFERRRAR —EBE_ZFEFER
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EFERS

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY SREEANE Z FENAE R

BAND

The remuneration of the Company's senior management by band for &BEZE_Z_ZFF+_F=+—HIEFEER

the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

BEMRE IEAE ZFEEINAERESIIT

Number of
individuals

AE

Remuneration Band:

HK$0 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
More than HK$3,500,001

EM4R R -
07875 % 1,000,00078 7T
1,000,001 75 21,500,000 7T
2,500,0017 75 23,000,000 7T
3,000,001 75 £ 3,500,000 7T
3,500,001 0L £

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Except for the litigation mentioned in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section, the Company was not engaged in any litigation or
arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material
importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatened
against the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 and as at the date of this Annual
Report.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 286 of this Annual
Report.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Following the change of directors on 5 March 2021, the Board only has
two independent non-executive Directors, which therefore falls below
the minimum requirements under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. In
addition, the Audit Committee members decreased from three to two,
falling below the minimum number required under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The Board is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate to fill
the vacancies of the independent non-executive Director and of the
member of the Audit Committee and will use its best endeavours to
ensure that a suitable candidate is appointed as soon as practicable
and, in any event, within three months pursuant to Rules 3.11 and 3.23
of the Listing Rules.

The Company will also arrange for the election of the new chairman
of the Board and the chairman of each of the Executive Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Strategy and Investment Committee
and the Pricing Committee as soon as practicable in order to fill up the
vacancies caused by the resignation of chairman. The Company will
make further announcement(s) as and when appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, Directors are not aware of any significant event
requiring disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
KREEE

Rafael Heinrich Suchan
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

TR R TEE

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
58 22 —F=RB=+—H
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Corporate Governance Report

EEELRHS

INTRODUCTION

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance. The Company believes that an
effective corporate governance practice is fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value and safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and
other stakeholders. The Board sets appropriate policies and implements
corporate government practices appropriate to the conduct and growth
of the Group’s business. The code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
“CG Code”) have been adopted to shape the Company’s corporate
governance structure. This corporate governance report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 December 2020 under different aspects.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability and is committed to achieving a high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the CG code and Corporate Governance Report, contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, save and except as explained below:

A.2.1

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the period from 1 January 2020 to
29 February 2020, Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin”) held the offices of
chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and chief executive officer of the
Company (“CEQ"). The Board believed that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and CEO in the same person provided the Company with
strong and consistent leadership and allowed for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies.
Accordingly, the Directors considered that the deviation from provision
A.2.1 of the Code was appropriate in such circumstance.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE (continued)

A.2.1 (continued)

Mr. Qin tendered his resignation as the CEO on 1 March 2020 to focus
on his other roles in the Group, but remained as the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company. Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (“Mr.
Suchan”) was appointed as the CEO of the Company with effect from
1 March 2020. The change of the CEO allows the Company to better
comply with the requirement under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code.

Mr. Qin resigned as the Chairman and Mr. Chen Chunguo was
appointed as the Chairman with effect from 16 December 2020, while
Mr. Suchan remains as the CEO.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors. All Directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiries made by the Company of all such Directors, that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Corporate Governance Report
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EEERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS -

Composition of the Board EEGHAR

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual Report, RARFERHEFNEBBERAITHR EF
the Board comprised four executive directors and two independent non- ERERHMNAHNTEEEMBEILIFRITE
executive directors, whose biographical details are set out in the “Profile ~ F#MM - KEZBEFIBHNAFIRE3LIE
of Directors and Senior Management” section on page 34 to 47 of this 47EIEERSREEAERE —HRN &

Annual Report, namely: EENEBaE !
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
to the Board as Director
Name of Director HREZEMA T—EsE
BEEHS BEEgZAH AEEZHHE
Executive Director BITE=S
Tu Jianhua TR 29 April 2015 12 June 2018
—E—1fF —E-N\F
mB—+AhH ~B+=H

Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(Chief Executive Officer)

Rafael Heinrich Suchan

(TTECAE %)

1 March 2020

19 June 2020

223 -3
=HF—H ~A+hH
Martin Simon Martin Simon 23 June 2020 N/A
_EEF il

ANBZ+=H
Miao Yu HiR 29 December 2020 N/A
.= &

+ZBAZ+AH
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
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EEERES

EEE (@

Composition of the Board (continued) EEGHEMR &)

Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
to the Board as Director

Name of Director BHREZEMA F—RESE

BEEHS EEg2HH AEEFEZHE
Independent Non-Executive Director BIEHITES

Loke Yu =YV 23 June 2010 31 May 2019

—E—FF =S EE

NE —= g EE=+—8H

Ko Frankie Andrew = ¥ 58 5 March 2021 N/A

B i

=—HAH

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any
other Director or chief executive.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to discuss the overall strategies as well as operational and financial
performances of the Group. Certain matters are reserved for decisions
by the Board, including matters relating to: (i) the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategy and directions; (ii) any material conflict of
interest of substantial Shareholders of the Company or Directors; (iii)
approval of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results
and other significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes
to the Company’s capital structure; and (v) major appointments to
the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group and implementation and
execution of policies and strategies decided by the Board to the
executive Directors and management of the Company.

MEEFREHMEFHNTERERAE
B AR R (AT 25  REXHME
REARRIRAR) ©
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REUREEEMFRIF - EFERENE
FEROERRGESERBRERBERT
[N ABETERRIEE ZEREART
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EEERNS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Roles and responsibilities of the Board (continued)

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including risk management, internal controls, those under D.3.1
of the Corporate Governance Code and relevant compliance issues
relating to the business operation of the Group.

The Board reviews and monitors the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior managers; develops,
reviews and monitors the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. The Directors collectively bring a variety of experience and
expertise to the Company.

Board meetings and Board practices

All Directors have been given sufficient time and support to understand
the affairs of the Group and they have full and timely access to
all relevant information regarding the Group's affairs and have
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the company secretary
of the Company (“the Company Secretary”). The Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying
out their duties and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, thirteen Board meetings,
two general meetings of the Company were held. The meetings
are structured to allow open discussion. At the Board meetings, the
Directors participated in discussing the strategies, operational and
financial performance, corporate governance policy and internal control
of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate Governance Report

EEERES

EXE @

Board meetings and Board practices

Set out below is the attendance of the Directors at the Board and

general meetings held during the year:

EXEERREFEER @

REWIBERIELAT :

EFHERAFERTZESY

g@mKRRE

No. of meeting attend/ Eligible to attend

BHE/ AEREEEERY
Regular General
Name of Director Board Meeting Meeting
EEHL THEZgEE BRAE
Executive Director HITES
Tu Jianhua REE 12/13 11
Chen Chunguo BEE 33 0/0
(appointed on 16 December 2020 and (EA_g—v F+ZA+ABESME
resigned on 3 March 2021) RRZEZ-FZA=H#
Qin Yongming %Kk 8/10 112
(resigned on 16 December 2020) (RZZ2Z2F+ZF+ABEFD
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael He|nr|ch Suchan 1111 112
(appointed on 1 March 2020) (RZ2Z2F=F—BHEZM)
Martin Simon Martin Simon 8/8 01
(appointed on 23 June 2020) MZBEEEAB-1+=REZD
Ding Zhiyi TEH 00 00
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and RZ2ZZF+ZFZ+NH
resigned on 5 March 2021) EZERR_ZE_—F=ZARAFHT
Miao Yu B 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 29 December 2020) RZZEZZE+ZAZTAHEZD
Independent Non-Executive Director BUERTES
Loke Yu =g 12/13 22
Yang Yali Wﬁﬁﬁ 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and RZ2Z2F+ZAZ+NH
resigned on 5 March 2021) ééﬁ&ﬁ_—« _—E=ARARMD
Wang Qiwei Taf 0/0 0/0
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and RZZZBFE+F+NHEZER
resigned on 5 March 2021) RZZEZ—F=ZFRHFHT)
Qian Liping iz pea 12/13 212
(resigned on 29 December 2020) MIBZZE+-_A-+NRHEZMD
Ko Frankie Andrew BinR 11/12 22
(appointed on 19 February 2020 ( “Z2CZREATABERAEK
and resigned on 29 December 2020; RIZZZE+ZAZHAHRME;
re-appointed on 5 March 2021) f:g: EZRRIAEEHZED
Zhu Hongchao Kt 0N 0/0

(resigned on 19 February 2020)

RZZZZE_A+AHED

BERRAEEBRAE

—EomEFR 13
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices (continued)

The Company Secretary or the staff of the company secretarial
department of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of
each Board meeting and, within a reasonable time after each meeting,
the draft minutes were circulated to all Directors for comment and the
final and approved version of the minutes were sent to all Directors
for their records. The same practices and procedures as used in the
Board meetings had also been adopted and followed for the Board
committees meetings. All the minutes of the meetings recorded
sufficient details of the matters considered and decision reached are
available for inspection by the Directors at any time.

Notices of Board meetings were given to the Directors at least 14 days
prior to the date of the relevant meeting. Briefing papers were prepared
for all substantive agenda items and were circulated to the Directors at
least three days before each Board meeting. The Company Secretary
or the staff of the company secretarial department of the Company is
responsible for providing accurate, timely and clear information to the
Directors prior to the Board meetings so as to ensure that the Directors
are able to make informed decisions regarding the matters to be
discussed in the meeting.

If any of the Directors has a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, such Director(s) shall abstain
from voting in relation to that particular matter. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest in such matters would
be present at the Board meetings to deal with such conflict of interest
issues.

Access to sufficient information of the Group

The management is committed to providing the Board with appropriate
and sufficient explanation and information of the Group's affairs
through financial reports, business and operational reports and budget
statements, in a timely manner, to enable them to make informed
decisions.

The Directors are also provided with access to the Group’s management
and Company Secretary at all times to obtain relevant information for
carrying out their duties as Directors of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

From 1 January 2020 to 29 February 2020, Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr.
Qin") took up the roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company
simultaneously. Mr. Qin had tendered his resignation as the CEO of
the Company with effect from 1 March 2020 to focus on his other
roles in the Group, but remained as the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company. Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (“Mr. Suchan”)
was appointed as CEO of the Company with effect from 1 March 2020.
Mr. Qin resigned as the Chairman and Mr. Chen Chunguo (“Mr. Chen”)
was appointed as the Chairman with effect from 16 December 2020,
while Mr. Suchan remains as the CEO of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Qin or Mr. Chen were responsible
for providing leadership of the Board and ensuring that all Directors
are properly informed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. In
addition, they are responsible for ensuring that all Directors receive, in a
timely manner, adequate, complete and reliable information in relation
to the Group's affairs. The Chairman also encouraged Directors to
actively participate in and to make a full contribution to the Board so
that the Board functions effectively and acts in the best interest of the
Company.

From 1 March 2020 onwards, Mr. Suchan took up Mr. Qin’'s
responsibility for the strategic planning, administration and
management of the business of the Group. He was also responsible
for the formulation and successful implementation of Group policies
and assuming full accountability to the Board for all operations of
the Group. Mr. Suchan oversaw the Group’s compliance and internal
control matters and maintains an ongoing dialogue with the Chairman
and all Directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
developments and issues. He had also been focusing on strategic
planning and assessment of mergers and acquisitions opportunities for
the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive directors were appointed for term of
either one year or three years. None of them hold any other offices
in the Company or any its subsidiaries or is interested in any Shares
of the Company saved as disclosed under section headed “Disclosure
of Interests” on pages 61 to 65 in this Annual Report. In the Board
meetings and Board committee meetings held during the year,
constructive views and comments are given by the independent non-
executive directors, who have provided their independent judgement on
the issues relating to the strategy, performance, conflict of interest and
management process of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were three
independent non-executive directors, representing at least one-third of
the Board. Among the three independent non-executive directors, one
of them has the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its current independent non-
executive directors a written confirmation of his/her independence and
the Board considers all of them, namely Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Ko Frankie
Andrew to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yiu Yi Ting (“Ms. Yiu") was the Company Secretary until 24 July
2020. She has over 17 years of experience in corporate secretarial
and corporate trust, covering listed companies, commercial bank
and professional firms. She holds a Master's degree in Corporate
Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is an
associate member of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.

Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty (“Ms. So”), was the Company Secretary for the
period of 24 July 2020 to 18 December 2020. She currently serves as a
vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited,
an external service provider. Ms. So obtained a Master’'s degree in
Chinese and Comparative Law from the City University of Hong Kong
in 2004 and a Master's degree in business administration from the
University of Leicester (long distance learning course) in 1999. Ms. So
was admitted as an associate of The Chartered Governance Institute
in the United Kingdom in 1997 and an associate of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries in 1997. During the period, Mr. Rafael
Heinrich Suchan, the CEO of the Company, was the primary contact
person of Ms. So.
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COMPANY SECRETARY (continued)

Ms. Lam Pui Sea (“Ms. Lam”) was appointed as the Company Secretary
on 18 December 2020. Ms. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and Finance from the University of Hong Kong.
She has worked in various listed companies on the Stock Exchange and
an international accounting firm. Ms. Lam has extensive experience
in accounting and internal control, corporate secretarial services and
corporate administration.

Ms. Lam resigned as the Company Secretary and Ms. So was
re-appointed as the Company Secretary with effect from 5 March 2021.

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board
by ensuring efficient and effective information flow within the Board
and that the Board's policy and procedures are followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the
Chairman and CEO. All Directors may have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on
governance and regulatory matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of the Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures
of the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with
opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures
of the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Lam and Ms. So had
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is fully involved in the selection and appointment of the
Company Secretary.
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EEERRS

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has
delegated specific functions to six Board committees,

namely

EFELET

the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination EZE8

EXgn\EEFEET WITEET B
ZEE RLEEE HMEEE HRER

BEREBZET) ZIKIEERE LU

Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Strategy and Investment
Committee and the Pricing Committee, details of which are as follows:

BhEEEHITRE  FIBHIWT ¢

Strategy and
Executive Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Investment Pricing
Name of Director Committee Committee Committee Committee Com%igé%g Committee
B HiTZEE BERZEE RAEZEE FNZEE REZEE EEZEE
Executive Director ¥§l1g§$
Tu Jianhua TR M M
Chen Chunguo BE C C C c
é)pomted on EF P
December 2020 and + Bt BEZE
reS|gned on 3 March2021) RRZZ_—F
—A=H#fA)
Qin Yongming ZKH C C C C
(resigned on (R-ZB_ZF
16 December 2020) TZA+RARD
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan M M M
(appointed on 1 March 2020) ﬁ 72725
EHT)
Martin Simon Ma tn Simon M M M
(appointed on 23 June 2020) (RZZ_Z%;5A
- EZ)
Dlng Zhiyi M M M
é)pomted on 5=
December 2020 and +_A-+hH
resigned on 5 March 2021) R _-ZF_—F
CABARMA
Mlao Yu B M M M
é)pomted on MZ2_Z&F+7H
December 2020) “ThBEZE)
Independent BUERTESR
Non-Executive Director N
Loke Yu BBk C M M
Ko Frankie Andrew S M M C M+
a&pomted on 19 February R_E_T&E_H
0 and resigned on 29 TNEEZER
December 2020; re-appointed RZE_FF
on 5 March 2021) T_A_tThH
HE,R_Z_—F
—BhHESHED
Yan Yali ¥R M M e
Eg)pomted on (R=B_ZF+_H
December 2020 and —+hBERE
resigned on 5 March 2021) R _Z_—&
—HAHED
Wang Qiwei I5f M M M
é)pomted on (M-B-25+"RA
December 2020 and _ThHESE
resigned on 5 March 2021)  RRZZT_—%F
—HEHFA
Q|an L|p|ng BT M M M
(resigned on (K-B_2£+"F
29 December 2020) —_+hB#A
Zhu Hongchao KAB M M c
(resigned on M-F_%&
19 February 2020) —A+AHEE)
W C - Chairman & C—F/&
M — Member M—F8
v Other members of the Pricing Committee are certain senior management of the  * EEZECHMABEAR AT ETEREEA
Company. Be
+ With effect from 5 March 2021 + B —SF=BARHEEXK
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board established the Executive Committee in 2011 with written
terms of reference, which is responsible for the management and
administration of the business of the Company and any matters which
are within the ordinary course of the Company’s business under the
control and supervision of the Board and in accordance with the
provisions of the terms of reference of the Executive Committee for
ensuring a high standard of corporate governance and compliance
of the Company. The written terms of reference of the Executive
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company's website.

The Board delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Executive Committee, which develops and reviews the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
recommendations to the Board; reviews and monitors (i) the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (i) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and (iii) the code of conduct and Model Code applicable
to the Directors or employees.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director is provided with information and
a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations.

Development and training of Directors is an ongoing process to ensure
that they can perform their duties appropriately. During the year ended
31 December 2020, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that they continue to make contribution to the Board in
an informed and relevant manner. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

HITEREE (B

Directors’ Training and Professional Development EERIREXER (@)

(continued)

The training received by the Directors during the year ended 31 ZEFRBE_Z_ZEF+_A=+—HILF

December 2020 is summarised as follows:

EFrEZ 5 aJIHE}E;JZD"F :

Directors Types of training
=3 1EENEE R
Tu Jianhua IR EE A, B
Chen Chunguo fREE

(appointed on 16 December 2020 MRZE2ZEF+H+H

and resigned on 3 March 2021) EEERR_BE-_—F=A=HFT) B
Qin Yongming Z= KR

(resigned on 16 December 2020) MRZEZEF+B+/<HED A, B
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan

(appointed on 1 March 2020) KWZEZEF=F—HEZMD A, B
Martin Simon Martin Simon

(appointed on 23 June 2020) MRZZEZEFERABZT=BHEZMD A, B
Mr. Ding Zhiyi TEER

(appointed on 29 December 2020 RIZE _%E—f—_ﬁ —+hH

and resigned on 5 March 2021) BEERN_E2-—F=FHH&HD B
Mr. Miao Yu =5

(appointed on 29 December 2020) (MZZ2EHF+-AZ+NLHEZMD B
Loke Yu sy A, B
Ko Frankie Andrew = 1 98

(appointed on 19 February 2020

and resigned on 29 December 2020;

re-appointed on 5 March 2021)
Yang Yali

(appointed on 29 December 2020

and resigned on 5 March 2021)
Wang Qiwei

(appointed on 29 December 2020

and resigned on 5 March 2021)
Qian Liping

(resigned on 29 December 2020)
Zhu Hongchao

(resigned on 19 February 2020)

MRZB-_ZTFE_A+NBEZERR
“ECRFE+TATTNAHEE

N_E_—F=FAREEHEMD A, B
IR

RZEZEF+ZB=+NH

EHERN_EBE_—F=FLHET) B
EHFF

RZEZEF+"BA=+ANH

EEARNR_E-_—F=AFA BT B
R

RZE2EZEF+ R+ BHED A, B
SRt

MRZEZEE_B+AHED B

A attending seminars/conferences/forums/briefings/workshops relevant to the business A HEEAEREFREETRSAM MY &

of the Group or Director’s duties

e/ wmEENE TS

B reading articles relevant to corporate governance, regulatory updates and Directors’ B HEECEEA BNMEEREREERERE

duties and responsibilities

EARRAZ T4
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2010 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee in 2015, which has included
changes in line with the amendments to the Main Board Listing Rules.
The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website. The Audit
Committee has established a whistleblowing policy of the Company in
2012 and set out the procedures on reporting possible improprieties in
financial reporting matters of the Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company'’s internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget) and risk management systems as delegated by the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and engagement of the external auditor for the audit and non-audit
services. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each member

are as follows:

BRZEY (8
BREAERARSRAZ HREERMT

Role in Meetings
Audit attended/
Name of Directors Position Committee  Eligible to attend
BHiE/
EEfS Bifu ABRZEEZHA FERUBEERY
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Chairman 4/4
PR M BUFNTES IR
Ko Frankie Andrew Independent non-executive Director Member 4/4
(appointed on 19 February 2020
and resigned on 29 December 2020
re-appointed on 5 March 2021)
Sk BUFRTES 3=
MZEZEE_A+HNBEZEKR
RZE_EEF_A-+hBARE;
B —GR=ARREENED)
Yang Yali Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and
resigned on 5 March 2021)
TR BUFNTES =]
(\_7_7¢+ A+ BEZER
RZE_—F=AAHED
Wang Qiwei Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and
resigned on 5 March 2021)
5 BUFNTES =]
(RZZ2ZEE+"_A-TNBEZER
CZB-—F= AR AEE)
Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 4/4
(resigned on from 29 December 2020)
RET BUFHNTES =]
(RZZ2EBE+_A-+HhB#HD
Zhu Hongchao Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(resigned on 19 February 2020)
%ﬁﬁ BUFHNTES =]

“ZE_RBTABRD

( \—7

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
reviewed, together with the management, the annual results, interim
results and related announcements including the disclosures, financial
reporting and the accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to

the submission to the Board approval;

discussed with management

on significant judgements affecting Group’s consolidated financial
statements and approved the appointment of external auditor; reviewed
and discussed the internal control report; reviewed and assessed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’ internal control and risk
management; and reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness during the audit

process.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a
going concern basis. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company's
annual results and consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment in annual/
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures. Saved as disclosed in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had engaged the
Group's external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"”), to provide
the following services and their respective fees charged are set out as
below:
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BEERABRBEEZENRIERE
ﬁo

B EmET
REE_T-_ZTF+_B=+—HILEFE>
FEEBAREIRKEGSHNERA ((BE
B7kIE)) 7 A B NS IZ BUAT - P iR (H AR S
RABREERIT :

2020
—ECTHE
HK$M
BEET

Type of services AR5 48 R
Audit services EERTE 17.6
Non-audit services JEBBET AR TS 4.4
Total EEt 22.0

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had also engaged
other auditors to provide audit services to certain subsidiaries of the
Group and the aggregated fees charged were HK$3.4 million.

BE_Z_EFT_A=+—HLEEE &
%@Wéﬁ%ﬁf@*ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%??@ﬂ
RMEES RS MREFFTRERIBER 3.4
BEAET
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
Board’s Responsibilities for the Accounts

The Board is responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.
In preparing these accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. The Directors consider
that the financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
all appropriate accounting standards and requirements and reflect
amounts that are based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed
and prudent judgement of the Board and the management. Saved as
disclosed in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 113 of this
Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control procedures of the Group and nominating and
monitoring external auditors. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE RBZEE

The Nomination Committee was established in 2010 with written terms ~ ZNAE B& R _E AR BUM 2k +IOFr & XS
of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix ATAIR -Z—ZFRIUIELEZE S 5]
14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the revised EAEHEBESLE - XAFER T —=FK
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee in 2013. The written M—ERBEZET 2K ETHERLE 25
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the 2= 5 & 193 42 &6 B 7% B S P 48 0 e AR A
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company's website. B 48 B] i B B8 o

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: RELERECHNTERSEIE

1. formulating the nomination policy for consideration by the Board 1. ®IERGHBRHEEZTETE R BiE
and implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board; EERENRLECS ;

2. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills, 2. ZE/LSFBAESFHRE - A

knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and ARk (BRI S @) I
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to AE ] A B & 245 7A B BY 10 25 2R BE T #5¢
complement the Company's corporate strategy; and HESSFLNEHRELES ) &

3. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board 3. Y EBEAHCEERIETIESTIME

members and select or make recommendations to the Board on AL E‘Iﬁ%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ)\iﬂﬂi%
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships. EdFttEEEERERR

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Ko~ {E®%ZE G BRI G EBILIFNTESEEM
Frankie Andrew, Independent Non-Executive Directors. Bt hEinsaicE e
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued) REEZEE @
The Nomination Committee convened six meetings during the year 1EELZEGRBE_Z_ZF+_F=+—
ended 31 December 2020 with the attendance of each member as HUEFEHBRAREZH ERELFIF)
follows: mE:
Role in Meetings
Nomination attended/
Name of Directors Position Committee  Eligible to attend
BHE/
ERgth A ARARZEGZHE FERUETRERY
Chen Chunguo Executive Director Chairman "
(appointed on 16 December 2020 and
resigned on 3 March 2021)
HEE HITES IR
RZE_EE+_B1+\HEZHE
B2 _—&=FH=H§HE)
Qin Yongming Executive Director Chairman 4/5
(resigned on 16 December 2020)
£ HITES IR
RZBZ2F+B+AEHED
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Member 6/6
BB BUFHTES =]
Ko Frankie Andrew Independent non-executive Director Member 5/5
(appointed on 19 February 2020
and resigned on 29 December 2020; re-appointed on
5 March 2021)
=35 BUFRTES =]
RZE_ZE_A+HNBEZEK
RIZ2ZEEF "B+ HBHE;
RIEZ—F=FHBEEHZM)
Yang Yali Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and resigned on
5 March 2021)
TR BUEHTES =
(RZZ2_E2E+_A-_THNBEZAE
RRZZ-—F=ARHFHT)
Wang Qiwei Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and resigned on 5
March 2021)
E55 BUFNTES =]
MZE_EE+_A_tHhBEZE
RRZZ-—F=A R AFT)
Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 6/6
(resigned on 29 December 2020)
REY BUFHTES =]
(RZZE_TE+"B-+NBFD
Zhu Hongchao Independent non-executive Director Member 0/1
(resigned on 19 February 2020)
i BUFRTES =
(RZZ2ZEEZF+ABFE)
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination RE&EZZ-ZFE+_A=+—HILLFEE

Committee has reviewed and discussed the composition, size and
structure of the Board, the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and re-election of Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

In considering the nomination of new directors, the Company will
propose the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will
review and make recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills
and experience of the candidates appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity,
in terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and
gender.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of
the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Nomination Committee considered the age, education background and
working experience of the candidates when selecting the executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all directors and senior
management of the Company, and the remuneration packages for all
executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic salary,
allowance and discretionary bonus.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration Committee
takes into account performance, contribution and responsibilities of the
individual. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees
are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account
factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual’s
performance during the year.

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of
executive Directors and senior management.

mNES g

FAT MR LR SO
ATAIR-E-BERUFNEEY W3]
FREERERE FHEEaNEARER
B 7 B S PR A e A A BV MBI PT 4 R B o

HINEEEREN HTERE A RA/HA
FREEERSREEBHFMBERRRE U
RERBZEPTEERSHREERE Z 7
BHEEFTRMUERERZZ-

HOEENHMEREELRFE  EZMREE
TEALHE

FMEZEEENREARTE ERMABEMF
AR - EEBNEFEEZHRURE
EREAXRR ATESRESHELFE
ST B BB WY IBTEAL ©

TEREEBRCTESFASREERBNFMNE
=o

Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
s =]:y) EREN HEREFIE
Basic salary To reflect the market value of Cash payment monthly Reviewed annually

each individual with market trend
BEXiHs REREZEAZTIHEE SARETNM SERTHBBIELIR
Allowance To attract and retain employees Reimbursement Market conditions
R 5| KikEES e hHIER

Discretionary
performance bonus

To motivate employees to deliver
high levels of performance of
the Company and individual
performance goals

HENEE /AR ABFHEKEN
RIFURGZEREARIR B R

B RITTEAL REAR

88 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Cash payment

Individual performance and
Company performance

BARBERAB KRR



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The following table shows the breakdown of the Directors’

remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2020:

Corporate Governance Report

HINEET
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EEERES

(II‘E)
—EE A= —

HIEFEZ 5 =2 BB DT

to the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr.
Qin Yongming and Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan of HK$18,000, HK$18,000 and

HK$15,000, respectively.

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
RIKER X X
fig HERER RREA HE A Hiti& st
(Note (a)
(HzHa)
Year Ended 31 December 2020: HE_E-SE+-B=+-HIEE:
Executive Directors BTESR
Tu Jianhua hRE - 40 28 - - 6.8
Chen Chunguo BEE
(appointed on16 December 2020 and WZEBZBE+-A+5H
resigned on 3 March 2021) BZIRR-2-_-%=B=A
) - 03 - - - 03
Qin Yongming BAH
(resigned on16 December 2020) (RZBZZE+_A+ 08D = 8.6 0.1 - 02 89
Rafael Heinrich Suchan Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(appointed on 1 March 2020) (R-Z_TE=A-HEZMD - 5.8 30 - - 838
Martin Simon Martin Simon
(appointed on 23 June 2020) (RZZZZERAZ+ZH
EZf) - 19 0.6 - - 25
Ding Zhiyi E&
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and (RZZZEE+ZRZ+NBEZ
resigned on 5 March 2021) ARRZ2Z-F=FRAFA) = = = = = =
Miao Yu BR
(appointed on 29 December 2020) (RZZZEE+ZFZ+AH
%é@ - = = = = =
Independent Non-Executive Directors BiFaiTES
Loke Yu g 03 - - - - 03
Qian Liping BB
(resigned on 29 December 2020) ( E_ZE+"B"+AA
Bl 03 - - - - 03
Ko Frankie Andrew nh%ﬁ
(appointed on 19 February 2020 and (RZZZZEZA+AH
resigned on 29 December 2020; re- RZARNR-F-FF
appointed on 5 March 2021) +ZAZTABEE,
R_B_-£=FRRAEEHER) 02 - - - - 02
Zhu Hongchao KAR
(resigned with on 19 February 2020) (RZZZZEZA+ABED 0.1 - - - - 0.1
Yang Yali Wﬁﬂﬂ
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and (RZEZZE+-FTNEEZR
resigned on 5 March 2021) E&H ZET-FZRRA#D - - - - - 7
Wang Qiwei I5f
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and B-B-FFE+-B_+NA%Z
resigned on 5 March 2021) ERR-_E_—-E-ARARE) - - - - - 5
Note a: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company made contributions Mizta: MNEBE_Z_ZF+_B=+—HLEE &

NE DRI 7R EREE S &~ ROK AR A& K Rafael
Heinrich Suchanft4 @& &R EABEHE
YEH 018,000 7T ~ 18,0007 7 K& 15,0007
=
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held six meetings. The Remuneration Committee
determined the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors,
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of directors
and assessed the performance of the executive Directors. Members of
the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each member are
as follows:

=S (&)
RBE_S-_TE+_A=+—HILEFE
R HHESERARAREH FHES

EEEWTESZHMBR SEFFHMNE
HOEFEFHERERKTIZAITESRN
KR -HNEEEZHERERZINELE
REINT

Role in Meetings
Remuneration attended/
Name of Director Position Committee  Eligible to attend
aHMEEE BHiE/
EEfS i 2B AERLEEERY
Loke Yu Independent non-executive Director Member 6/6
BBk BUFNTES =]
Ko Frankie Andrew Independent non-executive Director Chairman 5/5
(appointed on 19 February 2020
and resigned on 29 December 2020; re-appointed on
5 March 2021)
Sk BIFRTES IR
RZE_ZEE_A+HBEZEK
C:g ZE+"ATTAHBE;
A ZE_—F=ARAEENEM)
Yang Yali Independent non-executive Director Chairman 0/0
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and resigned on 5
March 2021)
IR BUFNTES IR
(RZB_EBE+_A-THhBESAE
RRZZEZ—F=B A HEFHT)
Wang Qiwei Independent non-executive Director Member 0/0
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and resigned on 5
March 2021)
5 BUFNTES =]
(RZB-_EBE+_A-THhBESAE
RRZZEZ—F=B A HFHT)
Qian Liping Independent non-executive Director Member 6/6
(resigned on 29 December 2020)
HET BUFRTES =
(RZEZZ2E+_A-t+hHAED
Zhu Hongchao Independent non-executive Director Member 0N
(resigned on 19 February 2020)
wAtB BUFNTES =]

(RZB-2E_B+hBFD

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee has discussed and recommended to the Board for approval
of the Directors’ and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group
for the year of 2020, and the bonus payments to the Directors and
senior management.
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

In order to cope with the Group’s development needs, enhance
scientific planning and decision-making, promote the effectiveness
of material investment decision-makings and improve the corporate
governance structure of the Group, the Company established the
Strategy and Investment Committee in 2015. The written terms of
reference of the Strategy and Investment Committee have been
subsequently adopted in 2016 and are available on the Company's
website.

The principal functions and responsibilities of the Strategy and
Investment Committee are to (i) study on the development strategies
and planning; and (ii) advise on the decision-makings on material
investments and capital operation of the Company.

The duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee include the
following aspects:

(i) to act as a delegate for the Board generally;

(i) to make decisions and pass resolutions, and to exercise all powers
of the Board on all matters of the Company in relation to its daily
operations and investment activities, including any non-connected
transaction if the applicable percentage ratios calculated under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules less than 5%; and

(iii)  to make recommendations to the Board concerning matters
of corporate significance not otherwise dealt by any other
committees of the Board, recommendations must be submitted
to the Board for approval in respect of all transactions if the
applicable percentage ratios calculated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules equal to or are more than 5%.

Notwithstanding that the Strategy and Investment Committee is
entitled to exercise all powers of the Board on all matters of the
Company in relation to its daily operations and investment activities,
recommendations must be submitted to the Board for approval for
all transactions with a percentage ratio equal to or higher than 5%
according to the testing result of the Stock Exchange.
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
(continued)

HREKLELZEE (B

Members of the strategy and Investment Committee are as follows: HERAKLELZEE 2 NBREBUT !

Role in
Strategy and
Investment

Name of Committee members Position Committee
e N EHRELE

ZEEgREHSE i} ZREEZHE

Tu Jianhua & 22 Executive Director Member

HiTEER 33}

Rafael Heinrich Suchan Executive Director Member
(appointed on 1 March 2020) RITES (3=
RZBZZF=F—HEZD)

Qin Yongming Z& kB4 Executive Director Member
(resigned on 16 December 2020) HiTE=Z &
RZBZZFE+A+/ABED

Chen Chunguo BREE Executive Director Chairman
(appointed on 16 December 2020 and resigned on 3 March 2021) HTES IR
MZEZ2FE+ A+ BEZERRZEZ—F=A=B#fA

Martin Simon Executive Director Chairman
(appointed on 23 June 2020) RITESR £
RZBZ2FEAA-T=HEZD

Di Zhiyi T 586 Executive Director Member
(appointed on 29 December 2020 and resigned on 5 March 2021) BT ma
RZBZZF+ A+ NBEZERN S —F=ARH#HD

Miao Yu &R Executive Director Member
(appointed on 29 December 2020) HiTE=Z 4=}
(RZBZ2E+_AZ+NBEZMD)

Ko Frankie Andrew B n38 Independent non-Executive Director Member
(appointed on 5 March 2021) BIFHITES (3=
MZE_—F£=FRAHEZM)

Goh Kian Guan 24 Chief Investment Officer Member

BEREE ma

PRICING COMMITTEE

The Pricing Committee, which currently comprises, Mr. Rafael Heinrich
Suchan, Mr. Martin Simon, Mr. Miao Yu, Mr. Marc Breidenbach, Dr.
Haehne Gerd, Mr. Kian Guan Goh, Mr. Udo Langhans and Mr. Maier
Tobias, has been established and delegated with the operations of
the Group's policy regarding dealings in metal futures contracts (the
“Policy”). It determines the range of metal futures contracts that the
Group may enter into during the month. On regular basis, the Pricing
Committee reviews the open positions of the Group and determines (i)
the hedging requirements; (i) the quantity and the price of the metal
futures contracts that the Group is going to long and short; (iii) the risk
management strategy and approach, making sure the Group has an
effective risk monitoring system.
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PRICING COMMITTEE (continued)

Following a review of the current business operations, internal controls,
risk management and policies and practices regarding dealings in
metal futures contracts of the Group, in 2018, the Board adopted
a commodity price risk hedging policy which the Board believes is
more suitable for the current operating conditions of the Group. The
commodity price risk hedging policy was subsequently updated in 2020
and 2021, and is available on the Company’s website.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Pricing Committee
has reviewed the Group's physical stock price and hedging transactions.
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The Pricing Committee convened twelve meetings during the year REE_Z_ZE+_H=+—HILEE,
ended 31 December 2020. Members of the Pricing Committee are as EEZEEHART_—_RNEH - -EEBEZEE
follows: ZRBREBWT
Role in
Name of Committee members Position Pricing Committee
" i
REEMENSR A e
Chen Chu?géj Bﬁ% S— d on 3 March 2021) Exggu%\% Director Chairgarﬁr]
pointéd on 16 December and resigned on 3 March 2021 2y
e g e g o1 e

Qm( Yongmdmg %17 Dﬂ ber 2020) Exggu%\% Director Chairgarﬁr]
resigned on 16 December 2020) 2y
R B

Raf(ael Hell:[\l’léh Suﬂvln . Exggu%\% Director Mer}%?gr
appointed on 1 March 202 T =
i e Layiley £ 150

Martin Simon 23 June 2020 %\}gfﬁaﬁmaﬁcwal Officer Mer}%?gr
appointed on 23 June 2020) BT B =
e L e

D|ng Zhiyi TFSQ’&’ . Execufive Director Member
bppomted on D_e ember 2020 and remgAngd on 5 March 202‘15?{* HT=% =1

“ECRE+ AT HERERR T -E-AaH#D)

MI?O Yu Eatﬂg b . Exeg{%\% Director Member
appointed on 29 December a7 |
G R ey £

Marc Breldtenbach23J S Céh’Le_f %ejgting Officer Mergj%)gr

pointed on 23 June 2020) = |
PRI e
Haehne Gerd Chief Executive Office of Germany and Mempber
hppomted on 3 March 2020 Poland region mE
{2 ZE-A-AEZD) BRI THAE
Kian GuantGdo 5:'1 J%JF 2020) Cgh}%g%néegment Officer Merg%gr
ointedon 1 Ju BE =2
PR )
Udo Langhans Head of Commodity Risk Management Member
EmEREEEE 335}

Ma\er Tobias Chief O%era Ing, Officer of Germany region Member

hppomted on Januar 2021) EEMEEFEEER 33}
- EZ1)

Zhao Wei 5 Senior Operations Director of Member
(resqned on 18 December 2020) Greater Chma region M
RZZZ2F+_A+\H#HD AHERBREERES

BABREMERAT —ZE-E&E&H 93



Corporate Governance Report

EEERRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board and management

The Board is responsible for overseeing and ensuring the Group
has established and maintained an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, including reviewing their
effectiveness where as management is responsible for the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Company leverages on the expertise offered by internal and
external professionals to develop its internal control system, which
includes a well-established corporate structure and an organisation with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to assist the Group in meeting its strategic objectives. These systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Framework

The Group has established an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”)
framework to assist the Group in managing its risks. The Group’s ERM
framework includes the following key elements:

(1)  Risk Identification — A Risk Universe fits for the Group's business
model has been established. Relevant risks faced by the Group
have been identified and the risks are classified into four types,
namely, strategic, operational, financial reporting and compliance
risk;

(2)  Risk Assessment — A Risk Workshop amongst key management
members was conducted to assess and priorities the risks of
the Group. The risks are assessed in terms of the likelihood of
their occurrence and the significance of their impact by the key
management of the Group;

(3) Risk Mitigation — A Risk Owner is assigned to each key risk
identified. Each Risk Owner is responsible for the risk assigned.
Risk mitigation actions are tailored and established to address the
risks; and
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Risk Management Framework (continued)

(4)  Risk Monitoring and Reporting — Risk Owner is responsible for
ensuring the risk mitigation plan is executed and implemented
properly by appropriate parties (e.g. with appropriate measures/
adequate policies and procedures in place). Internal Audit
has a role to evaluate and assess if the risk mitigation plans
are designed and operated effectively by management. The
development and the status of the ERM program is reported to
the Audit Committee on a regularly basis.

The implementation of the Group’s ERM framework was assisted by
management, the Group’s Pricing Committee, Strategy and Investment
Committee and Internal Audit Department. These framework and setup
enables the Group to ensure any new and emerging risk relevant to the
Group's operation is promptly identified and managed.

Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Department is to provide independent
assurance to the Board and executive management on the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls for the
Group. The Group’s Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-and-
control based audit approach. The annual work plan of the Group's
Internal Audit Department covers major activities and processes of
the Group's business units whilst audit plan is reviewed and agreed
by the Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of
work, the Group's Internal Audit Department conducts other review
and investigative work as may be required. All audit reports are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members of executive
and senior management. Audit issues are tracked and followed up for
proper implementation, with progress reported to the Audit Committee,
executive and senior management periodically. The risk management
and internal control system of the Group is reviewed and assessed
on an on-going basis by the Executive Directors, and will be further
reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the Audit Committee
and the Board.
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EEERRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2020,
covering the material financial, operational and compliance controls,
and considered the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee has also conducted an annual review of the
adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience and training programs
of the Group's internal audit staff and accounting and financial
reporting staff and considered that the staffing is adequate and the
staffs are competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities.

(@ The Board shall be ultimately responsible for ensuring that
adequate and effective systems are present to maintain
compliance with the continuous disclosure obligations of the
Company.

(b)  The Board shall delegate the routine oversight of the Company’s
disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Team, which is responsible
for:

(i) ensuring proper systems and controls are in place to collect,
review and verify potential inside information;

(i)  reviewing potential inside information and deciding which
information must be disclosed;

(i)  deciding whether the Company may delay publication of
inside information;

(iv)  vetting and clearing announcements or other public
disclosures (such as presentation materials for analysts’
meetings);

(v)  deciding whether other action, such as the seeking of

suspension of trading pending clarification of uncertainties,
as may be necessary;
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EEERES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [EfEEEKRAEPEE ()

(continued)
Review of Risk Management and Internal Control BRRAREERAIEIENFRE @
Effectiveness (continued)
(b)  (continued) (b)y &
(vi)  keeping proper records of all the information received and (vi) REMBBEBEBRKRELRENH

decisions made;

(vii)  where necessary, engaging financial, legal or other advisers (vii)
to assist the Disclosure Team to carry out its duties;

(viii) ensuring that employees are educated on the policy and (viii)
internal reporting process;

(ix)  supervising the Company’s compliance with continuous (ix)
disclosure obligations; and

(x)  establishing periodic financial reporting procedures so that )
key financial and operating data is identified and escalated
in a structured and timely manner.
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()  The Disclosure Team comprises the following members or their  (c) WEEAHHMUTNHENKFRRRAERR:

delegates:

() Executive Directors; @)

(i) Chief Financial Officer; and (if)

(i)  Other members as the Board may designate from time to (iif)
time.
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EEERRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness (continued)

As soon as the staff become aware of the potential inside information,
they must immediately report to the compliance department who
will then report to the Responsible Director of the Disclosure Team in
writing. The report (the “Report”) must be sent to the Responsible
Director by hand or email and marked “Private and Confidential” on
the cover. The Report should set out details of the inside information
including:

(@)  a general description of the matter;
(b)  the name(s) of the party(ies) involved;
(c) the relevant date(s) of the event(s) or transaction(s);

(d) the status of the matter (e.g. negotiations still in progress/
preliminary negotiations/final stage)

(e)  the amount and other major term(s) involved; and

(f)  if applicable, the Report should also attach the draft agreement
to be entered into by any member of the Group as well as any
other document which may be of relevance.

Upon receipt of the Report, the Responsible Director shall, forward the
Report with relevant materials to the Disclosure Team. The Disclosure
Team shall then conduct preliminary assessment of the information
received, and after consultation with the relevant professional advisers
of the Company and then report to the Board of Directors.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) by way of cash or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in
recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate in
the Company's profits, and at the same time, to ensure the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The Company's decision
to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount of
such dividends will depend upon, among other things, the current and
future operations, financial condition, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group, as well as dividends received from the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates, which in turn will depend
on the ability of those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend.
In addition, any final dividends for a financial year will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders. The declaration and payment of
dividends by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the
laws of Bermuda, the laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s articles of
association, bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue
to review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify this Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that any
dividend will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Shareholders general enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

FERERAR

As at 31 December 2020 R-_ZE-_ZF+_"F=+—H

2020 2019
ZEIEHF —E-hF
Notes HK$M HK$M
Iz BEATT BEBAT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings Ef/s 31 178.3 226.4
Lease liabilities HEas 32 3423 569.4
Retirement benefit obligations BARERNEE 33 29.7 27.3
Other payables Hih g =18 34 102.6 96.6
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFRISIN AR 21 363.8 342.8
1,016.7 1,262.5
Current liabilities Bt =R
Trade, bills and other payables B ERREMENRIE 34 1,689.5 1,066.9
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIS IR Ea & 93.7 101.2
Borrowings EE 31 2,120.1 2,569.0
Lease liabilities HESRE 32 202.2 191.7
Amounts due to related parties FE 1 BRI B 5 718 38 63.4 37.5
Derivative financial instruments TTEERIA 25 59.7 30.2
4,228.6 3,996.5
Liabilities directly associated BFEHEBEEEZAERD
with assets held for sale a@ 27 163.4 -
4,392.0 3,996.5
Total liabilities aEMaE 5,408.7 5,259.0
Total equity and liabilities LR a(EEE 9,872.9 10,190.0

HNBI21E28EMNGREVHBREN-E
T —HF-ZA=t+—HEESSHAEREEE
i WA THEFAREE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 121 to 285 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan

REBRELE Rafael Heinrich Suchan¥c4&
Director Director
EZE EE

LR B ER BRI ETEN M E— 0

with the accompanying notes. Ao

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e EER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_=FF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

FAFIRREMN
Other Non-
Share reserves  Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 29) losses Total interests equity
ELA G . \ . -
e (F¥z£29) 5B st JRERER afem
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEETL BEETL BEET BEET BEET BEETL
At 1 January 2019 RIZ2—NE—B—H 16.1 6,720.2 (1,561.0) 5,175.3 (29.4) 5,145.9
Comprehensive loss 2EBE
Loss for the year FRER - - (128.7) (128.7) (5.1) (133.8)
Other comprehensive loss Hitzmea
Currency translation differences  /ESMERFIESZ
on foreign operations ERESR - (90.7) - (90.7) (1.7) (92.4)

Change in the fair value of BATESARMZE
finandial assets at fair value Bz EmEEL
through other comprehensive AT {EZH) MiRRE

income, net of tax - (6.1) - (6.1) - (6.1)
Remeasurement of post- BNt EREES
employment benefit &z ENER
obligations, net of tax MkKE - 4.1 = 4.1) - 4.
Share of other comprehensive  [E{EGE ¥ E M
loss of joint ventures 2EBE - (4.4) = (4.4) - (4.4)
Total other comprehensive loss ~ FEREM 2 EGEEE:
for the year, net of tax MeRE = (105.3) = (105.3) 1.7) (107.0)
Total comprehensive loss FREEBBER
for the year, net of tax nsKE = (105.3) (128.7) (234.0) 6.8) (240.8)

Transactions with shareholders in - £ (URE S 1)
their capacity as shareholders ETZRS

Contributions from non- FEREDTE
controlling interests R . - - - - 21.7 21.7
Deregistration of a subsidiary ~ =ES§% A FEZMRIER
with non-controlling interests ~ ZF/AH] - - - - 4.2 4.2
Total transactions with SRR CURRS M)
shareholders in their capacity as #1727 X 7485
shareholders - - - - 25.9 25.9
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NE
+-A=+—H 16.1 6,614.9 (1,689.7) 49413 (10.3) 4,931.0
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Ko ZER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 HE_E_ZF+_HA=+—HIL-FE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

FAFRREM
Other Non-
Share reserves Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 29) losses Total interests equity
Hithfi
R (fiz29)  R:HEH ast ks e
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BRAT EBREx AEBExT BRAT BEREx  BEERD
At 1 January 2020 RZZ2ZZF5—-F-H 16.1 6,614.9 (1,689.7) 4,941.3 (10.3) 4,931.0
Comprehensive loss ZAEBE
Loss for the year FREE - - (848.1) (848.1) (16.1) (864.2)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) E-fth 2 Bz / (#518)
Currency translation differences  /ESMERFIESZ
on foreign operations EREL = 387.4 = 387.4 2.1 389.5
Change in the fair value of BATEFARMZE
financial assets at fair value Wiz EMEEZ
through other comprehensive AT {EEE) MiRE

income, net of tax - (0.9) - (0.9) - (0.9)
Remeasurement of post- BNt EREER

employment benefit &z EHNER,

obligations, net of tax MkKE - (0.8) - (0.8) = (0.8)
Share of other comprehensive ~ FE{EGE ¥ E M

loss of joint ventures 2EER - (1.3) - (1.3) = (1.3)

Total other comprehensive FREMEARRERE

income for the year, kB
net of tax - 384.4 - 384.4 2.1 386.5

Total comprehensive income/(loss) ERZE W,/ (F58)
for the year, net of tax 8% MkRE - 384.4 (848.1) (463.7) (14.0) (471.7)

=)

Transactions with shareholders in Eﬁﬁx% (URER517)
their capacity as shareholders I PA

Contributions from non- FERERTE
controlling interests ‘ - - - - 10.9 10.9
Deregistration of a subsidiary ST AT - 10.5 (10.5) = = =
Total transactions with Hy% (URER517)
shareholders in their capacity as ~ #{72 X 7 48%
shareholders - 10.5 (10.5) - 10.9 10.9
At 31 December 2020 “EEE
+:)% === 16.1 7,009.8 (2,548.3) 4,477.6 (13.4) 4,464.2

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read =3t 4x & 18 i 4 B 2 FIE B 5 B A9 B 55 — 6 B9
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. =0
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ARSHRETER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZE_EF+_A=+—HI-FE

2020 2019
Notes HK$M HK$M
M 5E BEET BEAT
Cash flows from operating activities & & EEI FF IS IRE R
Cash generated from operations KEMPIRE 40 953.7 803.6
Interest paid BfHE (227.8) (214.8)
Tax paid, net BMRIEFEE (59.8) (60.0)
Net cash generated from REREFIRIRE B
operating activities 666.1 528.8
Cash flows from investing activities IR E;EHFRERE MR
Purchases of property, BEME -BEMEE
plant and equipment (228.5) (336.5)
Purchases of intangible assets BEERTEE (3.4) (5.6)
Proceeds from disposals of property, —HEYZE BERZE
plant and equipment MRERAEEEZ
and right-of-use assets FrigAIE 40 177.9 267.9
Placement of pledged bank deposits T?\E%&ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%’x (111.1) (180.1)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits #2EX 2K IFEEIT 17X 186.8 300.5
Decrease in fixed return investment [ € [0 #R &% & E[D] 90.6 135.5
Proceeds from disposals of financial ~HEFABRZ EREEM
assets through profit or loss and FFAEMENGE Z BE
financial assets trough other FRigAIE
comprehensive income 1.3 -
Investments in joint ventures KEGERE (7.9) (4.1)
Proceeds from disposal of joint é%ﬂé%ﬁ’\]
ventures PSR T 8.0 -
Dividends received from joint H&HYAﬁﬁ:\%Hﬁ%
ventures 27.6 37.4
Other dividends received B EAMAR S 2.5 4.8
Acquisition of business in prior year, BEFEEWEER
net of cash acquired M EWEIRE (3.1) (4.7)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash HEFAF
disposed of MNEFELERS - 25.5
Proceeds from disposal of assets held HEFIFHEZEN
for sale PRiSFRIE 21.6 =
Interest received BIHE 5.4 6.8
Net cash generated from KREIEEARTE
investing activities REFEE 167.7 247 .4
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHERER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 HE—"Z - ZF+_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—EEHE —E-NF
Notes HKS$M HK$M
M 5E BEET BEEAT
Cash flows from financing activities Bt & ZEIFF15IR £ R
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERZFTERIE 537.6 731.3
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITER (552.9) (1,287.0)
Proceeds from other borrowings HMERZ FRERIE - 53.1
Repayments of other borrowings BEAEMMER (488.1) -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEEaR (242.3) (198.7)
Contributions from non-controlling JFERER TR
interests 10.9 21.7
Net cash used in financing activities Bt & ZSFRAAIRE 35 (734.8) (679.6)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzREMRREEEEE
beginning of the year 784.8 697.1
Net increase in cash and HERIREEBEIER
cash equivalents 18 N5 EE 99.0 96.6
Reclassification to assets held for sale EHDEEZIEHEEZE 27 (1.7) -
Exchange differences on cash and ReEMREEEEEZ
cash equivalents PE 2 = 25 31.7 (8.9)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZHEERREEEER
at end of the year 26 913.8 784.8

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in iR &IRS & 7R FE B GEMT A MY s — (B
conjunction with the accompanying notes. B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chiho Environmental Group Limited (“the Company”) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the principal
business of resources recycling, involving recycling of mixed
metal, end-of-life vehicle ("ELV"), waste electrical and electronic
equipment (“WEEE"), wasted oil and production of aluminium
ingots from zorba in Asia, Europe and North America. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42.

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s ultimate holding company is Loncin Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Loncin Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), and the Company’s
immediate holding company is USUM Investment Group Hong
Kong Limited (“USUMHK"), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Loncin Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu
Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), an executive director of the Company.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXREHBERME

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

MEZFECUBREFEANIE
A HRHEN T RIFZARA Z
EHRERFARYFEEERER-

AR
RRABNEREVBBRRRERNE

2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's

BRNEBMHREER (EE
MHREER]) MBI FREES L
TRAKREBRTFEF6228
ZEARBERERM - REMT
BERTDDIRBEERAERR > I
IR AT EYEREVIZAFES A
Hit2EWEZ EMEERLA
FESFARDZ EMEERTR
BE (BENEIR) &TEMGE
BEUEHERT

RAENTEEBMBHREERIY
BREABRBAETERGSG
S TREEEENERAER
BUE FTECRIBAE T 1F L H i o

accounting policies.

211 FEKSERE
KNEE T R518/FRE864.2
BEAT - NE_ZTHF
+ZA=+—H &&H
BEERBEEFEI18.1
BEET -RER HE™
#2,298. 458 B &
2,120 BEEBBTABZE
—EF+“HA=+—HiE
@B NI RE
B MERSRRSSE
EIEBEA913.8E 88

JT ©

2.1.1 Going concern basis

The Group reported a net loss of HK$864.2 million.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current
assets of HK$118.1 million. As at the same date,
it had borrowings of HK$2,298.4 million, of which
HK$2,120.1 million are current borrowings due
within twelve months from 31 December 2020, while
its cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$913.8
million only.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAXGHEERBE (B
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE ()

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued) 211 FEKSSHE (8

Included in current borrowings as at 31 December
2020 was a syndicated term loan (the “Syndicated
Term Loan”) with an outstanding principal amount of
HK$1,511.8 million, originally scheduled to be fully
repayable on 31 March 2021.

In addition, bank loans of HK$150.8 million (“Bank
Loans”) have also been classified as current liabilities
as at 31 December 2020 as they may be immediately
payable due to non-compliance of certain restrictive
financial undertaking, of which a forbearance
agreement has been entered with the relevant bank
subsequent to 31 December 2020 (see note (ii)
below).

The above conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued)

In view of such circumstances, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group, taking into account
the potential impact arising from the COVID-19
pandemic if any, and its available sources of financing
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.
Certain plans and measures have been taken to
mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its
financial position which include, but not limited to,
the following:

(i)  The Group repaid an amount of HK$116.3
million of the Syndicated Term Loan
subsequent to 31 December 2020, resulting
in a remaining outstanding loan principal of
HK$1,395.5 million as of the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements.
In March 2021, the Group has successfully
agreed with the lenders of the Syndicated
Term Loan to extend the maturity date of
the Syndicated Term Loan to January 2022
with two partial repayment instalments of
HK$155.1 million each on or before end of
June and September 2021, respectively, and
that certain undertakings of the Group are
revised. The Group will continue to monitor its
compliance with the restrictive financial and
non-financial undertaking requirements and
the Directors expect the Group would be in
compliance throughout the remaining term of
the Syndicated Term Loan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group repaid an amount of HK$107.9
million of the Bank Loans subsequent to 31
December 2020. In March 2021, the Group has
entered into an agreement with the relevant
bank for forbearance from exercising their
rights to demand immediate repayment of
the remaining balance until the earlier of full
repayment or August 2021.

The Group is in advance negotiations with
various financial institutions in Europe and Asia
for a new secured long-term borrowing with a
principal amount of no less than HK$1,200.0
million (approximately Euro 130.0 million). The
Group received proposed term sheets but has
not entered into any binding agreement with
the financial institutions to date. Management
is confident that the new long-term borrowing
will be obtained in due course.

The Group is pursuing the disposals of certain
idle and non-performing land and buildings
in specific regions to raise additional cash to
finance the repayment of borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued)

(v The Group maintains continuous
communication with other banks of the
Group and believes that the existing other
banking facilities available to the Group will be
successfully renewed when their current terms
expire given the long standing relationship the
Group has with the relevant banks and the fact
that majority of these facilities are secured by
the Group's properties and other assets.

(vi)  The Group continues its efforts to ramp up
the production capability of the new recycling
facilities in Asia by deploying sufficient
additional working capital, implement measures
in Europe and North America to generate
cash flow from operations, and further control
capital and operating expenditures to strength
its working capital and mitigate the potential
negative impact of COVID-19 pandemic.

(vii) The Group is actively looking for other sources
of financing including other debt or equity
financing to enhance the capital structure and
reduce the overall financing expenses.

The Directors have assessed the Group's cash flow
projection covering a period of not less than twelve
months from 31 December 2020. They are of the
opinion that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due
within the next twelve months from the date of the
consolidated balance sheet. Accordingly, the Directors
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
Group's consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAXGHEERBE (B
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE ()

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued) 211 FEKESRE (&

Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainty
exists as to whether the Group can achieve the plans
and measures described in (iii) to (vii) above. Whether
the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern would depend upon the Group's ability
to successfully secure a new long-term borrowing
in Europe or Asia, dispose of certain idle and non-
performing land and buildings in specific regions,
renew the existing other banking facilities when
their current terms expire, successfully ramp up the
production capability of the new recycling facilities in
Asia and to generate cash inflow from the Group's
operations, and secure various sources of financing as
and when required.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAXIHEERBE (B
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 RREE @
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.2 G BREHKRINE
(a) Amended standards and conceptual framework (a) FEEIRANHIASANESTERY

adopted by the Group RS HESE
The following amended standards and FEEBR _Z_Z2F—
conceptual framework have been adopted by B—BHEzBRGBHNME
the Group for the first time for the financial FEBRIRM T35 &ME]
year beginning on or after 1 January 2020: RS IESR ©
Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

Financial Reporting 2018

"2 \FEUBRENHSER KETHMBRENESIER

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material
(Amendments)

EBGHENFIRRERES BEAUNER
R85k (IB5T4)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and Hedge Accounting
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

EBGTERE3N FEME  HAHPGE
WEEAET R E BT
HEERAFTR (BETA)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business
BRYMBREEDEIR EBNER
(B5T )
The amended standards and conceptual EXFRINZ BT 2R
framework listed above did not have any BSERT B BTFE
significant impact on the amounts recognised PR sl 2 & REE M E R E
in prior years and are not expected to AEE BEHAIFEHE
significantly affect the current or future years. RIS ARRFEEMERT
%o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

The following new and amended standards and
annual improvements have been issued but are
not effective for the financial year beginning
on 1 January 2020 and have not been early

adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards
and annual improvements are not effective for
financial year beginning on 1 January 2020,
and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements:

AREHM R RN

n'I'ESZ Bﬁ*ﬂ% = (:I\E)

RNEE (B
SETBEREBRINE (B)

(b) X TFRIETRAZEET

EA R B
EF MR E =
E-FFEAH
BB B L
KL AL
12 B

DR #0187 B A& 5T
ERA MR EENE
R_EBE_ZT&E—HR
—HRBWE BE
EREM BRER
REEZEREY
B ©

Effective for accounting

periods beginning
on or after
RUTFR#SASZ#%
R R & st AR £
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Leases 1 June 2020
BRMBREEN S 165 L) HE “2TZEXA—H
HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 1 January 2021
and HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
B G ERIE395  EBUH M=EENF-FRE —Z2-—%—H—H

REENEIR ERUBRSE
ERFTIR BAMBRS
EHBIRREBIBRE
ERF 165 (5T %)

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)
GEHE51E0% (&)

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
EBMBREEN_T-N\EE
“ECTERRNEENE

HKAS 16 (Amendments)
ERAGHER 165 (BFIE)

Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations 1 January 2022

HERFHAHNEHEE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

EENRREER S NEE
BHRNEELE

Property, Plant and Equipment
VEN e

BEAEREEERAR

“E__#-A—H
1 January 2022
“B_"#-HF-H

1 January 2022
"2 "f%-F-H
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e HRR N

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

EXG

stEUCRIEE (8)

21 RNEE (@)

The following new and amended standards and (b)
annual improvements have been issued but are

not effective for the financial year beginning

on 1 January 2020 and have not been early

adopted by the Group (continued)

2.1.2 Gt BEREESRIKE (B

LUFHTET RASIEET
LR FEHE
E %ﬁﬁ GAEYS)= -
E_gF—H—H
FEL6 897 B F FZ
FKAEY  BFEEH
KIEFHRA (B)

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
RUTRMBSHzE
R m g s R AR
HKAS 37 (Amendments) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 1 January 2022
BEGERNETH (BFTA) B SARERANREE g =
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Business Combinations 1 January 2022
BBUHREEEN (BTH) £BaH ZZIZE—-fF—H
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2023
BRI EINER (BTH) FHREHNZ5 B
HK Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification 1 January 2023
by the Borrowers if a Term Loan that contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
EEREER (CE2EH) BHRRNEF - ERAHELIREXEEGTYN —ZZ=F-A-H
EHRERHNNE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
EBRBREENF175H RBEL “Z-=F-A-H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BEAMBREERE105%K
BE st E8F285E (BT )

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

REEAHEMEARFEERE BN
BEEHERTE

The above new and amended standards and
annual improvements are not expected to have
a material impact on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEARTHHEHRE &
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 HFRARAKREZEE
accounting
2.2.1 Subsidiaries 2.2.1 FAH

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

EERFEEEARAE

FRAEAEEHERR
EhEEE (BEGET
B - ErERRZSEE
RS KR B 2 [ 3R 2 Jal B
UERAEEIHR Em
WHENBBENZER
ZRADFEILEL®RE
FEFREFZER F
ANEREHEERER
EREHEGAEAR I
RIERIEZILEZERETH
e AR

rERERRBEEERD
EBAHAR (5£2.3) ©

EENRBBNRZ 4
FRARERITZ W@ T
DUk EH - REIBHEET S
i RIS AREBR
MEHEREEENRBE:.
FRABEZE S BERE
WEEN  UERARE
B BER—H o

FREAEERRKRERZIE
ZEREmE DRGSR
R EEERHEHBEER RS
RESHRRGEEEES
BRANERZES-

—z-—zgg 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEAXIHHEHE (8)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 HGRERKREZESE @
accounting (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements 2.2.2 ERIHBEREK
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost FRABZEE T LU A3
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable PRBETR A BIER
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are BEZEERLMAFA
accounted for by the Company on the basis of BEBHAABREUW
dividend received and receivable. T FEWRG BABR
Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries BWFREFRBINKE
is required upon receiving a dividend from these BomikEBBETFABNE
investments if the dividend exceeds the total ¢ EEIREABEAN 2 EmR S
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period mEE NITEREUBTRR
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of NEERAEBBRETELGRS
the investment in the separate financial statements MBBREAWKE R FE
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated E(BEEE) WRkREE:
financial statements of the investee’s net assets Al B BRI EETH
including goodwill. BRI o

2.2.3 Associates 223 BERQR
Associates are all entities over which the Group MEAREAERHER
has significant influence but not control or joint BAREHMEEGIRES
control. This is generally the case where the Group HAZERIEZFFEER-
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. —RERT AEEER
Investments in associates are accounted for using 20% E50% 1% ZEH#E o R B
the equity method of accounting (Note 2.2.5), after BRNBIZRERY TR
initially being recognised at cost. KRB FRAERGE

JEBIBR (BM95E2.2.5) ©

2.2.4 Joint arrangements 2.2.4 5 2HE
The Group's joint arrangements are classified KREBWESEZHSEA
as either joint operations or joint ventures. The SRBBFLSEPEH
classification depends on the contractual rights and MLEREREE /A4
obligations of each investor, rather than the legal R EREE MIESE LR
structure of the joint arrangement. HEZ SE@Boeigo
The Group has assessed the nature of its joint AEBDTFEESEZH
arrangements and determined them to be joint THB N ETZESE
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using ZHAEGEDE FE D
the equity method. Interests in joint ventures are HERAREEEAE RS
accounted for using the equity method (Note RS B i 2L BART S IR B
2.2.5), after initially being recognised at cost in the At EEARENE
consolidated balance sheet. R FEREDEEARE (M
$2.2.5) ¢
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEARTHHEHRE &
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 HFRERKREZEE @)
accounting (continued)
2.2.5 Equity method 2.2.5 %

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.11.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

2.2.6 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXGHBERBE (&

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations 23 EBESH

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Where businesses are acquired and fair values of the net
assets of the acquired business are finalised within 12
months of the acquisition date, all fair value adjustments
are recorded with effect from the date of acquisition and
consequently may result in the restatement of previously
reported financial results.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"). The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Committee that makes strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss within
‘other (losses)/gains, net'.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(o)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Land and Buildings

T REF

Plant and machinery

B B e 1% 2%

Office furniture and equipment
MANERBEREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘other (losses)/gains, net’ in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction
of buildings and the costs of plant and machinery. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction-
in-progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to other property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated in Note 2.6.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising land and
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the
Group. Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets or
disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable. All
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal
group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether
the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current non-financial assets classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and
fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and right-of-use assets classified as held
for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHBEEE @)

POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Intangible assets

210 EREE

(a) Goodwill () BEE
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries WEFABIMEENEE
represents the excess of the consideration transferred, IEFTE RN E ~ W B
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the FAERIEESIM w5
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any R4 S B8 75 el 2 B i 2
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair RWEHHNAFE B
value of the identified net assets acquired. BEFWERHFEER
FEMNEEE
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill AETRENR  REH
acquired in a business combination is allocated to EHEFWREZEESERE
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or TEHREEHBRENES R
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the 2ERBNEEREELES
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of il (MBEEEXEN) &
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the ERZEEIEHECE
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill IERNE EEM S B
is monitored for internal management purposes. NERFEZREE@-
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level. FERNEENHEEE
o
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken mESFRAEE HH
annually or more frequently if events or changes in HIREfR ST ERE
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The &) B A AEH IR EE
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is AIEEEE HE 88
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the FENREEEEMNE
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of HEESHEA W OSEEFL
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately B UPI IR [El £ 5B R 52 A
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed. BEEAAFERLEERS
ZREERE M E
MEEIAHEST BEE
EN ek
(b) Computer software (b) ERGERH
Computer software acquired is capitalised on the BABKRMZERSRE
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use HAERBRHEFIEE Z A
the specific software. These costs are amortised over AEETFTUER L -ZE
their estimated useful lives of 5 years. R A Th ¥4t 5t BT (68 A3 4 BA
7SN o

150 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets

(9]

(d)

(e)

Brand names, patents and licenses

Separately acquired brand names, patents and
licences are shown at historical cost. Brand
names, patents and licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Certain brand names, patents and
licences which have a finite useful life are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of certain brand
names, patents and licenses over their estimated
useful lives of 8 to 20 years. Certain brand names
have indefinite useful life and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
assessment is undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment.

Customers’ relationship and suppliers’
relationship

Customers’ relationship and suppliers’ relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The customers’
relationship and suppliers’ relationship which have a
finite useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of the customers’ relationship and
suppliers’ relationship of 5 to 20 years.

Non-competition agreement

Non-competition agreement is recognised at fair
value at the agreement date. Non-competition
agreement has a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
loss. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the agreement term of 2 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

2.12.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXGHBERESE (@

POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

212 KERHEMEMEE (B

2.12.1 Classification (continued) 2121 948 (@)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other

HREATENBNE
R E L ELEN

comprehensive income. For investments in equity me  HME2EKE e 2R
instruments that are not held for trading, this ERFIEFEENRETAN
will depend on whether the Group has made an KRE REFTEEERRS
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition BRI LB EHAA
to account for the equity investment at fair value BEIERE A FE

through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

AE A2 W g A3k
EUNGE

AERESELEEBU
EEZFEENEHEL
HAEREFREEHD
e

2.12.2 Recognition and derecognition 2.12.2 FESR R R PREEST
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets BREBETMEENRS
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the H B AEEEEEEZE
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial EZBHH) EER -eME

assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

2.12.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial

ERBEMEEWRNHEE
MEBZEMNERNEES
BEAEECHEHBHERRE
Z R BB 2 e 2 [B] ¥ 5 4%
LEFESS °

2123 &

n+§

ROFHERBE > REBZ
HAVE (HEMEEL

asset not at fair value through profit or loss, AT Et AtEw Bl
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 510Uk B < L S A B AR R

acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit and

RS HRE) stESH
BE B ATES ARG

loss (“FVPL") are expensed in profit or loss. (AT ET AEBE) 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEAXIHHEHE (8)
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

2.12.3 Measurement (continued)

212 REREMERMEE (B

2123 5t (@)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset.

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in ‘other (losses)/gains, net’ together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in ‘other (losses)/gains, net’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXGHBERBE (&

POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets 2.12 BEREMERMEE @)

(continued)
2.12.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade and bills receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach in accordance with HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables
(Note 23(b)).

2.124 E{E
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23(b)) °
2.13 Offsetting financial instruments 2.13 IRHEMT A
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount THMEENMBESEREHE MK
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally BiEE eI RS RAT AN IEHEE
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and MREEMERUFREEESE
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the FRNSREERFESERR
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally TEEEBERIHRFE EEL
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events AR MITRA NS REABE
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business EHRNBBREREBZPIRRA
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the BRHFHHEAIARIE - BOEER
company or the counterparty. BRF o R E FRF 75 R SR AT ©
2.14 Derivative financial instruments 214 1EEmMTI A

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair values. Changes in the fair value
of these derivative instruments are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within ‘other
(losses)/gains, net’. The Group does not have any derivative
that is designated as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.16 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade, bills and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

The Group holds trade, bills and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows. Accordingly,
trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less loss allowance
(Note 2.12.3).

Trade, bills and other receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Impairment losses on trade, bills and other receivables are
presented as net impairment losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.19 Trade and bills payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers.

Trade and bills payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Borrowings (continued)

2.21

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges
in respect of borrowings and lease liabilities, and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that are
an adjustment to interest costs include the interest rate
differential between borrowing costs that would be
incurred if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional
currency, and the borrowing costs actually incurred on
foreign currency borrowings. Such amounts are estimated
based on interest rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s
functional currency.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company'’s subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

AREHM R RN

2 EXRGFHBERME (&

2.22 BEPEARIRIEFRTSHR (48

(a)

(b)

EERFEEEARAE

BPEAFRTSTR

BVERFF SIS IR AR
AN F AR BERTK
BELEREREERR
MBABNBERREEAR
KOHEBRMREELE
BB A E &
EREMBRRE L0 ®RE
PR AR PR B 15 0 R HA ST ¥R
MR LEBRB
T RIETRHIZEA IR
RS2 (T BIFR TR AR RE B fff o

EIEFR1STR
RIEFFSRABEEE
BEEEMNEENREA
EEMBRERSMHR
RNIRE(EZRRMELERN
By 2 2 B BRI o AT
AEERRARELEBT
THIEE AT ERR
EIEIRBE (R - BIEIEFR
BREBERS (FEEE
Basth) PHEENEEN
IAFERD > MER 7 BT
FESHBREHERRIE
i FRAEECER « I|IEFR 1S
MIFXBAERSHIRAER
s EE LBE M LT
ERMELEFISMEEER
RRLEFTIS B RS
FIRHIS S EAIIME (K
ER) TEERE °

RIERIAE EEERKE
AR BRI A AR E A
EURFERREBERE T

=]
o ©

—z-—zggR 159



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHBEEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
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special tax deductions for investments in qualifying NEEREERENEE
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The 1% 2 B R R WUR
Group accounts for such allowances as tax credits, FoREEPBZERMALE

which means that the allowance reduces income tax
payable and current tax expense. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are carried
forward as deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits
2.23.1 Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.23.2 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual
leave are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They
are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. Consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the
end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match,
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including defined benefit plans and defined
contribution pension plans.

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically, defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension obligation. In countries where
there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset,
reflects the increase in the defined benefit
obligation results from employee service in the
current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service
costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Remeasurement arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity
in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(b)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required

to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the

obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue

is shown net of value-added tax, returns (if any) and after

eliminating sales within the Group.

(a)

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the
goods is transferred to the customers in accordance
with relevant shipping terms, the customers have
full discretion over the goods and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to customers, and either customers have
accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the
returns, if any, using the expected value method,
and revenue is only recognised to the extent that
it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. A refund liability (included in trade and
other payables) is recognised for expected returns in
relation to sales made until the end of the reporting
period. No element of financing is deemed present
as the sales are made with credit terms that are
consistent with market practice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Sales of goods (continued)

A receivable is recognised when control of the goods
is transferred to the customers as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.

If the services rendered or products delivered by the
Group exceed the payments made by the counter
parties, a contract asset is recognised. If the payments
exceed the services rendered or products delivered, a
contract liability is recognised.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Service income

Service income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when a service is
transferred to the customer and the customer obtains
control of that service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHBEEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Interest income 226 FEUA

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

2.27 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
FVPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this case,
the dividend is recognised in other comprehensive income
if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI. However,
the investment may need to be tested for impairment as a
consequence.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEARTHHEHRE &
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases 228 fHE
2.28.1 As the lessor 2281 {EARHAA

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys HMEA—HHE HBILH

to the lessee in return for a payment, or series of EUNEZES PN

payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed HERNEREENER

period of time. MM —EMIEHE— 77

RIE o

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, EEERBEKLEHEEM

the asset is included in the balance sheet based on HZEEEREEME

the nature of the asset. FFABEEER

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over RS HEELEZHE

the term of the lease on a straight-line basis. WA BESEREAEHRRA

57
2.28.2 As the lessee 2282 {ERATAA

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a HERIRTHAEEE

corresponding liability at the date at which the leased TEREBEERHAER

asset is available for use by the Group. BRAZ HEIEEaE.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially HEEENBEKREERET

measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities FUREETTE-HE

include the net present value of the following lease BEEFEMLTHEENRN
payments: FIRME

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed o BEMR (BIEEE
payments), less any lease incentives receivable; &7 {9 70) B R e

WHEESE ;

. variable lease payment that are based on an o EREBE#HAN =D
index or a rate; PG ;

. amounts expected to be payable by the lessee o FlerBEHER TN
under residual value guarantees; 7ACFE A T8 HA FE (I =X

15 ;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the o KERENTEER
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that (f5 & 8 A & 2 #h
option; and MECTEZEEE

1) ;5 &

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, o LR IEFAER SR
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising (fief 78 & 15 7k &= bR
that option. ABAITHEZIEE

ERKIEESE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SBAEHBEHSE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued) 2.28 fHE (&)
2.28.2 As the lessee (continued) 2282 {EAETEAAN (8

Lease payment to be made under reasonably REGEETEREERE

certain extension options are also included in the BT EHZHENRINE

measurement of the liability. SIEAEZER.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest HENRIXBBEEFMES

rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be BYF 2R F DUBG 3R o fief VK

determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate EEZAE AIERAME
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to A BV & B RF) = Bl
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset AR B LUR R AR 7Y
of similar value in a similar economic environment BHOUKEIRIEREAES
with similar terms and conditions. HUBEBEMSTESM
WBZATHIF]ZE

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the RETIBEEMAE K

Group: E=M

e where possible, uses recent third-party . ERIREIE R T A
financing received by the individual lessee as 18 Bl 2 FE A &= 3T &
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in BHNHE=ZFMES
financing conditions since third party financing 3% B 1F H 5B B U
was received; REEBERE=FH

BB LUK Rl B R
BB ;

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk- . FREME BEHM
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for rEERBRBMER
leases held by the Group entity, which does not HENEERR (&
have recent third party financing; and ERE=FME)

FEERARFIE &

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg . ETRFENRHEEDN

term, country, currency and security. o > 0 #ABR
EN= gy Ei i

Lease payments are allocated between principal and HEMMR A E &R

finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or A2 B 7B o B 5 AR

loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant AEHEHBERERI
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of IR BUSEHABNER

the liability for each period. ERERRV AR R —5 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAXIHEHBE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)
2.28.2 As the lessee (continued)

2.28 HE (&)
2282 {EAETAAN (&

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising FRAEEEERAZ
the following: BEUTEIE

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
(Notes 2.6 and 2.10)

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment, vehicles, offices, warehouse and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small
items of office furniture.

EERFEEEARAE

e MHESEENWTE
BE%H;

e RAMKBMRNZAE
PRERYE AR & 1
R A B WA ER
HERE;

o EVIREEMNE ;
K

. fEEmAEe

FREEE—RNEEDN
A fE A ERRAER U
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.30 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, derivative financial assets, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables, derivative financial liabilities and borrowings,
etc. Details of the financial instruments by category are
disclosed in Note 35.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk

@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has foreign currency sales,
purchases, trade, bills and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade, bills and other payables,
derivative financial instruments, borrowings
and amounts due from/(to) related parties
which expose the Group to market risk arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group currently does not have a specific
foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management closely monitors its foreign
currency risk exposure and considers any
foreign currency forward contracts should the
need arise.

In addition, the Group had entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with banks
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation
risk. The derivatives were not accounted for
under hedge accounting. The Group was
required to estimate the fair value of the
foreign currency forward contracts at the end
of the reporting period, which therefore also
exposed the Group to foreign exchange risk.

3 REAKREE (@
31 SHEAREE @
() TIBER

@

EERFEEEARAE

S E B

rEBRBINEE
B -B5 EEkH
fth A& URRIE ~ B KR
RITER RERIR
TFEEE -BEZ
RiE R HAME A=
E-fTESRIA
R eI, (FEAY)
%] ek 75 R TE T [ A
S BE BE =< 4 8 75 2R
BT 3% @ R o AN EE
IR B 3 4 RE B9 S
WEH R BUR o 2T
EEEMNBYEE
SNSRI BT
255 B AR I
BEIGA -

5k > A2 B B R 1T
513 % IR RSN B
X U ERE K
EE-TETESR
BE G AR
FEBARKRSH
RETEINES
Nz AFE AILE
A& E mE ER E S
B LB

—z-—zggR 173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

0

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2020, if Renminbi (“RMB")
had strengthened/weakened by 5% (2019:
5%) against the HK$ with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax loss for the year would
have been HK$15.6 million higher/lower
(2019: HK$14.1 million lower/higher), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains
(2019: gains/losses) on translation of RMB
denominated trade, bills and other payables/
receivables and cash and bank deposits.

At 31 December 2020, if EUR had
strengthened/weakened by 6% (2019: 7%)
against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax loss for the year would have
been HK$14.0 million lower/higher (2019:
HK$14.9 million lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of EUR denominated trade, bills and
other receivables/payables and cash and bank
deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(1)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2020, if EUR had
strengthened/weakened by 6% (2019: 7%)
against the US$ with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax loss for the year would have
been HK$39.0 million lower/higher (2019:
HK$9.6 million higher/lower), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses (2019: losses/
gains) on translation of US$ denominated
trade, bills and other receivables/payables,
borrowings, derivative financial instruments,
amounts due from/to related parties and cash
and bank deposits.

The Directors considered the foreign exchange
risk between HK$ and US$ is minimal as HK$
has been linked to US$.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 ZrEKRERE (4)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 =RAREZE @)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) THIZER @&
(i) Interest rate risk (continued) (i) FIEEE )
Based on the simulations performed, with a *E?FFELTTE’HETEE’
100 basis points shift in interest rate, the pre- BFEEE100EE
tax loss would have a maximum increase by the 2 BRIMATEGBEN R
following magnitude: KIBIIEEIT -
2020 2019
—E-EHE —E-NF
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BEEAT
Impact on loss HERFTEMNATGENEE
before income tax 3.1 3.2
(iii)  Price risk (i) 1B RS
Commodity price risks & B R

At 31 December 2020, the Group was exposed
to commodity price risks through its metal
commodities future contracts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is determined
based on the exposure to commodity price
risk of metal commodities future contracts at
31 December 2020. If the commodity price of
metal commodities future contracts had been
19% (2019: 19%) higher/lower, the Group's
pre-tax loss for the year would decrease/
increase by the following magnitude:

RZIZZZ2F+Z
B=+—8 #&&H
RAEEmaiias
HmEHELER
JRLBE o

BRE DT

TE B E DT
Ep_—_z_=fF
+ZB=+—H8=
BERPEsA@E
HmRESRR
T 7E o 18 <& f&8 7 o 2P
E&NBERER
EFATREI19% (2
T—HE19%)

Bl AEBFEANKRR
BB B R 18
MEEEW T
2020 2019
ZEIEHE T—NF
HKS$M HK$M
BEEAT BEAT
Impact on loss before HERPTSMAIEIEN T E
income tax 35.8 3.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk

@

Risk management

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial
instruments, amounts due from related parties,
trade, bills and other receivables and deposits
with banks and financial institutions. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor
the exposures to these credit risks on trade,
bills and other receivables on an on-going
basis.

To manage credit risk arising from cash
and cash equivalents, derivative financial
instruments and deposits with banks and
financial institutions, the Group only transacts
with reputable and creditworthy commercial
financial institutions and investment
counterparties. Management does not expect
any losses from non-performance by these
financial institutions, therefore, the expected
credit loss for such financial assets is minimal.
The Group has no policy to limit the amount of
credit exposure to any financial institutions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

0]

Risk management (continued)

The Group generally grants credit terms
ranging from 30 to 90 days to customers
upon the approval of management according
to the credit quality of individual customers.
The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history. The Group also
has policies on granting different settlement
methods to different customers to monitor the
credit exposure. The Group measures expected
credit losses and applies lifetime expected loss
allowances for all trade and bills receivables. At
31 December 2020, the Group held trade and
bills receivables amounted to approximately
HK$1,352.0 (2019: HK$997.2 million) and loss
allowances of HK$50.0 (2019: HK$39.9 million)
has been provided for such trade and bills
receivables.

Amounts due from related parties and other
receivables are considered to have low
credit risk. These balances are continuously
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings in accordance with limits set
by the Board. The compliance with credit limit
by customers and counter-parties is regularly
monitored by management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

(i)

Risk management (continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had
concentration of credit risk as 6% and
23% (2019: 9% and 23%) of its total trade
receivables was due from its largest trade
debtors and the five largest trade debtors,
respectively. The five largest trade debtors
have good repayment history and credit quality
with reference to the track records of these
customers under internal assessment by the
Group.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

- Trade and bills receivables

- Other financial assets at amortised costs

While cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, as all banks are
rated with a high credit rating, the identified
impairment loss is immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables. Details of
the quantification in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk on trade and bills
receivables are set out in Note 23(b).

To measure the ECL, trade and bills receivables
have been grouped based on the settlement
profiles of customers, shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 24 months
before 31 December 2020 or 1 January 2020,
respectively, and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factor affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the gross domestic
product (“GDP”) and unemployment rate of
the countries in which it sells its goods and
services to be the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates on
expected changes in these factors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost
include amounts due from related parties and
other receivables (except for prepayments).
Management assesses the credit quality of
the counterparties, taking into account the
historical risk of default and capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of an asset and
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating

- external credit rating (as far as available)

- actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
(continued)

- actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the borrower

- significant increases in credit risk on
other financial instruments of the same
borrower

- significant changes in the value of the
collateral supporting the obligation or in
the quality of third-party guarantees or
credit enhancements

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the
Group and changes in the operating
results of the borrower.

Macroeconomic information (such as market
interest rates or growth rates) is incorporated as
part of the internal rating model.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 90 days past due in making a
contractual payment.

A default on a financial asset is when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(9]

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost
(continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as
a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group. Where loans or receivables
have been written off, the Group continues to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable due. Where recoveries
are made, these are recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2020, provision for
impairment on other receivables, excluding
prepayment, amounted approximately to
HK$9.9 million (2019: HK$8.7 million). Other
financial assets at amortised cost are considered
to be of low credit risk primarily because
historically they had no history of default and
the debtors had a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term (2019: same).

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group and aggregated by group
finance. Group finance monitors rolling forecasts
of the Group's liquidity requirements to ensure it
has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Such
forecasting takes into consideration the Group’s debt
financing plans, covenant compliance, compliance
with internal balance sheet ratio targets and, if
applicable external regulatory or legal requirements —

for example, currency restrictions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 ERE

GBI (48)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 =RAREZR @
() Liquidity risk (continued) (0 FRIHESRAR @)
The table below analyses the Group's and the TRAOMAEE KK AE
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and HETEEmBER TR
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant BENTTEEREE I
maturity groupings based on the remaining period ThiZ BAERE R R HAAR B
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity REHEEEERHES
date. Derivative financial liabilities are included in the A EHH R R EA R ET
analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for Do EEMAasn
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The EHNEEEREEBERE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual MEREREZ B g5t
undiscounted cash flows. AP ETFRANIELE
NEBAHENRMIENIR
ERE o
On demand Between Between
or less than 1and3 3 months and Between Over
1 month months 1year 1and5 years 5 years
BERY
OYR-BR -Z=fAR =fRE-%£ -E5E RENE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEF
+ZR=+-H
Non-derivative FiTEEMAR
financial liabilities
Borrowings fam 2815 1,687.8 188.4 171.6 25
Lease liahilities HEaR 185 37.0 166.4 3229 59.5
Trade, bills and other payables % EERAMENZE 1,367.9 774 470 145 -
Amounts due to related parties  FEfTREME S FNE 402 0.4 115 113 -
1,708.1 1,802.6 433 526.3 62.0
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-h%E
+-A=+-H
Non-derivative FiTEEMAR
financial liabilities
Borrowings (G 410.6 1132 2,120.6 222.2 51
Lease liabilities fEaR 18.0 36.0 162.2 5376 117.6
Trade, bills and other payables ~ B% REREMENFTE 6415 88.5 63.2 354 -
Amounts due to related parties  FEAIRAHE A ZUE 19.7 - 76 10.2 .
1,089.8 231.7 2,353.6 805.4 1227
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
() Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate carrying
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
HK$246.9 million (2019: HK$77.6 million). Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid within one
year after the reporting date in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows of HK$249.6 million (2019:
HK$77.9 million) will be repaid within one year.

The amounts included above for the variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes in
actual interest rates differ to those estimated at the
end of the reporting period.

3.2 Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remained unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities
as disclosed in Notes 31 and 32 and, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company, comprising capital, various reserves and
accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management (continued)

3.3

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
monitor capital on basis of gearing ratio, which is
calculated based on total borrowings divided by our total
assets.

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group
decreased from 27.4% (2019) to 23.3% as a result of
repayment of borrowings during the year.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share repurchases as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Fair value estimation
Fair value measurements and valuation process

The directors of the Company determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 and 2 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation for financial instruments that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis. The Directors and the senior
management team work closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 =ZriEMEESIE (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEME @
Fair value measurements and valuation process AEEFERGERER @)
(continued)
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used EREBEETABEERBBATE
in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities PR ARV (18 75 7% e 8 A\ BUR 55
are disclosed below. TBEI T o
The following table analyses the Group’s financial TRAOMAEERRZZZZ
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December 2020 by +ZA=1+—HEATEIIRZ
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure EMITE FBFTE2L2FEMA
fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels 2t AEZ B ABRE &2
within a fair value hierarchy as follows: DoBERABMAMBTELATERER
AR AT =@4R5
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . EIET S FHHEBEERE
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). ERRE CREAE) B—
&) o
. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level . PR — PR BB R E
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either S BENEBBNTERE
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived (BRE &) 3¢ [ £ (B 1%
from prices) (level 2). BREL) BRMSH AR
(EZ#H) -
. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . G FEAR #5 BT ER 2R 45 iR
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) ETHNEENEEHAER
(level 3). (BRI EizRem AE) (5B
=8) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 ZrRIEMKREIE (&)

The fair value of derivative financial instruments publicly
traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the quoted bid commodity
future price. These instruments are included in level 1 and
comprise primarily metal commodities future contracts
publicly traded in London Metal Exchange.
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3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 ATEMEE @
Fair value measurements and valuation process RTESERGERR (@)
(continued)
Financial assets/(Financial liabilities) Fair value as at
EHEE/ (GRaR) RUTHENATE
31 December 31 December Fair value
2020 2019 hierarchy
ZEIEE —E-NF
+=B=+-B +-A=t-g ATEER
HK$M HK$M
HEAT BEBT
1) Publicly traded metal commodities future contracts classified as (6.3) (12.9) Level 1
derivative financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet F—R
RGEBEEARRTOBANTESRIAZ AR ZEBER
HEEH
2) Metal commodities future contracts classified as derivative financial 9.9 243 Level 2
instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (53.1) (17.2) B4R
ReRaBEARRTFHEATEEMTIAZsBARBESH
3) Foreign currency forward contracts classified as derivative financial 4.4 0.7 Level 2
instruments in the consolidated balance sheet 0.3) (0.1) )
AR ABERBRRTAEATTEEM T AZIMNERBEN
4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 0.9 19 Level 3
BATEFABRZEHEE E=
5) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 104.6 98.7 Level 3
BATES AR ARG 2 EHEE E=MR
Financial instruments in level 1 E—RETHMTH

RERTHARRZNITETR
TENAFENEERERARN
TIEHRERER -ERURRH
FT-RZmE A TTEERR
EERBALEEXBERERS
EHRE AZHHERIBA/EE
Bhig BARERART AT
REWERMEMEENTHR
S rERFANTREERME
BT SERERREHRIAERN
BB ZFIEEBRE—H E
ZOEERAZTBERZARMR
ZHTEERBESN-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

Financial instruments in level 2

The Group's metal commodities future contracts
represented the Group's derivative financial instruments
which are included in level 2. The basis of fair value
measurement and valuation technique of such derivative
financial instruments are par method and taking actively
traded future prices into account.

The Group's foreign currency forward contracts represented
the Group’s derivative financial instruments which are
included in level 2. The basis of fair value measurement and
valuation technique of such derivative financial instruments
are discount cash flow method and present value of the
future cash flows estimated based on forward exchange
rates. The unobservable input is expected future cash flow,
therefore lower cash flow results in lower present value.

Financial instruments in level 3

The Group's equity interests in unlisted entities represented
the Group's financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which are included in level 3. The
basis of fair value measurement and valuation technique
of such financial assets are discount cash flow method and
present value of the estimated future cash flows of the
investee entities. The unobservable input is expected future
cash flow, therefore lower cash flow results in lower present
value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 ZrRIEMKREIE (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEMEE @)
Fair value measurements and valuation process RTESERGERR (@)
(continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated RGFEEEBRRERNATE
balance sheet: e
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—8 B B Bt
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
B8AT HEAn HEAT HEER
As at 31 December 2020 RIZZEE+ZA=+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BATEGABGZZEREE
profit or loss - - 0.9 0.9
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFAEMEZE
other comprehensive income Wamz EREE - - 104.6 104.6
Derivative financial instruments fTE:mIA - 14.3 - 14.3
Liabilities af
Derivative financial instruments fTESHIA (6.3) (53.4) - (59.7)
As at 31 December 2019 RIB—-NE+ZA=1+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BATEFABGZZERHEE
profit or loss - - 1.9 1.9
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BAFE AEtZE
other comprehensive income Wz EMEE - - 98.7 98.7
Derivative financial instruments fT&:mMIA - 25.0 - 25.0
Liabilities af
Derivative financial instruments fTEsmIA (12.9) (17.3) - (30.2)
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AREHM R RN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 =ZriEMEESIE (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 ATEMEE @
Fair value measurements and valuation process RTEFERGERRE (@)
(continued)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRFIEBEZ_EER-F
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2020 and —NE+ZA=+—HLEFESR
2019: =R TAENES
Financial Financial
Financial assets at Financial assets at
assets at fair value assets at fair value
fair value through fair value through
through other through other
profit comprehensive profit  comprehensive
or loss income  Total 2020 or loss income Total 2019
BRATE BATEHA BATE BATEMA
ARG Ef2EME CZ3-TE HAER Et2EME ZFn4&
JEHMEE  ZEREE Rt ZERMBE CEMEE ait
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

EE#r BEEn 2 EREn  EEBEn  BEEn  BEER

At 1 January = h=! 19 98.7 100.6 08 111.0 1118

Additions HE - - - 11 - 11

Disposal HE (1.0 (03) (13) - (29 (29
Fair value loss ATEERE (0.2) (1.9 (13) - (75) (75)
Currency translation differences ERESE 0.2 73 75 - (1.9 (1.9
At 31 December ®+ZE=+-H 0.9 104.6 1055 19 98.7 1006

There were no transfers among the three levels during RBE_Z_EFR_T—NF
either of the years ended 31 December 2020 or 2019. +=A :—i—— HIEEE =@EZ

iR 2 RS SR EE RS o

The management considers that the carrying amounts BEEDRA NEaMBRERA
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at B ER AT ENETHEERE
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements HMEENEEERERQAFENR
approximate their fair values. ae
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e HRR N

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 ZrRIEMKREIE (&)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 EHEMEEREHMEME
liabilities
(a) Financial assets () =REE
The following financial assets are subject to UTEmEESEE T
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements BENITHR—FREEZL
and similar agreements: BER BRI -

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount ~ Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised  of financial balance sheet
Gross finandial assets  RRGREEBERMIRN
amounts of liabilities ~presented REE
recognised  net off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2020 assets  balance sheet balance sheet  instruments received amount
REREE
BERINBYN  REREE
BED  BHDER  BRREIN BIKE
KZE-F5+ZA=+-H SHEENRE BREE SHMEETE $BIE  BHLiEER 28
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

BRER BRER BRET BRAT BRET BRER

Pledged bank deposits BRBSRTER 1227 = 1227 (123) (108.8) 16
Cash and cash equivalents B RF £ SEER 9138 - 9138 - (83) 905.5

Derivative financial instruments 74 48T E
~ Foreign currency forward —— —SMEREIAH

contracts 44 - 44 - - 44
- Metal commodities futre ~ —£BE R
contracts BHAY 9.9 - 99 - - 99
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AREHM R RN

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 ZriEMKREIE (&)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 EHEMEEREHMEE @
liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued) (a) SREEGE

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised  of financial balance sheet
Gross financial assets  RREABESRRNRN
amounts of liabilities presented HELE
recognised et off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2019 assets  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
REREE
BERIGN  REAEE
BREZ EEIER SEREIN ElE
RZE-AFE+ZR=1+-H EHEERE BEAE SRBEITE EHMIE  RIERER B
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

AEHER AEkER ASER AEER BEET BEET

Pledged bank deposits BIRBRTER 1917 = 1917 (96.1) (83.0) 12,6
Cash and cash equivalents  BERELHEER 784.8 - 784.8 - (1.7) 773.1
Derivative financial fTEeMIA
instruments
- Foreign currency forward  —MEEERAH)
contracts 1.7 (1.0 0.7 - - 0.7
~ Metal commodities future —%BE &
contracts BHAN 243 = 243 - - %3
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e HRR N

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 ZrRIEMKREIE (&)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 EHEMEEREMEE &
liabilities (continued)
(b) Financial liabilities (b) E=RE&E
The following financial liabilities are subject to UTEmMBERIKHE T
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements BENITHR—FREEZL
and similar agreements: BER BRI -

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised  of financial balance sheet
Gross financial liabilites KRG AEEEERNH
amounts assets netoff presented il
of recognised in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2020 liabilities balance sheet balance sheet  instruments received amount
REREE
BERNGN  REREE
B BRIER ARREIN BE
KZEZEE+ZBA=1+-H SHERLE BEAT SHMEREE EHMIE  REuWE et
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

EEXtT HBEAT 2 BEEEn EREn  ERER  BRER

Borrowings a2 2,2984 - 22984 (123) (1088) 21773
Derivative financial fTE4¢MIA
instruments
~ Foreign currency forward  —SMEEEAH
contracts 03 - 03 - - 03
— Metal commodities future —£B& f
contracts BBAN 59.4 - 59.4 - (8.3) 51.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

(b)

Financial liabilities

3 ERIE

AREHM R RN

GBI (48)

34 EETHMEERTHEE @)

(b)

ERHaRE @

Related amounts not net off in

Net amounts the consolidated
Gross amount ~of financial balance sheet
of recognised liabilities KR GEBEEBRIMMFH
Gross amounts  financial assets presented HEEE
of recognised  net off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2019 liabilities  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
REREE
BERIGYN RRREE
BREZ  EESE 8BEREHN EWE
RZE-AFE+ZR=1+-H EHAGRRE EELE SRBETE EHMIE  RIERER B
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEET BEET BEER BEER BEAR
Borrowings & 2,795.4 - 2,795.4 (96.1) (83.0) 26163
Derivative financial fTEEMIA
instruments
- Foreign currency forward  —SMEEEAH
contracts 0.1 - 0.1 - - 0.1
- Metal commodities future —%BE R
contracts BHAY 311 (1.0 30.1 - (11.7) 18.4
The gross amounts of the recognised financial assets rEEGSEEEERERA

and financial liabilities as presented in the Group's
consolidated balance sheet, both of which have been
disclosed in the above tables, are measured as fair
value.

The disclosures set out in the tables above include
commodities futures contracts traded through
brokers, and foreign currency forward/swap contracts
contracted with banks. If a default event (included
but not limited to default payment, liquidation,
bankruptcy or insolvency) occurs, the brokers and the
banks are able to exercise the right to offset against
any favourable contracts and/or the collaterals placed.

EERFEEEARAE

SHNERDBEHAER
SRE ENRE WERS
BER) HATENHE

ERFFEIRERREBE
CARZHNERBAEEH
R B ERATRI A9 R M= B
S IEREN - HHIRED
=M (BEEFRRER
TR BB REREE
&) BIEARIBTIITRE
FEMIRHERB N G R
/SRR S o

—E_EGFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill and
other assets that have indefinite useful lives have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Notes 2.10 and 2.11. Other assets that are
subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of an asset
or a cash-generating unit have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or its fair value less costs of
disposal, whichever is higher. These calculations require the
use of estimates. The value-in-use calculations primarily use
cash flow projections. Judgement is required to determine
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.

(b) Asset retirement obligations

Various pieces of land was leased by the Group for
operating scrap yards and preparation of the land might be
needed to make it appropriate for operation as scrap yards.

It was the Group's contractual obligation to bring the land
to its original condition as the Group is not the owner of
the land. The Group estimates the expected costs necessary
to dismantle the scrap yards by assessing the discount rate
as well as expected increment in future cost which might
lead to changes in the provisions recognised.

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

jurisdictions.

Estimation of provision for impairment of
receivables

The loss allowances for receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the allowances calculation,
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the carrying values of receivables
and the impairment loss on receivable is recognised in the
years in which such estimates have changed.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain,

deductibility of compensation payments to customers.

such as

The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such difference will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax in the
period in which such estimates are changed.

AREHM R RN

4 é# = n+1E n‘l’& #IJ %ﬁ' (n‘E)

(9]

(d)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e)

()

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
cost to completion and selling expenses. Management of
the Group reviews the inventories listing on a category-
by-category basis at the end of the reporting period, and
assesses whether the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest resale value and quoted prices on applicable
commodity exchanges. If the market price of inventories
is to decline, additional write down may be required.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial
assets

The fair value of financial instruments and other financial
assets (including embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and options over shares in joint ventures
to joint venture partners, if any) that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using appropriate valuation
techniques and making assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date.

The fair value of options over shares of non-listed entities
are determined using discounted cash-flow method, which
requires the determination of an appropriate discount rate
as well as assumptions regarding the cash-flow projections.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(9)

(h)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
by reference to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
these assets. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature
and functions. Management will adjust useful lives as
appropriate. Periodic review could result in a change in
useful lives and therefore depreciation and amortisation
expense in the future periods.

The Group has periodically reassessed useful lives of its
property, plant and equipment, taking into consideration
past usage and performance, prior repair and maintenance
efforts, current physical and operating conditions of these
assets, industry practices as well as future usage plans.

Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers
all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a
termination option. Extension options (or not periods after
termination options) are only included in the lease term
if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated). The assessment is reviewed when a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects this assessment and that is within the control of the
leasee.

AREHM R RN

4 é# = n+1E n‘l’& #IJ %ﬁ' (n‘E)

(9)

(h)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue mainly represents the amounts received or
receivable for the sales of recycled scraps and wastes, net of sales
related taxes, during the year. The Group derives revenue mainly
from transfer of these goods at a point in time.

The Group’s CODM, which has been identified as the Executive
Committee that makes strategic decisions, assesses the Group's
performance from geographic perspective and has identified
three reportable segments of its business which are Asia,
Europe and North America respectively. The operating segments
are assessed based on the measure of segment profit. This
measurement basis excludes the effects of non-operating gains/
losses, such as impairments on non-financial assets, gain/loss on
fair value change of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The measure also excludes centralised costs such as the
Group’s key managements’ remunerations and other central
administrative expenses. Finance income, finance costs, income
tax expenses and those unallocated income and expenses are
not included in the result for each operating segment that is
reviewed by the Group’s CODM. Inter-segment sales are charged
at prevailing market price.

Total segment assets exclude deferred income tax assets,
fixed return investment, tax recoverable, derivative financial
instruments and cash and cash equivalents which are managed
centrally. Information relating to segment liabilities is not
disclosed as such information is not regularly reported to the
CODM.
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AREHM R RN

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following table presents revenue and segment profit
information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively:

ﬁﬁﬂﬁ*‘l' (H\E)
TROMNEINERAERGE_T
EoteSy St e = = - — (B e
FEP 28R 7Y K 7 80 i A 59

B
For the year ended
HENTRELEE
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
“ECEFTIRCT-R kS i gl S
North North
Asia  Europe  America Unallocated Total Asa  Euope  America Unallocated Total
[ BN EEN &R a4 il B EEN &0k szt
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
EBAnT EEAT E8%n EEAT EBRAR 5%Er E8En EEAn  BEEn  BEEn
(Restated) (Restated)
(E2]) (E3)
Revenue i
Total segment revenue EEE 17105 107089 1,086.1 - 135055 20154 121668 14109 - 155931
Inter-seqment sales DEERE - (190) (8.4) - (1374) - (198 (349 - ()
External sales SNpsEE 17105 105799 10777 - 133681 20154 119720 1376.0 - 153634
Seqment ossoroft (Note) 38 (B8 /47 (h2) o5 M85 @) 65 (7Y (69 39T @8y O3 113
Finance income HBUA 10 356
Finance costs HERE (2435) (2%6.2)
Loss before income tax KHERAER (809.8) (995)
Income tax expense FiEHREx (544) (343)
Loss for the year ERER (864.2) (1338)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  TER &R (812 (073 (428) (195  (4508) (658 Q910 @3 @13 @25
Fair value loss on derivative fiEeBIEZATERR
financial instruments - - - (68.1) (68.1) - - - @ @1
Fair value (loss)igain on financial assets ~ HATEHABEZ
at fairvalue through profit or loss Hééz/ﬂ-@
(B%) /ha (23) (02) - - (25) 17 - - - 17
Gain on disposal of property, plant and (k4 7# ﬁ%&y EMUR
equipment and right-of-use assets FREEE MR - - - 84 B4 - - - 33 33
Loss on disposals and deregistration EE&£E¥ Jasts
of subsidiaries or joint ventures paA i - = - (45) (45) - - - (137) (137)
Provison for impairment on property, %¥ FERRERBER
plant and equipment and right-of-use ~ EEZAERE
assets - - - (8  (2229) - - - (09 (09)
Impairment on intangible assets EYVEEZHA - - - (0s0)  (05) - - - - -
Impairment on assets held for sale S - = = ©13) @13 s . 2 7 i
Note: P o -

During the current year, the Group’s CODM has changed their perspective on the
unallocated segment and certain administrative expenses were reclassified from the
Asia segment to the unallocated segment for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Therefore, the segment loss for the Asia segment and unallocated segment for the
year ended 31 December 2019 were restated from HK$172.3 million and HK$45.9
million to HK$126.9 million and HK$91.3 million, respectively, to conform to current

year's presentation.

RAFEE AEEANETEEERARENEHE R
NDEDBHNEL TEEE_S_ZTE+_A4
=+ —HLEEENETITBEASIRTEND SR
DEERDESS AL ME_Z—HE+ZAH
=+—HIEEENTMNDIBRRDED I D D
BEDRIH172. 388 BT RAS.OER B TTENA
BE12690 BB TR ZBEBT UNEERE
ERNZ25 A

EERFEEEARAE
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BRE BRI
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEHEN G
Segment assets DEWEE

A _EBE_EF+_A=+—HE_F
—NWE+ZA=t+—HABEERE

Reconciliation of segment assets to total assets as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are provided as follows:

EARRENHIRWT
As at
i
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

ZE5Z5E+ZR=1-H ZE-NE+ZE=T-H

North North
Asia  Europe  America Total Asia Europe  America Total
i Bl J6EM izt il Bl 6 st
HKSM HK$SM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M
BEBAT BE8An HEAn FHEAT @EErT SEEn B8En BEEn
Segment assets DUEE 1,541.4 6,772.4 497.6 88114 2,0379 6,206.0 908.7 9,152.6
Deferred income tax assets REmEHEE 1104 109.3
Fixed return investment EECHERE - 88.4
Tax recoverable oJRE#RE 230 299
Derivative financial instruments  fT££8 T & 143 250
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBE4ERS 913.8 7848
Total assets BENSE 9,872.9 10,190.0

Geographical information & &

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred

FERBEENBREM T BEREIERR

income tax assets, and analysed by geographic regions as follows: BREE RMESHNT !
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-E_ZHF AT —NEF
t=B=+—H +-A=+—H
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEET
Asia CEpL 661.8 1,033.7
Europe BR 4,209.8 4,178.5
North America jt%ﬁ\l\l 271.9 7231
Total 4z 5,143.5 5,935.3
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BB RENE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEHER @
Analysis of revenue by category BEBER D E2KRZ DR

For the year ended

HEUTHHLEEE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ZEZTHE —T—NEF
+=ZA=+—H +=A=+—H
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BEAT
Metal recycling EEEU
— Ferrous metal — 2B 8,397.9 10,063.9
— Non-ferrous metal —EEEB 4,362.6 4,279.3
Forging and foundry IS M iEE 99.0 342.4
Others Hth 508.6 677.8
Total 4Bt 13,368.1 15,363.4
Information about major customers FEERNER

No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's
revenue during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

RBEE_ZE_ZER-_ZT—NE+Z
B=+—HIEEE WEE—FTF B
BAAEEE U ZE10%E UL £ o
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B RBRER ML
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HftkA

2020 2019
—ZTTHF —E—hEF
HKS$M HK$M
BEBT BEET

Rental income for short-term FRHARERERETWA
operating leases 21.8 23.7

Rental income from investment properties & E#)EFR S WA

(Note 16) (MfzE16) 9.5 37
Government grants/subsidies ERT#Eh, FE RS 33.2 6.5
Dividend income i& S 2.5 4.8

Other income from related parties Ik B B 5 BV E MU A
(Note 38(a)) (F5E38(a)) 8.5 7.8
Compensation from insurance coverage REEfEE 40.9 49.0
Tax subsidies received 2 U #R W aes B 10.9 15.2
Service income ARFSULA 5.2 2.9
Income from disposals of spare parts HEEHZPTEWRA 0.4 1.1
Compensation from claims RERE - 7.6
Other subsidies received Hfth B W A - 0.9
Others Hih 6.8 3.8
139.7 127.0

204 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR ERIRR ML
OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7 Hfth (5518) =
2020 2019
ZEZIEHF —T—NEF
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEET
(Loss)/Gain on fair value change of: NEEEE (BB W
— derivative financial instruments —fTEEmITH (68.1) (2.1
— financial assets at fair value through —BAFEFABTZZ
profit or loss TREE (2.5) 1.7
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains, net = (B518) /WEFEE (28.3) 13.9
Gain on disposal of property, plant and $%¢@¥ 5B Ke 58 B U &
equipment and right-of-use assets FREEE WE 23.4 33.3
Loss on disposal and deregistration HERFHEFABN
of subsidiaries or joint ventures HEPEEIE (4.5) (13.7)
Impairments on non-financial assets: FERMEERE !
— provision for impairment on property, —ME-BMERLREZ
plant and equipment (Note 14) BEREE (fE14) (150.0) (0.9)
— provision for impairment —FREEERERE
on right-of-use assets (Note 15) (FFzE15) (72.8) —
— impairment on intangible assets —mBEBEEZHE
(Note 17) (MF5E17) (205.1) -
— impairment on assets held for sale —FEHEEERE
(Note 27) (Myzx27) (91.3) -
Reversal of provision for onerous contracts  E518 & 4B & 5 [0] = 5.3
Reversal of provision for asset BERBEEERERERD
retirement obligations - 0.9
Others Hith 0.3 4.7
(598.9) 43.1
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e HRR N

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 WMEISZHZ
2020 2019
ZEZTHF —E-NF
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BE&ATT
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 8 R & B RFE 2 B H)
and finished goods 471.1) (141.9)
Raw materials and consumables used Pt FA R L Ko JH #E 10,627.3 12,266.9
Provision/(Reversal of provision) for EFERERS (BEEm)
impairment on inventories, net (Note 22)  ®%8 (Ff5E22) 18.5 (1.9)
Freight cost EH 807.7 877.1
Utilities and waste disposal cost KB E K EEY) R IE A A 388.5 363.5
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) EE®RFIHEZ (&) 1,065.6 1,155.1
Depreciation and amortisation expenses of #J%BERHZE EFEE
property, plant and equipment, intangible FREEERKEYEY
assets, right-of-use assets and IrEREBIHMX
investment properties 450.8 422.5
Legal and professional expenses FEREERE 66.5 43.8
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S4B i B
— Audit services —RZER 21.0 27.5
— Non-audit services —IEZERTS 4.4 7.3
Repair and maintenance expenses HEREEER 181.3 210.4
Lease expenses HEMX
— short-term leases — A 10.7 20.1
— low-value leases —REEHEE 4.8 13.4
Administrative services provided by REH 5 1R V1T BUAR 75
related parties (Note 38(a)) (FF5E38(a)) 2.8 1.7
Other expenses HihBEsz 381.6 241.6
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling  S§E A D R IHER S
expenses and administrative expenses M7 A 485 13,560.4 15,507.1
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AREHM R RN

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9 EEFEFMAZ
Employee benefit expenses during the year are as follows: FRNEEBAEZIT :
2020 2019
—EEHE “Z=—NEF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEAT
Wages and salaries TEMi® 877.9 961.3
Other termination benefits H B A 3.6 5.4
Social security costs tHRAR A 60.8 63.3
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R IAE A — R E M T
(Note (a)) (Mg EE(a)) 65.7 75.6
Pension costs — defined benefit plans BAREHRA—RAERHEE 0.5 0.5
Other employee benefits Hitfg B8 7F] 57.1 49.0
Total employee benefit expense RERFHZRLE 1,065.6 1,155.1
Notes: Pk -
(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans (a) EBHhE—-REMERE

HRARO2TEBT (CB—NE 025
B#%) AR -S-BE+-A=+—8
BREAES

Contributions totalling HK$0.2 million (2019: HK$0.2 million) were payable to
the fund as at 31 December 2020.

EREHFMAL
FRFEBZAURSHNA T SEMNE
B &R 3Pt A Z OUES (T
T—NEF WD) c FAREMN TR T L
CFE-AEF =) ALZMEWT :

(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b)
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the
year include four (2019: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis shown in Note 39. The emoluments payable to the remaining one
(2019: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

2020 2019
k- Jemp- 2.2 3 —2JF
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEET
Salaries, bonus and other allowances #r4 ~ TE4T B E At 8L 4.3 10.9
Pension costs-defined RINE R A — R E MRS
contribution plans - -
4.3 10.9
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e FUTHER :
Number of Number of
individual individual
A¥ A

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

2,500,001 75 23,000,000 7T -
3,000,001 75 23,500,000 7T -
4,000,00178 7T E4,500,00078 7T 1
4,500,001 752 5,000,00078 75 -
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ARSI RS ML
10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 BAFERRZAS/2ER
2020 2019
—EEE —E—hNEF
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEET
Interest income from bank deposits RITERZFEWA 7.0 9.5
Interest income from fixed return investment [& E[CI¥RIEE Z F BUTA 2.2 12.6
Interest income from related parties RE B A 2 FEWA
(Note 38(a)) (MFE38(a)) 1.8 1.5
RSremes S __MEBRA B 236
Interest expense on bank loans, overdrafts, IRITEM -ZEX  BHIEHEK
bills payable and note payable ZEENTIEZHNERS (57.5) (79.4)
Interest expense on other borrowings HtERZANERS (155.6) (137.7)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 32) fAE & & Z M B (M:E32) (29.7) (18.5)
Interest expense on loans from KRB HENERZ
related parties (Note 38(a)) FMERMX (MsE38(a)) (0.7) (0.6)
ginencecosts ______________BEEx ___________[OEON (2435 ___ (236.2)
Finance costs, net BATE B A JFEE (232.5) (212.6)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT")
and the relevant EIT Implementation Regulations, the tax rate of
PRC EIT has been provided at the rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on
the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Germany and USA income taxes have been provided at the rate
of approximately 30% (2019: 30%) and 26% (2019: 26%)
respectively, on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation on profits from other jurisdictions has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of

11

AREHM R RN

FriStiz
EARAMEBRLBIBEAN G EERERE
FIEIRZ16.5% (CB—NE : 16.5%)
RS

RiBPEEEFRFR (TEEMSR)
ERBMEEMAFBREREG > PE
EEFRFRDRBENGSHERR G
FIRINZ25% (ZZF—NGF 1 25%) 5t
B

EE R EEFRERTL 2B ER G
FERMRBEFERELN30% (ZE—H
£ 130%) K26% (ZT—H4EE 1 26%)
FHR A

REHEMBEEEEN ZRETH R
EEREMERRZBEINEFESE

taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. A 5T FEERIR A ©
2020 2019
—ETHF =E—L&E
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEEAT
Current income tax expense: BUERPRISTRIERM X -
Germany = (35.5) (23.8)
PRC EIT FRE R ZEPRIS IR (1.4 (0.3)
Hong Kong profits tax HAFER (1.5) (1.3)
Other jurisdictions HMa iR (1.6) (5.0)
(40.0) (30.4)
(Under)/Over provision in prior years: BEFE
BETR) BEEE
Germany == (4.9) (1.1)
Hong Kong profits tax HAENEH = 0.2
USA EEl 3.2 2.1
Other jurisdictions HMaz#EE (9.2) 0.5
(10.9) 47
Deferred income tax expense (Note 21) ___MEEPTSMM= (Waf21) ~— =~ GBS N Sy
Income tax expense FriSiR <2 (54.4) (34.3)

EERFEEEARAE
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e HRR N

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11 FRiSBEx @
The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from the NEBE RS RATEENRIESR A
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average BRRGEERRMNMNEFERE
tax rate applicable to profit of the consolidated entities as MELNIERESEZEZNNT !
follows:
2020 2019
—EZF “E-NF
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEET
Loss before income tax bRETS I AIES 18 (809.8) (99.5)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates e AR AR E ORI
applicable to profits in the respective AR KRB HIRIE
countries (173.1) (15.4)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RAIREASZNRB R
for tax purpose 164.7 49.8
Tax effect of income not taxable BARRBRANRBLE
for tax purpose (26.5) (60.9)
Tax effect of temporary differences RN R EENRBEE
not recognised 77.4 17.7
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIEHBNRBLE 40.0 64.6
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AR RERIRIE
previously not recognised )EE?EE’J%&?Q%’E (24.7) (2.8)
Tax impact on share of results from HEGHEADRGEDLE
an associate and joint ventures EER %7;. (14.3) (17.0)
Under/(Over) provision in respect of BEEEEETES
prior years (FBREEH) 10.9 (1.7)
Income tax expense for the year FARMERAS 54.4 34.3
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 21.4% (2019: MEFHBEARES21.4% (ZE—N
15.5%). The increase is caused by changes in the profitability of F115.5%) WM HREFFAR
certain subsidiaries. 2R E-
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12 DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2020 and 2019, nor
has any dividend been proposed by the Company since the end of
the reporting period in respect of the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

13 LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss for the
year attributable to shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

12

13

AREHM R RN

RE
APNBR_E_EER_T—NEF
HERNHEZRCEARE > BE
EIZZERE—NE+ZA
=t+t—HIEEENRSHRTEESR
TATEAIBR S o

BFREE

(@ E&F
SREAEIE A AT RETE
EARFEBERUSNFEEEZET
SRR LRE S EE o

the year.
2020 2019
ZEZEHF —E-NF
HK$M HK$M
BEHBT BEBTT
Loss k548
Loss for the year attributable to PN/NEI) =< 3
shareholders of the Company REERIE (848.1) (128.7)
Number of shares ah =]
Weighted average number BETEERME
of ordinary shares in issue THEE (TR
(thousands) 1,605,153 1,605,153
Basic loss per share BREXEE
(expressed in HK$) (LB TTEIER) (0.53) (0.08)

(b) Diluted

(b)

3

The Group has no potentially dilutive shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

REBEE_ T _EFEKR_ZT—HIF
+_RA=t—HIEELRERL
EBBITBTEERMD -
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e HRR N

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 YME- -BERRE

Office
Land Plant furniture
and and and  Construction
buildings machinery  equipment  in progress Total
BN S
THREF BERESR #E TRIRE st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEETL BEETL BEETL BEETL BEETL
At 1 January 2019 RZZ2-NE—F—-H
Cost WA 2,629.9 1,047.3 88.5 103.6 3,869.3
Accumulated depreciation and R ERAERE

impairment loss (231.8) (448.8) (41.4) - (722.0)
Net book amount REFE 2,398.1 598.5 47.1 103.6 31473
Year ended 31 December 2019 ~ HE_Z—NE

+ZA=+—HIEE
Opening net book amount FNZREFE 2,398.1 598.5 471 103.6 3,147.3
Additions "B 79.2 63.2 79.3 115.8 3375
Transfer upon completion REMEER 1.8 719 242 (107.9) -
Transfer to investment properties ~ EZEREYE (HizH16)

(Note 16) (6.6) - - - (6.6)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEFRE 4.8) (8.7) (1.7) (1.0) (16.2)
Impairment loss (Note 7) HESE (f1527) (0.9 - - - (0.9)
Disposals HE (137.8) (54.7) (22.8) (4.8) (220.1)
Depreciation charge ERS (106.6) (83.1) (31.0) - (2207)
Currency translation differences ~ ERZE% (32.3) 4.9) 0.2 (0.4) (37.4)
Closing net book amount FRZREFE 2,200.1 582.2 953 105.3 2,982.9
At 31 December 2019 RZB-N&E+ZA=+—H
Cost PR AR 2,531.8 1,070.5 160.4 105.3 3,868.0
Accumulated depreciation and REMERAERE

impairment loss (331.7) (488.3) (65.1) - (885.1)
Net book amount REFE 2,200.1 582.2 95.3 105.3 2,982.9
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AREHM R RN

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ME- -BER=E @)

(continued)
Office
Land Plant furniture
and and and  Construction
buildings ~ machinery  equipment in progress Total
YNEE
THEEF RERES R fTRIR st
HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAET BEAET BEAET BEAT BEAET
Year ended 31 December 2020 HEIZIZR
+ZA=+—HIEE
Opening net book amount FNERDEE 2,200.1 582.2 95.3 1053 2,982.9
Additions RE 27.7 47.5 35.9 117.5 228.6
Transfer upon completion REmBEE 274 63.2 3.0 (93.6) -
Transfer to investment properties BERBEME (H:16)

(Note 16) (30.9) - - - (30.9)
Transfer to assets held for sale BEREHRERE (27 RK(i)

(Notes 27 & {iii)) (206.9) (49.9) (2.2) - (259.0)
Impairment loss (Notes 7 & (v) HEEE HETRW) (513) (633) (2.5) (32.9) (150.0)
Disposals HE (56.5) (33.3) (5.6) (2.2) (97.6)
Depreciation charge NERY (97.7) (94.2) (33.3) = (225.2)
Currency translation differences ERER 1328 322 4.7 5.4 175.1
Closing net book amount FRZEEFE 1,944.7 484.4 95.3 99.5 2,623.9
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZF+°A=1+—-H
Cost WA 2,396.3 1,090.5 192.7 99.5 3,779.0
Accumulated depreciation and EHMERABESE

impairment loss (451.6) (606.1) (97.4) - (1,155.1)
Net book amount REFE 1,944.7 434.4 95.3 99.5 2,623.9
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e HRR N

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
Notes:
(i) Construction in progress as at 31 December 2020 mainly comprises new

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

metal scrap processing machinery and equipment being constructed in
Europe.

As at 31 December 2020, property, plants and equipment with a net book
value of HK$1,888.2 million (2019: HK$1,905.0 million) were pledged to
secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the Group
(Note 36).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, property, plant and equipment
with net book values of HK$259.0 million were transferred to assets held
for sale. Upon the transfer, such property, plant and equipment have been
measured at the lower of their net book value and fair value less cost to sell
based on the expected sales price and an impairment loss of HK$51.1 million
has been recognised in “impairments on non-financial assets” in the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss. As a result, assets held for sale
recognised for these property, plant and equipment amounted to HK$207.9
million (Note 27).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised a provision
for impairment on property, plant and equipment of HK$150.0 million (2019:
HK$0.9 million) of which (a) HK$115.1 million related to idle assets in Asia
and Europe; and (b) HK$34.9 million were related to certain property, plant
and equipment in North America, which their recoverable amount is below
their carrying value based on management'’s assessment.

The recoverable amounts of performing property, plant and equipment is
determined through value-in-use (Note 17). Recoverable amounts for non-
performing property, plant and equipment is determined based on fair
value less cost of disposal. The Group has engaged valuers to obtain the
quoted prices of assets of similar nature to determine the fair value less cost
of disposal. Such fair value is classified as within Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy and the key assumption to which the recoverable amount is most
sensitive to would be the quoted price. If the quoted price decreases by 100
basis points, the provision for impairment will increase by HK$0.3 million.
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14 YME- -BERRE (@)

b 5%

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R _EE+"HA=+—HANEERTR
FTEOEEENERPNFBESBMT
188 R sl 1 o

RZEZZHE+"A=+—0 KEZE
#1,888. 2B 88T (ZZT—H4F :1,905.0
BEET) WME -BERRECIER £
RAERERETER R —RIBITREN
AR (MI5E36) ©

REE_S-ZF+_A=+—HIEE
A BREFEA259.0E8 BETHYE K
ERR{ESAFFHEESE -NEBE
ZEVE - BERRBEHENEHEER
HEMPERAFERHERAME RN
BREEE MAERBES 1588 TE
RAEBNGESERR FEMEERAE
PR AL ERZENE BERRE
BRNFIEHEEES207.98 & 8T (M
5£27) ©

REE_ZZFE+_B=+—HILF
B REBBYE - BRE KK HBESDAE
BEI15008 BB T (CE—HE: 0988
#7T) c Hf(a) 115. 1B B8Rl &ER
MHNREEESRD ; K(b) 34988 B
EENNEFTUE BREREZERR R
BEREENTE Ha ke EEREE
HfEe°

EEYME BERREBEHTROERE
EREEEE W:E17) - FRYE K&E
Fe 3% R BT Uy [0] & BRAR 35 A (&AL S B
RETE - AEEDEZBMEEMUEREL
HEEENRE UEEATERHER
o RATERBERAATEBRNEC
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o <
ARSI TSR AL
15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15 FEREEE
Office
Plant furniture
Land and and and Intangible
buildings ~ machinery  equipment assets Total
HAKE ] \
THEEF BERES Rkt ENEE et
4HK$M 4HK$M 4HK$M 4HK$M 4H|\<$M
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
At 1 January 2019 ey =
(upon adoption of HKFRS 16) (REMEEMBRE
ERE165%%)
Cost B A 607.6 4973 182.4 0.4 1,287.7
Accumulated depreciation, BHINE EHERRERE

amortisation and impairment loss (96.1) (181.6) (32.1) - (309.8)
Net book amount RETE 5115 315.7 150.3 0.4 977.9
Year ended 31 December 2019  HE_Z—H4F

TZA=T-RLEEE
Opening net book amount FREZE RRMEE

(upon adoption of HKFRS 16) BIBREENE165%) 511.5 315.7 1503 0.4 977.9
Additions HE 1349 170.0 90.8 - 395.7
Disposals HE 8.1) (2.5) (3.9 - (14.5)
Depreciation and EREHERS

amortisation charge (31.9) (88.2) (38.9) (03) (159.3)
Currency translation differences ~ ERZEH (7.2) (4.6) 2.2) - (14.0)
Closing net book amount FXRZEEFE 599.2 390.4 196.1 0.1 1,185.8
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hE+ZF=1—H
Cost A 725.9 640.9 258.0 04 1,625.2
Accumulated depreciation, REHTE B R AERR

amortisation and impairment loss (126.7) (250.5) (61.9) (03) (439.4)
Net book amount REFE 599.2 390.4 196.1 0.1 1,185.8
Year ended 31 December 2020 ~ HEZE-BE

T-A=T-HLEEE
Opening net book amount FRAEE 599.2 390.4 196.1 0.1 1,185.8
Additions AE 40.7 22.0 38.5 - 101.2
Disposals HE (6.0) (75.2) - - (81.2)
Depreciation and EREHEFAS

amortisation charge (56.5) (75.2) (59.8) (0.1) (191.6)
Impairment loss (Notes 7 & (iii)) ~ JB{EEE (B EE78(iii)) (63.9) (8.9) - - (72.8)
Transfer to assets held for sale BEREHEESE (f3H278(v)

(Note 27 & (iv)) (114.4) (48.2) (4.3) - (166.9)
Currency translation differences ~ ERZE% 26.1 1.4 325 - 70.0
Closing net hook amount FRZEREFE 425.2 216.3 203.0 - 844.5
At 31 December 2020 RZZ2ZIZF+ZHA=1—H
Cost 4 658.0 501.4 317.4 - 1,476.8
Accumulated depreciation, REME - EHERRERE

amortisation and impairment loss (232.8) (285.1) (114.4) - (632.3)
Net book amount REFE 425.2 2163 203.0 - 844.5
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2020, certain leasehold land and land use rights with a
net book value of HK$187.1 million (2019: HK$288.2 million were pledged to
secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the Group
(Note 36).

Expenses relating to short-term leases of HK$10.7 million (2019: HK$20.1
million) and expenses relating to leases of low-value assets that are not
classified as short-term leases of HK$4.8 million (2019: HK$13.4 million) were
charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended
31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised a provision
for impairment on certain leased land and building of HK$63.9 million in
Asia, which their recoverable amount is below their carrying value based on
management’s assessment. The remaining provision for impairment on right-
of-use assets of HK$8.9 million was related to certain leased equipment and
machineries in North America.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, right-of-use assets with a net book
value of HK$166.9 million (2019: Nil) were transferred to assets held for sale.
Upon the transfer, such right-of-use assets have been measured at the lower
of their net book value and fair value less cost to sell based on the expected
sales price and an impairment loss of HK$40.2 million has been recognised in
“impairments on non-financial assets” in the Group’s consolidated statement
of profit or loss. As a result, assets held for sale recognised for these right-of-
use assets amounted to HK$126.7 million (Note 27).
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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AREREEZRAXI07EEET CF
—NE 201 EEET) RAMLESER
REHECHEEEEREZM%488
BET(CE-AF 134888 B8
BE_ZZF+_A=+—HILEFEZ
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AREHM R RN

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 KEME
2020 2019
—EZRHE —EhEF
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEBIT
At 1 January iR—=/=|—(5 9.1 3.2
Depreciation charge ERX (2.3) (0.4)
Transfer from property, plant and EHAEVE BEKEE
equipment (Note 14) (MFsE14) 30.9 6.6
Transfer to assets held for sale (Note 27) BEFEHEEE (5F27) (19.0) =
Currency translation differences PER A RE 2.0 (0.3)
At 31 December R+=ZB=+—H 20.7 9.1
Notes: Ff5E
(i) The above investment properties, which are situated in the PRC (2019: the (i) TR (CE—AF  RE) NEREY

PRC), are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining useful lives.

(ii) The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2020 was
HK$82.4 million (2019: HK$16.6 million).

(iii) Rental income from these investment properties recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to HK$9.5 million (2019: HK$3.7 million) (Note 6).

(iv) As at 31 December 2020, investment properties with a net book value of
HK$20.7 million (2019: HK$9.1 million) were pledged to secure certain
borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 36).

RGBT RAFHAUERERERE-

(i) rEEREYVER_SE_Z5+_H4
=t+—HANRAFEARAGERT (CF
—NE 16.6BBATT) ©

(i) REE_E-ZEE+_F=1+—HIEFE
iR BERRANEINREZSRENHE
NEEWARISEEET CE—NEF:
3.788&%7m) (Mizk6) o

(iv) AR EE+/A=+—8 ' REZFE
Z207EEBAT (CE—AE 91858 E
7o) 2 BB EBRA UEATEERR
FEFERR—MRIBITRE ML
36) ©
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17 EREE

Customers’
relationship
Brand names, and Non-
Computer  patents and suppliers’  competition

Goodwill software licenses  relationship  agreement Total
mELE  EREERR HER

weE BliEf HRRER HAEEEG A st

HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEET  AEER BEAT BEAT BEAT BEET

ember 2019 HE-F—HE

+ZA=t+—HLEE
ENIREFE 756.9 45 287.0 101.7 338 1,183.9
RE - 56 - - - 56
HEFAH - - - (14.2) - (14.2)
HiHRES - (2.3) 9.7) 8.1) (22.0) (@2.1)
slation differences EREEE (11.6) - (4.4) (1.5) 0.7) (18.2)

amount . 272.9 779 "1 1,115.0

298.3 96.9 443 1,201.0
(25.4) (19.0) (332) (86.0)

272.9 779 "1 1,115.0
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(] =
e ERERNE
17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17 BEEE @
Customers'
relationship
Brand names, and Non-
Computer patentsand  suppliers’ competition
Goodwill software licenses relationship ~ agreement Total
mERTE  ERRGR ]
[k BE#M FARER HEEEG =G st
HK$SM HKSM HKSM HK$SM HK$M HK$M
BEAT BRAT BRAT BERAT BEAT BEAT
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z"FF
+ZA=T—HIEE
Opening net book amount FEREFE 745.3 7.8 272.9 71.9 141 1,115.0
Additions hE - 34 - - - 34
Impairment loss (Note 7) AEEE (f:7) (198.5) = (6.6) = = (205.1)
Amortisation charges BB - 3.7) (9.8) (7.5) (10.7) (31.7)
Currency translation differences  FERZ%8 50.1 03 20.1 5.5 (0.4) 75.6
Closing net book amount FXEEFE 596.9 7.8 276.6 75.9 - 957.2
At 31 December 2020 RIZZERE
+ZA=+-H
Cost B 596.9 20.3 314.6 104.3 47.7 1,083.8
Accumulated amortisation Rit - (12.5) (38.0) (28.4) (47.7) (126.6)
Net book amount REZE 596.9 7.8 276.6 75.9 - 957.2
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17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

Goodwill is recognised through the acquisition of Yantai Liheng
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd* (Z& IR
1REHE B RAF) (“Yantai Liheng”) and Scholz Holding GmbH
(“Scholz Holding”) in 2016. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives represented brand names.

Management reviews the business performance based on
geographic regions. It has identified Asia, Europe and North
America as the main regions. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Yantai Liheng is allocated to its own CGU in Asia
region and that arising from the acquisition of Scholz Holding
is allocated to metal recycling CGU in Asia, Europe and North
America regions. Brand names have been allocated to CGUs in
Europe and North America regions, respectively.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the recycling businesses in which the CGU
operates.

*  For identification only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives (continued)

For the impairment test for goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives, the key assumptions, long term growth
rate and discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are
disclosed below:

17

AREHM R RN

BREE (@
BERAERAEHFHZEREE
ZRERAR @&
MEEKREEREREREBFLE
EzRENS EREESERER
HNEERR EHREEERFTREE
BRTX:

oil
Metal recycling recycling
EREK Bz S B0
North
Asia Europe America Asia
[+ B JEEM )|
2020 ZEIEE
Long term growth rate RHEEX 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note (i) FRIRATITIRE (Iff5E()) 19.3% 13.7% 13.0% 19.3%
Gross profit margin ERE 5.3%-9.8% 8.2%-9.5% 17.9% 5.6%-6.3%

Revenue growth rate WEgRE 5.0%-30.1% 5.0%-14.2% -34.8%-4.0% 3.7%-50.9%
oil
Metal recycling recycling
EEEK & S B
North

Asia Europe America Asia
M B IEEM )|

2019 —E-hE
Long term growth rate REEEXR 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note () FRIRATITIRE (H15H() 17.7% 14.2% 13.9% 19.1%
Gross profit margin EF RS 5.2%-7.9% 7.7%-9.0% 8.0%-9.6% 3.2%-3.7%
Revenue growth rate g RE -18.8%-84.1% 2.3%-9.1% 3.3%-11.0% 2.0%-80.0%

Note:

(i) Pre-tax discount rate applied to the pre-tax cash flow forecast.

The North America region is undergoing business transformation
to strategically focus on the Southwest US operations, and
has divested or in the process of divesting the operations in
the Northeastern US. As a result of management’s cash flow
forecast of the remaining businesses in the North America
region, the recoverable amount of the North America CGU was
HK$202.0 million as at 31 December 2020, which resulted in an
impairment on goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
HK$183.9 million, HK$6.6 million, HK$23.4 million and HK$8.9
million, respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2020.

HisE -
O EBRERRERE TSR

b= E EETERER DIEKGE
HMEINREEAEPERE LEHE
NEEHEERFEIEHNER - T8
BRFLIEEERG FEBENIRES R
BAB R_E_FEF+_A=+—
H- bR e EE B el I [E & 28
AZ202.08 8B EREE_ZTZ
E+_A=+—HIEEEBHE A&
[RoAFRNELEE - YE RE
KB EREEEDFRE183.9
BEAIT 66EBR AT 23.4888BTT
K89\ &E BT o

ERRFERRRAR —EBE_ZFEFER
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives (continued)

An impairment loss of HK$14.6 million was also recognised
on Yantai Liheng’'s goodwill during the year, as the CGU's
recoverable amount was only HK$90.4 million based on
management’s assessment on the prospect of Yantai Liheng,
taking into account the fluctuations in the waste oil prices and
the competitive business environment. No other class of assets
other than goodwill was impaired.

The recoverable amounts for Asia, Europe and North America
CGUs would still exceed their remaining carrying amounts if the
assumptions were changed as follows:

3 lowering long term growth rate by 1 percentage point;
° raising pre-tax discount rate by 1 percentage point; or
° lowering revenue growth rate by 20% of the expected

growth rate.

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

17

BR.EE (B
HERABRRAIEAFHZEBIEE
ZRERIE (&)
RERNESILBEERIRESB
EBRI4eaERTT BAREEERE
HEQ AR (E B HE
EVR BN R B B BN IR IR) © 5%
REeELEURATIREIEEE£7590.4
BEABT REEN LEAMEE
LA

i (RS BB UN T > B2~ BUM K IE =M
REELEBUNPIWEIEEENSER
RERVEREE :

s RERAERXEE|IMETDM;

s KREMRAFTREXRMERD
BBl

s  RU=mERIXEERMERRHN
20% °



18

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 fERAfEmZYiRKZE

EQUITY METHOD

v

(a) Interest in an associate (a) MEFEATZER
2020 2019
—EEHF “E-NF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEAET
Cost of unlisted investment in REER B ZIELE™
an associate (Note) BERA (s 2.3 2.3
Share of post-acquisition eI BB RETEE
accumulated losses (0.7) (0.6)
1.6 1.7
Notes: MIsE <
Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting period are as AEENREARNBHE QB FBENOT ©
follows:
Proportion of
Place of ownership interest
Name of entity principal business held by the Group Principal activity
A EE [ FRiF
EHaE FTEEEHMI mHEEGLG EEES
Poly Metals Company Limited (“Poly Metals") Hong Kong 20% Trading of metal scrap
EEEBAERAD (TEE) 5E BESBRS
Poly Metals is a private company and there is no quoted market price available HENV AT R B RERH I FA S M TS
for its shares. B
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's T A RAAERNEE AR 2
interest in an associate. mZWAREE
Summarised financial information for an associate —EEERRZHBEREE
Set out below is the summarised financial information TR ERE 2 B E R E
for Poly Metals which is accounted for using the equity HEAER AR
method.

HaRFEERRAS
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18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(@) Interest in an associate (continued)

ER#EEEIIRINIRE (@)

(a) MEEARZMED (@

Summarised balance sheet EEERREE
2020 2019
—E_EHE —E—AEF
HK$M HK$M
BEATT BEET
Total current assets MEEEEE 34.0 40.5
Total non-current assets ERBEEHE 0.9 0.9
Total current liabilities BB B4R (34.5) (40.7)
Total non-current liabilities JERENEEAREE - -
Summarised statement of comprehensive income E2EHBREREE
2020 2019
—ERE —E-NE
HKSM HK$M
BEAT BEEBTT
Revenue U&= 62.5 233.4
Loss and total comprehensive loss BiEREEEEREE (0.4) (1.6)
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18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a)

Interest in an associate (continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income
(continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in Poly
Metals recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

AREHM R RN

18 fEREETIRNRE (&)

() MEEARZED (&
EEWBEREE (@)

b HER 2 AN B RS
ZREE RESMBRRARE
30 ZHIRWT :

2020 2019
—BER —ENE
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEETT

Net assets of Poly Metals as at BRER+ZA=1+—8%
31 December BEFE 0.4 0.7

Proportion of the Group’s ownership & @A E Eh 2 A 1

interest in Poly Metals T35 EE 20% 20%
Share of net assets of Poly Metals FEEEREEFE 0.1 0.2
Goodwill i 1.5 1.5
Closing carrying value FRIREE 1.6 1.7

The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the associate adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and
the associate.

LB R MR A & [ B a2 Fgh i
NEZ BT BREEZFRERR
ZMERRZHMBRERENZE
LED
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18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 {FR#EmE7IERNIEE (B
EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(b) Interests in joint ventures (b) MEELEZHER
Particulars of the significant joint ventures are set out FTEEECEEBEHRINT
below:
Place of
establishment/
principal place Principal  Measurement
Name of entity of business % of ownership interest activities method Carrying amount
R/
BiELE FTEEENY BEREZEA TEEH HEHE REE
2020 2019 2020 2019
k33 “B-hE k- 33 3-hE
HKSM HKSM
BEET BEET
Schrott und Metallhandel Germany 75% 75% Note (i) Equity 1334 119.7
M. Kaatsch GmbH = HizE() Bt
Scholz Austria GmbH Austria 63.35% 63.35% Note (ii) Equity 255.4 2146
B Tz (i) #a
Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. Mexico 50% 50% Note (i) Equity 1334 1295
L p(0)] 7
Rematholding Co. s.r.| Romania 50% 50% Note (iv) Equity 76.6 709
BEE: M3 (iv) B
Individually immaterial joint ventures Note (v) Equity 96.0 945
ERIFEXRELE M) B
694.8 629.2

Notes: FgEE

(i) Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH is a private company (i) Schrott und Metallhandel M.
and there is no quoted market price for its shares. It is engaged in Kaatsch GmbHZA—BIFAAN R E) K
collection, processing and trading of scrap metal in Germany. HE M w5 ERE Z AN E

ERERE - NMIKEERLES
Bo

(ii) Scholz Austria GmbH is a private company and there is no quoted (ii) Scholz Austria GmbHZA—RBFA AR
market price for its shares. It is engaged in metal recycling business in BRERM I ENIZRE ZAT
Austria. REMAREBESBER -

(iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. is a private company and there is (iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V.A—
no quoted market price for its shares. It is engaged in collection, R FA AR B) B E R 1 16 8 T 35 3R
processing and trading of scrap metal in Mexico. Bz ABINEAIFNEWE M

ITREBEBLSE-

(iv) Rematholding Co. s.r.l is a private company and there is no quoted

market price for its shares. It is engaged in collection, processing and (iv) Rematholding Co. s.rlZ—RFAA

RERHERNDEETSRE-ZRQ
AREEEERERE -MIRE
BERLEEE-

trading of scrap metal in Romania.
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18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 f{FR#EmZFIRINRE (B)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued) (b) MEEBLEZER (@)
Notes: (continued) MisE : (48
(v) In addition to the interests in joint ventures as disclosed above, the (v) BREXEBEZRaE X #ER
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint b REBTREBEERNFEAS
ventures that are accounted for using the equity method: EhxEaELR UEREREA
R :
2020 2019
k- e 23 —BNF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEHET

Aggregate carrying amount of individually ~ FMEBIIFEAEGEREZ
immaterial joint ventures IREEAEEE 96.0 94.5

Aggregate amount of the Group's share of: Z<£2 E fE(L ~ 48%8 :

Profit for the year FREF] 18.3 16.6
Other comprehensive loss Hith2EA518 = (0.2)
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEEE 18.3 16.4
Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of AREEREZRIERIAE
joint ventures &
The Group provided guarantees of approximately HK$38.0 KEBR-_ZEZZE+A
million (2019: HK$35.3 million) for borrowings to certain —t+—HEETEELEMRBR
joint ventures as at 31 December 2020 (Note 43 (c)). RMH38.088 BT (ZTE—H
F 353 | AT 2B R (s
43(0)) °
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's TRARAERReE X E
interests in the joint ventures. mZ HABE
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18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Summarised financial information for joint ventures

Set out below is the summarised financial information for
Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH, Scholz Austria
GmbH, Kalischatarra S.de R.L. de C.V. and Rematholding
Co. s.r.l which are accounted for using the equity method.
In the opinion of the Directors, these joint ventures are

material to the Group.

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

ER#EEEIIRINIRE (@)

(b) MEELEZEZD @
BELEZHMBENBE
TXH#HSchrott und
Metallhandel M. Kaatsch
GmbH, Scholz Austria GmbH
Kalischatarra S.de R.L. de C.V.&
Rematholding Co. s.rIB8 # &kt
BME EREGR AR BEER
RO ZEEELEHAERMS
BEK-

E2HWERTE

Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Austria Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH GmbH SdeRL deCV Rematholding Co. 5.
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZZ0%F E-AF Z3CEF TE-AF TECRF CD-AE CECRE CRAE
HKSM HK$SM HK$M HKSM HK§M HKSM HK§M HKSM
Bg#nr E8#n  ESAn  BEAn  BEEn EEEn  BBER EBER
Revenue W& 8539 9542 2,095 2,380.6 618.6 7084 634.0 652.9
Depreciation and amortisation 17 K& (287) (215 (64.7) (59.6) (18.0) (18.6) (17.6) (13.1)
Interest income FEKA 03 03 02 05 - - = -
Interest expense HEES (9 (4.9 9.1) (120 87 (126) (14) (12)
Income tax Fisi (%) /
(expense)/crediit % (3.0) (39) (136) (34) 30 (32 30 (03)
ProfitLoss) for the year ~ EREFI/
(B8 10.0 185 180 285 19.1 (29 22 (0.7)
Other comprehensive loss ~~ EfI2EEE - - (13) (6.6) (1.1) - = -
Dividends recelved from joint  EMAE (%
ventures R 34 83 58 83 - - = 39
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18
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

18 fEREETIRNRE (&)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued) (b) MEEBLEZER (@)
Summarised balance sheet BEEBEREE
Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH Austria GmbH S.deR.L de C.V. Rematholding Co. s.r.|
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Z5I%F IE-fF BT ZE-hE IZ3IFE ZEF-NE ZZIZF IZ3-hE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M
BEEBT EEEr BEBT  BEAr  BEET  BEEn  BEEEART  BEEE:n
Current it
Cash and cash equivalents FERBELLE
BB 20.5 20.9 191.6 1334 254 103 16.1 17.6
Other current assets HEttREEE 153.0 117.0 313.6 259.9 255.5 2274 213.7 165.8
Total current assets VEIEEEE 1735 137.9 505.2 3933 280.9 2377 2298 1834
Current financial liabilities  FE1S &R
(excluding trade payables)  (FBEES
FEf1508B) (11.1) (15.5) (255.1) (203.6) (106.5) (88.4) (57.6) (478
Other current liabilities HttREas (91.1) (176.0) (139.7) (85.9) (84.0) (65.5) (41.8)
Total current labilities MEaEEE (102.2) (76.7) (#31.9) (3433) (192.4) (172.4) (123.9) (89.6)
Total net current assets BB EBE
Fak] 713 61.2 741 50.0 88.5 65.3 106.7 938
Non-current FERE
Total non-current assets  JEREEELE 229.0 127 456.8 4118 188.3 196.6 533 58.8
Non-current financial FREEHER
liabilities (excluding trade ~ (FEHEE R
payables iz (B4 (1262 (420 (1175 (33.0) (18) (05) (16)
Other non-current liabilities EftIEREIEE (0.6) 0.7 (628) (77.1) (11.7) (13.3) (18.7) (20.6)
Total non-current liabilities  JERENEERE (136.0) (126.9) (204.8) (194.6) (44.7) (35.1) (19.2) (222
Net assets BEFE 164.3 147.0 326.1 267.2 2321 226.8 140.8 130.4
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18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 fFH#EDEFIRINRE (B)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued) (b) MEELEZEZR @)
Summarised balance sheet BEEERREE
Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH Austria GmbH S.deRL deCV. Rematholding Co. s.r.l
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

ZRIRE CE-nEF CECERE ZE-AE ZECEE CE-NE ZEIRE CE-RE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEEn BEEn  ERAn  BRET  EREm  BREET  BEER BEER

Reconciliation to carrying BRE{ESR :

amounts:
Operating net assets —PB—BHEE
at 1 January BETE 147.0 1415 2672 2618 2268 2197 1304 1439
Profiti(Loss) for the year R/
(B8 10.0 185 480 285 19.1 (29 22 (07)
Other comprehensive loss B 5ER - = (13) (6.6) (1.1) - = -
Dividend paid EfiRs (45) (1.1 (9.1) (13.) - - - 79
Currency translation EREE
differences 118 (19 213 (34) (12.7) 10.0 8.2 (5.0)
Closing net assets HREELE 1643 147.0 3261 212 2321 268 1408 1304
Group's share in % REEELR
Bt 75% 75% 63.35% 63.35% 50% 50% 50% 50%
Group'sshare in HKSM ~ AEEE(EEE
BT 1232 110.3 206.6 169.3 116.1 134 704 65.2
Goodwil BE 10.2 94 48.8 453 173 16.1 6.2 57
Closing carrying value FXREAE 1334 119.7 255.4 2146 1334 1295 76.6 709
The information above reflects the amounts presented in B RMMAEREZES
the consolidated financial statements of the joint ventures EhEZEHABRERFRARE
adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the REZESELEZREUBRE
Group and the joint ventures. Ex a0

230 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



— == N - y -
*ﬁ \
‘ .
P~~~h§ i
g '-.'9"".’ &

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all held for
trading and include the following:

19

Unlisted equity securities JELHREAES
At 1 January nw—A—H
Additions NE

Disposals HE

Fair value change NEEEE)
Currency translation differences S EZEL

At 31 December “+ZA=+—H
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20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
comprise equity securities of unlisted entities located in Czech
Republic, Poland and Germany. They are all held as long-term
strategic investments that are not expected to be sold in the short
to medium term and include the following:

BRAFEStARMEZEKZEZ
THMEE

BATESFAHMEEREZ SRE
EOEURERAME RERERE
BFETERNRAZSF 2T/
EEDFFAEMREFIRANTEH
EZREIRBEMRE  BEUTEE:

2020 2019
—EETHF “E-NEF
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEBT

Unlisted equity securities JE LR AR S
At 1 January w—RB—H 98.7 111.0
Disposals HE (0.3) (2.9)
Fair value change NEBEEH) (1.1) (7.5)
Currency exchange differences PE R A RE 7.3 (1.9)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 104.6 98.7

On disposal of these unlisted equity securities, any related
balance with the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income is reclassified to retained earnings.

Dividend income of HK$2.5 million (2019: HK$4.8 million) from
these unlisted equity securities are recognised in “other income”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2020 (Note 6).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IR MEE
21 DEFERRED TAXATION 21 RIEFRIA
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income RIEFTRMEBEEREIEFTSMABERZ
tax liabilities is as follows: DA -
2020 2019
—E_EHE “E—hNEF
HKSM HK$M
BEATT BEBTT
Deferred income tax assets: EIEFRISINEE ©
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 1218 B & Uk BB
after 12 months RERIEE E 57.1 81.0
Deferred tax assets to be recovered REFL 1218 B AU B89
within 12 months EIERRIEE B 53.3 28.3
110.4 777777717097377
Deferred income tax liabilities: IRIEFTEINEE !
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled R 12E B BEEW
after 12 months IRILIRIEEE (304.2) (318.2)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled R 121E B REEEN
within 12 months RIERIEEE (59.6) (24.6)
,,,,, (363.8) = (428
Deferred income tax liabilities, net IRIEFRISRAEFEE (253.4) (233.5)
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B RBRER ML
21 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 21 RIEMRIE (B)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FRNIRLEFMSNEEREBBRZES R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of R E—MR B ENEEE N A ERIEEE)
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: I
Accelerated
Deferred income tax
tax liabilities depreciation Others Total
niE
EEFSREsE TRIEINE Hith “Et
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEBT BEET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ2—hF—B—H 349.0 31.4 380.4
Credited to the consolidated REiFEEmRETA
statement of profit or loss (21.6) (10.1) (31.7)
Credited to the consolidated RizaHEMEE
statement of other W &R A
comprehensive income - (1.4) (1.4)
Currency translation differences PE R ZRE (5.6) 1.1 (4.5)
At 31 December 2019 N2 —NEF
+ZB=+—H 321.8 21.0 342.8
(Credited)/Charged to the RéraiBnk GtA)
consolidated statement of profit 0Fx
or loss (36.3) 33.6 (2.7)
Credited to the consolidated RizaHMEE
statement of other W &R s A
comprehensive income - (0.2) (0.2)
Currency translation differences PERZ=%E 20.8 3.1 23.9
At 31 December 2020 R _BF
+=B=+—H 306.3 57.5 363.8
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AR ERN
21 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 21 RERIE (B
Decelerate Unrealised
tax profit on
Deferred income tax assets Tax losses depreciation  Provisions  inventories Others Total
R RER
BEMEREE REBE  RERE BE wEHEN Hith @zt
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEEn BEErT BHEEAR BEEn  BRERT  BEAR
At 1 January 2019 RZB-n£E-A-A (65.2) (10.6) (22.6) (33) 47.0) (148.7)
Charged/(Credited) to the REGBHEXNR/ GA)
consolidated statement
of profit or loss 14.0 (3.8) 10.8 0.2) 16.5 373
Credited to the consolidated REREMZE
statement of other WE R A
comprehensive income - - - - (0.5) (0.5)
Currency translation differences ~ BEREE 12 03) 0.7 - 1.0 26
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-hE
+-B=1+-H (50.0) (14.7) (1.1 (3.5) (30.0) (109.3)
Charged/(Credited) to the Rz aBERENR/ GIA)
consolidated statement
of profit or loss 36.0 5.8 (9.0) 0.4 (27.0) 6.2
Credited to the consolidated REREMZE
statement of other WaE&RA
comprehensive income - - - - (0.4) 0.4
Currency translation differences ~ BERER (22 02 (12) - (33) 6.9
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZE
+-B=+-H (16.2) 9.1) 213) 3.1) (60.7) (110.4)

The Company controls the dividend policy of its subsidiaries and
the Directors do not have an intention to distribute the retained
earnings of certain subsidiaries such that deferred income tax
liabilities of HK$126.9 million (2019: HK$139.9 million) have
not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of these
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled HK$634.4 million
(2019: HK$630.2 million) as at 31 December 2020.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did
not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$510.8 million
(2019: HK$475.3 million) in respect of tax losses amounting to
HK$2,298.3 million (2019: HK$2,098.7 million). Unrecognised
tax losses of HK$1,913.5 million (2019: HK$1,482.6 million) have
no expiry date and the remaining tax losses will expire at various
dates up to and including 2025 (2019: 2038).

AT EHFRATHRKEBRRE
EEEDRETFRABEZRERA
WAL ZETF AR KREHRAE
48 40 09 TE 0 70 B E M 72 TE e 5 R S ARy
BRad2eomEsT CE—NF:
1399 & BT cR_BE_FF+_H
=+—H RKELBANEGHEA63445
BET(CE—HE 63028EHB7TT) °

AT B AL 2 7R TE RS B R 5T

Fr 18 ﬁéﬁ&"l&fguﬁ%ﬁﬁlﬁh%ﬂ
EEEBAHBZERNEMNERES
fRoREE T EFIRIERE2,298. 38
BT (CE—HE 2,08 7888
7T) FE SRR IE PSR B S 10.8F B3 78 7T
(ZE—N%5E : 4753E BB T) o KE
FMIEEE1,9135888T (CE—N
F 11,482 6@ BT LEERBAH
M FTMEBEEBZNR S _HE (CE

—NE TB=N\E) (BEZE) 8K
BIZ B HEREm °
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ARSI RS ML

22 INVENTORIES 22 F8
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NE
HKS$M HK$M
BEAT BEET
Raw materials Rt 339.3 338.0
Work-in-progress M - 33.8
Finished goods LYo 830.0 1,124.1
1,169.3 1,495.9

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$10,174.7 million (2019: HK$12,123.1
million), which included net provision for impairment on inventory
of HK$18.5 million (2019: reversal of provision for inventory of
HK$1.9 million) (Note 8).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged inventories with
a net book value of HK$837.4 million (2019: HK$711.7 million)
to secure certain borrowings and general facilities to the Group
(Note 36).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, inventories with a net
book value of HK$31.3 million (2019: Nil) were transferred to
assets held for sale (Note 27).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged trade
receivables with a net book value of HK$1,277.9 million (2019:
HK$701.7 million) to secure certain borrowings and general
banking facilities to the Group (Note 36).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, trade and other
receivable with a net book value of HK$28.7 million (2019: Nil)
were transferred to assets held for sale (Note 27).

—J ==,
ARSI TSR AL
23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 HB5 - -ZEEREMEWEIE
2020 2019
—ECE =S EE
HKSM HK$M
BEAT BEATT
Trade receivables B 5 EWIB 1,336.6 983.1
Less: loss allowance o EEEE (50.0) (39.9)
Trade receivables, net B EWRRIEFE 1,286.6 943.2
Bills receivables FEUN ik 15.4 14.1
Deposits and prepayments & &RTENRIE 165.8 139.1
Deposits paid for purchase of raw materials B E R~ BFiE 40.6 39.3
VAT recoverable AR [EIE(ER 99.4 116.4
Other receivables (Note) Hhpg s (fist) 105.4 140.7
1,713.2 1,392.8
Less: non-current portion W IERENE D
Other deposits and receivables Hh¥z & K FEWRRIE (4.2) (17.0)
1,709.0 1,375.8
Note: As at 31 December 2020, the balance includes a receivable of HK$45.2 Mz : R-BZBE+-RA=+—H GHRaE
million (2019: HK$64.0 million) from the Taizhou Bay Committee, a REFEBNEREMNEEE G RIKIE
government authority in the PRC. 452EBET (CE—NE 640885
JT) °

A ZEIERFE+ A =+—H K&
EEREFER12779888 T (C°ZT
—NE 70175 EET) ZERIFES
FEUSGRIE U RS EEERNE T

BRIk —ARIRTTRE (F15E36) ©

REET

TZE+_/B=+—Hik

FEREPEA28.7TABET (CE

—heE

=) NE 5 R EMERTRIESE

REFHEBE ((5E27) °

EERFEEEARAE

—F =

—_— =
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e HRR N

23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23
(continued)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of the gross
trade receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

g5
(&)

R R HE W TRIE

RZB_EFR_F-NAF+A
=+—H BZERERABERER

HEARVBREC DATAO T -

2020 2019
—E=% .
HKS$M HK$M
BEAT BEBT
0 — 90 days 0&90H 1,230.7 885.8
91 — 180 days 91£2180H 41.7 48.1
Over 180 days BiB180H 64.2 49.2
1,336.6 983.1

(a) Fair values of trade receivables (a) EBZREBHIEBEATE

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
their carrying amount is considered to approximate their
fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b)

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group measures the expected credit losses on the
trade and bills receivables by grouping them based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The Group has divided the trade and bills receivables into
three groups shared with similar credit risk characteristics
based on geographical locations which are Asia, Europe
and North America. The expected loss rates are estimated
based on the historical credit losses experienced, adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group's view of forward looking
economic conditions. On that basis, the loss allowances
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were determined as
follows:

AREHM R RN

23 EB5 - REREMEBUTRIE

()

(b) REREEEE
FEBRBHBEERBREER
BIARBOLE 5 KRR B EWGRIE
B’J?EHH%EE??%LEQ@#EO
FEBEERBEDMN BN RIEE

\E’Ji’@iifiﬁﬂ%%%&mﬁﬁﬂﬂl
MIED EBRUEERRER
N=H -RHBEERZRBEEE
BT TR RS BR (i 51 > T ASER 2R DU BR
W B FE SR B AR B 2 AR T
IR B R T e 2 £ [ Al R ME A AR
MEBERZER-RBILEE
“ECEER-F-AETA
=+—HBHNBRBFEEENT

Gross carrying

amount
Expected - trade and bills
credit loss rate receivables Loss allowances
HHERMEE
—BoKREE
FEHAfE EREEXR FEURRIE E5iE R E
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEET
As at 31 December 2020
RIZEZEF+ZHA=+—H
Active accounts
JEERER A
Current 0.4% 918.9 3.2
BPHA
Past due 1 — 30 days 3.4% 240.0 8.2
AHER1ZE30K
Past due 31 - 90 days 3.2% 70.2 2.2
#HA31E90K
Past due over 90 days 17.3% 104.6 18.1
BHAEBIE0X
Terminated accounts 100% 18.3 18.3
BKIEER A
Total 1,352.0 50.0
st
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ARSI RS ML

23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 B -ERKREMEWKHRIE
(continued) =)
(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued) (b) EEREMREE (@&

Gross carrying

amount
Expected — trade and bills
credit loss rate receivables Loss allowances
REREE
—B9KREE
TEHREEEREX FEU IR g
HK$M HK$M
BEET BE&ATT
As at 31 December 2019
g e e = e — ]
Active accounts
JEERER P
Current 0.8% 723.8 6.1
BNER
Past due 1 — 30 days 5.4% 182.6 9.8
BHA1E30K
Past due 31 — 90 days 8.0% 51.0 4.1
AHA31E90K
Past due over 90 days 19.9% 24.8 4.9
0 BREBAE90K
Terminated accounts 100% 15.0 15.0
BKIEER A
Total 997.2 39.9
“ast
Loss allowances on terminated accounts are mostly from BRIFERPHEEEERE DR EEMN
the Asia region and majority of the loss allowances on & RIERBERP B IEERE R D
active accounts are from the Europe and North America REBUNFAIEEMNHE o
regions.

240 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARSI TSR AL
23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 B -EEREMEWKRFIE

(continued) =)

(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued) (b) REREREE (&)
Movements on the Group's loss allowance of trade REEE FEWRIEZ BIERHE
receivables are as follows: ZEBHBRAT

2020 2019

—EZE —E-NHF

HKSM HK$M

BEATT BEAT

At 1 January w—B—H 39.9 62.8

Increase/(Decrease) in loss BB EREE

allowance recognised 1, Gels) 10.0 (21.0)
Receivables written off during FRMEEER AT IRE 2

the year as uncollectable FEW TR (2.8) (1.3)

Currency translation differences PE R = RE 2.9 (0.6)

At 31 December R+ZHR=+—H 50.0 39.9
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e HRR N

23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23
(continued)

(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, provision for impairment on
other receivables amounted to approximately HK$9.9
million (2019: HK$8.7 million).

The other classes within trade, bills and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables, net
of provision, are denominated in the following currencies:

B5-

(49
(b)

RiE R HEthEURIE

ER BRI (&)
R_B_BF+_RB=+—H"
HA WG R EE#549.9
BEBT(CET-NF 87EHS
BT °

B85 RERHMEBWRIAERH
BT AESEREEE &
ERETEREEURTRIEE
fRe

FEEZ B 5 EWRIE GO
#) ZIREED U T EIBE:

2020 2019
—EEH —E—NEF

HK$M HK$M

BEATT BEET

RMB AR 95.6 94.9
EUR BT 869.6 540.9
Us$ E7T 225.4 208.7
Other currencies HEME 96.0 98.7
1,286.6 943.2

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other receivables are
mainly denominated in RMB, EUR and US$ (2019: RMB,
EUR and US$) as at 31 December 2020.

24 FIXED RETURN INVESTMENT 24

As at 31 December 2019, the fixed return investment of HK$88.4
million represented investment with fixed interest at 7% per
annum and was fully repaid in May 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 TEERTA
2020 2019
ZEIEE “ENE
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEAT
Derivative financial assets TTEEmEE
Metal commodities future contracts TBERPAESL (IEG)
(Note (i) 9.9 24.3
Foreign currency forward contracts MR ER S A (MY EE(Gii))
(Note (ii)) 4.4 0.7
14.3 25.0
Derivative financial liabilities ?5?35%%11&1;
Metal commodities future contracts EBERPEE4 (IEa0)
(Note (i) (59.4) (30.1)
Foreign currency forward contracts MR R G 4T (B 5E()
(Note (ii)) (0.3) 0.1)
(59.7) (30.2)
Notes: Pk -
(i) Metal commodities future contracts (i) TEERAEESH
The Group enters into copper and other metal future contracts and options in AEETIAKEMEBHES O R
order to manage its exposure to the price risk of inventories. These contracts BOUEEBRHGFENERRAR ZEEN
are actively traded in an active market and are measured at fair values based RIER ISR ERIARBNREHAZ
on quoted price as at reporting date, with gain or loss recognised directly in REZRAFEF2 HEBREERGS
consolidated statement of profit or loss. BRI o
The notional principle amount of the outstanding metal commodities future KEEcBERPAESANAESSES
contracts was approximately HK$888.3 million (2019: HK$1,057.2 million). #9888 3BT (ZZ2—N4F : 1,057.28
BATT) ©
(ii) Foreign currency forward contracts (ii) IMBIEEAGH
The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to A& @ 5T I 9N IR A & A0 LURVE S BE /R

mitigate its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were
measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The notional principle amount of the outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts were approximately HK$621.7 million (2019: HK$106.2 million).

Mo % B4 RS R AR B EE
ERATENE ARARERRNEER
HEERRER

REHIBRBEANBEARSEBNS
621 7B AT (CT—HAE: 1062E8%E

7)) ©
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e HRR N

26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 26 EBIEHRITEARRERIRE
CASH EQUIVALENTS LHEER
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to BIRFIRTEMIERRTEFEU AR
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits EEERN—RIBTEEFRENT
amounting to HK$122.7 million (2019: HK$191.7 million) have 12278887 (T2 —NF 11917
been pledged to secure bank borrowings, and are therefore BEET NEREIRFERITER
classified as current assets (Note 36). H#ER Bt o ERREEE (M
36) °
During the year ended 31 December 2020, cash and cash RE&E_ZE_ZHF+_"_A=+—HL
equivalents of HK$1.7 million (2019: Nil) were transferred to FENTEEBTCE—AF BB
assets held for sales (Note 27). HEMREEEREEEAREHEEE
(B5E27) o
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and short-term bank HeMREEEBEEERIBEA=
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. BA U THIRE RIGHRTENR
2020 2019
—ETHE —E-NEF
HK$M HK$M
BEHET BEAT
Cash at bank and on hands RITAFHERE 905.5 773.1
Security deposit (Note) ReEE (5H) 8.3 11.7
Total cash and cash equivalents as per GeRERERZEER
consolidated statement of cash flows REEEEBLE 913.8 784.8

Note: The balance represents a deposit placed with a financial institution as security
for open metal commodity future contracts. The security deposit is non-
interest bearing.
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AREHM R RN

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

27 HEHEEE

2020 2019
—TTHF —E-NE
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEAT
Property, plant and equipment (Note (i) M BB K& (BIEEG) 168.2 -
Right-of-use assets (Note (ii)) FEREEE GIsEi) 62.0 =
Investment properties (Note (ii) BEYE FEEG)) 19.8 =
Disposal yards in US (Note (iii)) HEEBE TS (ki) 1.0 =
Disposal yards in Europe (Note (iv)) HEBUNT 5 Fistv)) 14.3 =
265.3 =
Representing transfers from: f5EA
Property, plant and equipment, ME- BB REE
net of impairment (Note 14) MRAE zE14) 207.9 =
Right-of-use assets, fEREEE
net of impairment (Note 15) OB E (MF5E15) 126.7 =
Investment properties (Note 16) KREWE (MI5E16) 19.0 =
Inventories (Note 22) =8 (Mftzk22) 31.3 =
Trade and other receivables (Note 23) B 5 EEMEWRIE
(HtzE23) 28.7 4
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) REMREEEES
(Mi5E26) 1.7 -
Borrowings (Note 31) & (M9sE31) (8.5) =
Lease liabilities (Note 32) HE&E (isE32) (97.7) -
Trade and other payables (Note 34) B 5 R EMES RIS
(HtzE34) (51.0) o
Currency translation differences bE 72 = %8 7.2 =
265.3 =

TR
H
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e HRR N

27 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued) 27

Notes:

A thorough review has been conducted on the Group's business portfolio and resulted
in various optimisation initiatives, including restructuring loss-making operations and
disposal of certain non-performing assets. Therefore, the following assets had been
classified as assets held for sale during the year ended 31 December 2020:

RIELEEE (B

P 5E -

EFREHAKENEBEASETHERI LS
HEBELCEE CREMABEEFNHEST
FTREE-RAI REE_F_FF+_-_A=+—

HEFE UTEEREFCOERAFEHESR

E:

(i) Certain land, building, plant and equipment located in Asia and Europe with (i) REFEDHAB7T09BBETRITIEE
a net book value of HK$70.9 million and HK$97.3 million, respectively. The 7870 B9 70 RO R BUMN B9 F i~ 1%
Group is actively looking for potential buyers in the market. F BEKREH AEBETHEBSIHRT

B EWBEER.

(ii) Certain leased lands and investment properties with a net book value of (ii) RECFED R A62.08EBTRIVEES
HK$62.0 million and HK$19.8 million, respectively, located in Asia. The Group BTN EMNNETFHELHRIEEY
is actively looking for potential buyers in the market. H AEFHEABMESHTSE LETE

Ko
(i) Assets and liabilities related to certain yards located in the Northeastern US: (iii) BN EERIEMNETIHEMNEE
2020
—ETH
HK$M
BEAT
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFELENEE

Property, plant and equipment ME-BERRE 17.4
Right-of-use assets EREEE 21.4
Total assets of disposal yards held for sale HERFHE THMNEEE 38.8

Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale B FHESEEZERNaa
Lease liabilities HEaE (37.8)
Total liabilities of disposal yards held for sale HERFRE I BNEEE (37.8)

The sale is expected to be completed before June 2021.
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AREHM R RN

27 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued) 27 HIEHEEE @)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Bz (48)

Assets and liabilities related to certain yards located in Europe: (iv) BETBNTIHREMNEERERE
2020
k- a2 3
HK$M
BEAT
Assets classified as held for sale DERAFELENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB REE 27.7
Right-of-use assets ERAREE 48.3
Inventories =78 32.5
Trade and other receivables B 5 RHEHMEWRIE 29.7
Cash and cash equivalents HeERAEEEER 1.7
Total assets of disposal yards held for sale REHETSNREE 139.9
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale HERFFHEEEERAMNERE
Lease liabilities HEAE (63.7)
Trade and other payables B 5 KREMEARIE (53.1)
Borrowings R (8.8)
Total liabilities of disposal yards held for sale FEHETHBNESRE (125.6)

The sale is expected to be completed before June 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised impairments (v)
on assets held for sale of HK$91.3 million in “impairments on non-financial
assets” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 7).

As at 31 December 2020, an investment property which was classified as (vi)
assets held for sale with a net book value of HK$3.0 million was pledged to

secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities to the Group (Note

36).

HEBSBR B —F/BAISEM

BE_Z_THE+_B=+—HIEE:
AEERGEBER FEREERE]F
HEAFFHEEEREN 3EEBT
57) °

RIEZZFE+-A=+—8 EEZE
AIVEBEBTHBEARFHELEENL
BEMECFEIRE > UAREDERE TE
BR—MERTRE (fEF36) °
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28 g7
EERRE

Share capital

[EES
HK$M
BEET
s of HK$0.01 each at R-ZE—hE—B—8-
/2019, 31 December 2019, —E-NE+ZR
y 2020 and 31 December 2020 =+—B8-Z2Z=fF
-~ —B—BR_S_2&
+ZA=+—Hz
SREE.OVB Tz EER 50
i fully paid BRITRERE
i 019, 31 December 2019, RZZ2—NEFE—HF—HB->
020 and 31 December 2020 —E-NE+ZH
E =+—A-ZEZ%F
—B—BR-E-T4E
+_-_B=+—H 16.1
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AREHM R RN

OTHER RESERVES

29

Hithf#

Foreign
Capital Statutory Enterprise  Remeasurement ~ Remeasurement currency
Share redemption Capital general expansion on financial of pension translation
premium reserve reserve reserve fund assets plans reserve Total
) ) Efiit8 EfitE
RiVER  EAREHE Al EE-REE  CERRES SHEE Bhgsl  SMRERRR A
HKSM HKM HK$M HKSM HKSM HK$M HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEET BEET BEER BEAT BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET
(Note {i) (Note (i) (Note i)
(H3) GEED) (GED)
At 1 January 2019 RZF-nE-F-B 59119 03 2109 107.1 107.1 - 24 3805 6,720.
Currency translation differences on SN EH 2 EREE
foreign operations - - - - - - - (90.7) 907)
Change in the fair value of BATEFARMZEREZ
financial assets at fai value SHEEZATERD
through other comprehensive iR
income, net of tax - - - - - (6.1) - - (6.1)
Remeasurement of post-employment  EistEESLEFRHHZ
benefit obligations, net of tax BAEE NBRE - - - - - - @1 - 1)
Share of other comprehensive loss A E A2 2 EM2 AR
of joint ventures - - - - - - 44 - (4.4)

At 31 December 2019 RIE-nE+ZR=+-8 59119 03 2109 107.1 107.1 (6.1) (6.1) 2898 6,6149

At 1 January 2020 RZEF5-F-H 59119 03 2109 107.1 1071 (6.1) (6.1) 289.8 6,614.9

Curency translation differences ~ BNERZERER

on foreign operations - - - - - - - 3874 3874

Change in the fair value of T AR ERG

finandial assets at fair value SHEEZATERY)

through other comprehensive MBRE

income, net of tax - - - - - (09) - - (09)
Remeasurement of post-employment Bt EESEREHRHZ

benefit obligations, net of tax BHED NKRE - - - - - - (08) - (08)
Share of other comprehensive loss of EfEAEEE 7 EM2 AR

Joint ventures - - - - - - (13) = (13)

Deregistration of a subsidiary HEPLE - - 105 - - - - - 105

At 31 December 2020 RZE_FF+°A=+-H 59119 03 m4 107.1 107.1 (10) (82) 677.2 7,000.8

Notes: PEE -

(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal (i) BAREBIEQARANR S NFEEEHE
value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries AT F AR RA KRN HEBE
acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the EERRA B RIGREFMFETRMN ZEE
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a WEZEROD -_Z—E2FERERRERZ
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010. “afn o

(ii) Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the (ii) RABREFRBNEBERMARE

appropriation of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC as required by the Articles
of Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may
cease to apply if the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise
expansion fund has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.
The statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or to increase share capital.

ARBEDEARE st RA KA REER R
MBEF10%BAEE —RIFEFEREHEE
REZ -HEE—REBREEERES
BRERETEF AR EMEASES50%  RIA
BRIEBE - ZE—REBREEZERES

B AR S B T E RS RSB N AR AR o
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e HRR N

30 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

30

JEERR e

Share of net liabilities of

subsidiaries
FriEFARBEFE
2020 2019
—E_EHE “Z2—AF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEEAT
At 1 January w—B—H (10.3) (29.4)
Transactions with non-controlling interests B2 JE4ERG TR 11T 5 10.9 25.9
Share of loss for the year, net FRPTLEIEFEE (16.1) (5.1
Share of other comprehensive FEMLEMmEmEE (58
income/(loss), net et 2.1 (1.7)
At 31 December w+ZA=+—H (13.9) (10.3)
31 BORROWINGS 31 gk
2020 2019
—TITHF —Z—-hF
HKS$M HK$M
BEAT BEERAT
Non-current JETRED
Bank borrowings IRITER 178.3 226.4
178.3 226.4
Current RED
Bank borrowings RITIER 604.8 547.3
Other borrowings HiEmR 1,515.3 2,021.7
2,120.1 2,569.0
Total borrowings fETRAEER 2,298.4 2,795.4
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31 g (@

RTERNAEHBEE BEEZT
“hEALECE—AF  ZE-A
F)» FHEREFENF1.0%E7.5%

(ZTE—NE  EFE11%ES8.5%) ©

31 BORROWINGS (continued)

Bank borrowings mature at various dates up to 2029 (2019:
2029) and bear average coupons ranging from 1.0% to 7.5% per
annum (2019: 1.1% to 8.5% per annum).

RIBE_EBEER-_ZE—NE+_A
=5 =R Z!KEEE TREMBERZ

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's bank and other
borrowings were repayable as follows:

FEERBERNT

Bank borrowings Other borrowings Total

BITER LAt i R st
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
—ET2EF TET-hG TB_EF “E-AF “E"BE “T2HE
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEEr BEErT BEET BEERT BEERD
Within 1 year —FR 604.8 547.3 1,515.3 2,021.7 2,120.1 2,569.0
Between 1 and 2 years —EmME 147.4 180.1 - - 147.4 180.1
Between 2 and 5 years MERLF 28.4 41.2 - - 28.4 412
Over 5 years AENE 2.5 5.1 - - 2.5 5.1
178.3 2264 - = 178.3 226.4
783.1 773.7 1,515.3 2,021.7 2,298.4 2,795.4

The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings are

IRITREMERZIREEDUATIEG

denominated in the following currencies: HEatE -
2020 2019
—ECEE “E—hEF
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEBTT
EUR BlT 253.9 541.1
Us$ E7T 1,746.9 1,854.1
RMB AR 164.6 273.1
Czech Koruna (“CzK") R Rl (ERRE) 122.3 82.5
Danish Krone (“DKK") FE (TFZERRR) - 9k
Polish Zloty (“PLN") Rk (TZX 8 R)) 10.7 34.7
2,298.4 2,795.4
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31

BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had aggregate facilities of
approximately HK$5,182.4 million (2019: HK$5,969.2 million)
for loans, factoring and guarantees. Unused facilities as at the
same date amounted to approximately HK$1,604.1 million (2019:
HK$2,393.2 million) which were uncommitted facilities. These
facilities are secured/guaranteed by certain properties, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties, inventories,
trade receivables, assets held for sale and bank deposits with
an aggregate amount of HK$4,337.0 million (2019: HK3,807.4
million) (Note 36).

Included in other borrowing, there was a 2-year syndicated term
loan drawn down in 2018 with a balance of US$195.0 million
as at 31 December 2020. The loan matures on 31 March 2021
and its maturity date has been further extended to January 2022
subsequent to the year-end, with some terms, amongst which
financial undertakings, were revised (Note 2.1.1).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, borrowings of HK$8.5
million (2019: Nil) were transferred to liabilities directly associated
with assets held for sale (Note 27).

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
values.

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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fam (48)
NZEBE-EFE+_BA=+—H &&
EMER - RERMRZEEERE
K%45,1824B8 8T (T8 —F:
5,969.2HE BT AHFXEBAEE
KMAE1,6041EEEBT (CTE—NEF:
2,3932E88T)  EHAKREKEEE.
ZEEETYRAETYE BB K&E
TRAREE - REVE-FE -BH
ERFRIBE - FIEREBEMRETHER
40EE4,337.08 88T (ZE—NE:
3,807 4B & BT EIRIR R (s
36) °

R_EBE_ZEFE+_HB=+—HBz2H
MEREBER S — N\FIRINE
HIFE TS Hif%EA195.08
BET -ZEERN_T_—£=A8
=—+—HEH HIPHBE—PIE
EEFEFRvBHN_E-_—_—HF H
A TR (BT EE) BEER]
(MF5E2.1.1) ©

RBZZF_TF+_/=+—HIL
FE 8SEEBET(CE—AF BN
BEERAKFLESEERERN
afE (Fa27) -
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32 LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group leases various land and land use rights, property, plant,
equipment and intangible assets (Note 15). Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 62 years but may have
extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group's lease liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

AREHM R RN

32 HHE&E

REFEBEERE MR+ HERRE-
ME-BE - RERBTVEE (W&
15) HESMNBREITA—ENTF
BY[EIE HAFR - MERTHE A SRR EE 14 - 1
EFRMRENEEETER ©82%
BABNERRE S - HEBZETIE
PRI 2255

TRETTEREAEEER_T=F
FR_ZB-NF+ZA=+—HZEHK
TEMEERER

2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NE
HKS$M HK$M
BEEAT BEAT
Gross lease liabilities HEaGERsE
— minimum lease payments —REREMR
No later than 1 year TR —5 221.9 216.2
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years ER—EBNERAE 322.9 537.6
Later than 5 years BRAF 59.5 117.6
604.3 871.4
Future finance charges on leases FENRKRMESH (59.8) (110.3)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaENRE 544.5 761.1
The present value of lease HEaENRENT :
liabilities is as follows:
No later than 1 year TEBR—%F 202.2 191.7
Later than 1 year BR—F 342.3 569.4
544.5 761.1

Interest expenses on lease liabilities of HK$29.7 million (2019:
HK$18.5 million) was charged to finance cost for the year ended
31 December 2020 (Note 10).

The total cash outflow for leases was HK$257.8 million (2019:
HK$232.2 million) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

HEEGEZMERS29 7888 T (&
Z—hF 18588 BT BAfAEE
—ECES+ - A=+—HIEFEZ
M (FizE10) o

BE_Z_ZTHE+_A=+—HIEF
EZHERSMHEEEA257.88 88
T (CE—NE:23228EET) °

ERRFERRRAR —EBE_ZFEFER
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32 LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 32

During the year ended 31 December 2020, lease liabilities of
HK$97.7 million (2019: Nil) were transferred to liabilities directly
associated with assets held for sale (Note 27).

33 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 33

The table below outlines where the Group’s post-employment
amounts and activity are included in the consolidated financial

*E- Ef:E (H\E)

REE “EFE+ZRA=+—8I1t
FE> 977@%%m(_f HE )
E’J%HEE\TEE%E—UMHH:.AEEE
BN &G (HE27) °

BRAEFEHE
TRELAEEFARSYBRES
REERBH R SERED -

statements.
2020 2019
—E-EHE —Z—AF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEEAT
Consolidated balance sheet obligations for: #r & B EEBBERMUT
FHEZEMFE:
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) RERATE (HI5EDb)) 29.7 27.3
Consolidated statement of profit or loss FeBEmRMmUT
charges included in operating profit for: FEGFARE G 2 -
Defined contribution plans (Note (a)) REMRETE (Fi5E@)) 65.7 75.6
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) RERMETE (HI5EDb)) 0.5 0.5
66.2 76.1
Remeasurements for: MUTEEBEZEMGE .
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) REBHTE FfsEb)) 1.2 4.6
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33 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a couple of defined contribution plans
which receive fixed contributions from group companies.
The Group's legal or constructive obligation for these plans
is limited to the contributions. The expense recognised
in the current year in relation to these contributions was
HK$65.7 million (2019: HK$75.6 million).

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates several defined benefit pension plans
for selected former and active employees of the Group's
certain subsidiaries in Germany. The plans provide benefits
in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for
life. The plans are mostly financed by the Group’s internal
resources. A part of the plans is covered by plans assets in
the form of reinsurance policies.

The Group's major plans are valued by qualified actuaries
annually using the projected unit credit method. The
amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are

AREHM R RN

33 BRIREFIEE B)

(@) HREMRREE
AEEREZERERRGTE
HBEEBEABWEERB MR A&
EEMRZEABNZEZTCRET
EFURTRAR - AEERZSE
HREESR 2 X 56578 BB 7T
(ZE—NE :75.6BEBHBTT) °

(b) FREREFIFE
FEERAERERERNETF
NENEEEREREEESE
FETRERIBMKTE -ZF
stEIRREKTIR A BN E
SEPTRBRIRERA - ZE T8
ARBOHAERRNEEREE -
M E st 8IE D HUBRERE
AR5t BB ERAE

FERZETEHBEGERTER
5 5 Bl 5 A TR HA BB I s BRVA (i
B-RGEEEERRRAEREZ

determined as follows: SEENERUTARERE :
2020 2019
—E_EHE “E—hEF
HKS$M HK$M
BEAT BEBTT
Present value of funded obligations BA@EMEENIEE 16.6 14.3
Present value of unfunded obligations EEBEERIRE 20.3 19.2
Fair value of plan assets HEIEEMATEE (7.2) (6.2)

Liabilities in the consolidated balance 4FEEEEBERNE

sheet 29.7 27 .3
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SRS HBERRMNE
33 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 33 RIARwFIEE (@)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) REBFIEE (B

PR B B R E R 5B
HEHATESBUT -

The movement in the present values of defined benefit
obligations and fair value of plan assets over the year is as

follows:

2020
ZZZEE
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
obligations assets Total
RERF HEEE
BREMRE MATE it
HK$M HK$M HK$M
HEAT BEAT BEAT
At 1 January K—B—H 33.5 (6.2) 273
Current service cost EHRRBEME 0.5 - 0.5
Interest expense FIERX 0.2 - 0.2
Interest income FIEWA - (0.1) (0.1)
34.2 (6.3) 27.9
Remeasurements: BitE !
Effects from change in financial ~ BI#$RREHHT L
assumptions 1.2 - 1.2
Effect from change in AOBRRESHNEE
demographic assumptions 0.1 - 0.1
Return on plan assets, excluding ~ SFE/EENEHK T EHE
amounts included in interest AR SMANEEE
income - (0.1) (0.1)
13 (0.1) 1.2
Currency translation EREHE
differences 2.6 (0.5) 2.1
Contributions (B8
~ Employers —BF* (0.3) - (0.3)
Payments from plans: BE e
~ Benefit payments — @A (0.9) (0.3) (1.2)
As at 31 December R+ZA=+-AH 36.9 (7.2) 29.7

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED
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AR ERIRR ML
33 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 33 RAEFIEE @
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) REBFIEE (B
2019
“Z-NEF
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
obligations assets Total
RERA HEBE
BANKRE MAFE At
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAET BEHET BEAT
At 1 January W—B—H 29.1 (5.7) 234
Current service cost SHRRBEE 0.5 - 0.5
Interest expense FEMZ 0.5 - 05
Interest income FI WA - (0.2) 0.2)
30.1 (5.9) 24.2
Remeasurements: BiEE
Effects from change in financial BB RBREFNTE
assumptions 43 - 43
Effect from other experienced HthiZ R EEHNRENTE
based adjustments 04 - 0.4
Return on plan assets, excluding ~ stEIBEMCR > £ BIE
amounts included in interest FAFEMANEEE
income - (0.1) (0.1)
4.7 (0.1) 4.6
Currency translation EREHE
differences .1 0.1 -
Contributions s
- Employers —EF - (0.3) (0.3)
Payments from plans: SRS
- Benefit payments — B (1.2) = (12)
As at 31 December ®+=ZA=+—-H 335 (6.2) 273
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33 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 33 BRIAEFEE (&)
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) REBFIE (@)

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows: PN EEREREZAOT -
2020 2019
—E_E —NE
HK$M HK$M
BEEAT BEEAT
Discount rate ARIR =R 0.38% 0.65%
Future pension increase rate AEBAREIEINEE 1% - 2% 1% - 2%
Future salary increase rate FRERMEFLLE 0% - 3% 0% - 3%

RERHFEHMETEZRRE
B HBRENT

The sensitivity of the defined benefit plans to changes in
the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit liabilities

HATEHNERNRE
2020 2019
k- k- 53 —NF

Change in Increase in Decrease in  Changein  Increase in  Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption assumption  assumption  assumption
R&E2s BREM  BERY  BRE B&Em  R®EED
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BERAT HBHEAR BEEnT BEER
Discount rate BRIR X 0.50% decrease increase 0.50% decrease increase
by 2.3 by 2.5 by 2.1 by 2.3
2.3 18ma2.5 A2 1#m2.3
Pension increase rate  RIKEIEMELE 0.25% increase  decrease 0.25% increase decrease
by 1.1 by 1.1 by 1.0 by 1.0
1#1n1.1 1 12101.0 A0

SR E DT UL — 8RR
“%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%&%%?ﬁ
HERBE LW:T

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of

the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the 4 BETRENED _E_E
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to significant A o aJr%%;E%EE%'JfEﬁ%k
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value BERRZHRER  EEAH

EGRaBEERRRAERIZER
REEERRZ T E BNATER

of the defined benefit obligations calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting

period) has been applied as when calculating the pension
liabilities recognised within the consolidated balance sheet.
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AR ERIRR ML
34 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 3 B -EEKRHEHMEMTIE
2020 2019
—ETEHE —T—NEF
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEAT
Trade payables (Note (i) B EARIE (IEE)) 1,377.2 639.3
Contract liabilities (Note (ii)) BHEME () 18.1 40.0
Other taxes payable HihfELHRIE 49.0 67.5
Accrued salaries and employee benefits et & REE RN 125.9 143.5
Provision for claims and contingencies RERNAEIEERE 12.1 17.7
Accrued professional expenses FESTEE RS 20.6 22.6
Asset retirement obligations BERESE 79.7 72.8
Other payables and accruals HihfEI B R ESTE R 109.5 160.1
1,792.1 1,163.5
Less: non-current portion B IEmEE D

Asset retirement obligations BEREER (79.7) (72.8)
Other payables HhrE=IE (22.9) (23.8)
1,689.5 1,066.9

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2020, the balance includes payables of HK$332.6 million
which were subject to reverse factoring arrangement.

Bk -
(i) RIZZZE+HA=+—H #&HeiE

SR ARERFEMNENTRIE332.68
BT

EERFEEEARAE
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34 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 3 B5 EERHEHMEMRIAE
(continued) =)
Notes: (continued) FizE © (48)
(ii) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (ii) MENBERDHW G

TRIATNRARSHENEDOEEES

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current

reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. HE BB
2020 2019
—EIEE —Z—hE
HK$SM HK$M
BRAT BEHET
Revenue recognised that was included in the BEAFVEHNEEREGRAN
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of B
the year 40.0 25.4

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date BERMNRERBEZHHZRED

was as follows: M
2020 2019
—EZZ —E—nF
HK$M HK$M
BEATT BEET
0 — 90 days 0&E90H 1,351.7 601.3
91 — 180 days 91Z2180H 4.9 12.5
Over 180 days iBiE180H 20.6 25.5
1,377.2 639.3

B ZEREKRHEMEMNREBEZREE
BHEATEEE

The carrying amounts of the trade, bills and other payables
approximate their fair values.

REBEEZEZEF+ZA=+—H1t
FEES1.0BEBT (CE—NE 8
NE SR HEMEMHRIBE S EFESY
EEERBNER (H:F27)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, trade and other
payables of HK$51.0 million (2019: Nil) were transferred to
liabilities associated with assets held for sale (Note 27).
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35 HfERSIDZERMTA
Assets at
fair value
Assets at through the
Assets at fair value other
amortisation through  comprehensive
cost profit or loss income Total
BATEHA
REHERE  BATEHA Hit2E
SIRZEE BaZEE KEzEE L
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BRAET BEAT BEET BEAT
31 December 2020 ZBCEE+ZA=+-AH
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet ~ HEBEEBEBRIEE
Trade, bills and other receivables B5 EBREAM
excluding non-financial assets A R ELE
FEREE 1,406.9 - - 1,406.9
Amounts due from related parties FE W R A 0B 129.3 - - 129.3
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA - 14.3 - 14.3
Pledged bank deposits BRFBRTEN 122.7 - - 1227
Cash and cash equivalents RekFELFEER 913.8 - - 913.8
Financial assets at fair value through BATESABRZ EHERE
profit or loss - 0.9 - 0.9
Financial assets at fair value through BRTESARMZE
other comprehensive income WGz eHEE - - 104.6 104.6
Total a5 2,572.7 15.2 104.6 2,692.5

EERFEEEARAE
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NTS BY CATEGORY 35

RENEINZERMTIA (B

iy
or loss
Illiul .

Assets at
fair value
Assets at through the
Assets at fair value other
amortisation through ~ comprehensive
cost profit or loss income Total
BATEA
REBHEME  BRATERA Hit2E
SRz EE BazERE WmzEE a5t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET BEET BEET
—E-nE+ZA=+—H
r Co solidated balance sheet ~ SABEBEREE
and other receivables B5 ERREMEKRE
ng non-financial assets TREFERMEE 1,086.5 - - 1,086.5
i estment EEEREE 88.4 - - 88.4
 from related parties FEUS B 75 0B 479 - - 47.9
andial instruments fTEEMTIA - 25.0 - 25.0
ar ' deposits BERRTER 1917 - - 1917
@ Heq'uivalents ReRREEEER 784.8 - - 784.8
fair value through BATESABRZ EHERE
' - 19 - 19
I assets at fair value through BATESAHEMEE
hensive income hEnZ EREE - - 98.7 9.7
st 26.9 98.7 2,324.9
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

35 BERNBSZEMIA (B

Other Liabilities
financial at fair value
liabilities at through
amortised profit or
cost loss Total
PR 84 Pl A
FERZ Hfth HAFMEFA
ERaRE BEzafE it
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET BEATT
31 December 2020 —E-ZH+”-HB=+—H
Liabilities as per consolidated #EaEEEERZ AR
balance sheet
Borrowings R 2,298.4 - 2,298.4
Lease liabilities HEaE 544.5 - 544.5
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ /TR - 59.7 59.7
Trade, bills and other payables, &5« 245 & Hth
excluding non-financial FE(IFRIE > REIE
liabilities FEREE 2,833.0 - 2,833.0
Amounts due to related parties  F&E{J BB 75 =18 63.4 - 63.4
Total 4B 5,739.3 59.7 5,799.0
31 December 2019 —Z—hE+”-A=+—H
Liabilities as per consolidated 4EEEEERZER
balance sheet
Borrowings =R 2,795.4 = 2,795.4
Lease liabilities HEAaE 761.1 = 761.1
Derivative financial instruments #T4£ £/ TE - 30.2 30.2
Trade, bills and other payables, &5 Z4 Kk Hh
excluding non-financial FE(IT IR NEIE
liabilities FFERIEE 828.3 - 828.3
Amounts due to related parties FE{J B HE 75 =B 37.5 = 37.5
Total 4Bt 4,422 .3 30.2 4,452.5
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;i secure certain borrowings and general
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36

BERR

R|ERR *EEBERUATEE
DERETFAEBRZ ETERR—K

RITEE :

W BERBE
EEREE
UL

35
5 fE s

or sale BEEHEBE

nk deposits BIEImIRITIER

7

2019
—E-NEF
HK$M
BEETT

1,905.0
288.2
9.1
711.7
701.7

191.7

3,807.4
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37 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

AREHM R RN

37 KiE
(a) BAEE

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, significant capital
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is as

RSB ER TS
B=+—H BiIWNEREEZ

follows: BEABAEZUF :
2020 2019
=% “—T—NEF
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEAT
Capital expenditure contracted for Bl AEXRNGEMBEHREKT
but not provided in the BENBERRS
consolidated financial statements
in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plantand ~ —UREYE  BE KRR E
equipment 14.7 118.8
— additions in construction in —HREEEIR
progress 1.8 2.2
— investment in joint ventures —REBhEZRE - 7.9
16.5 128.9
Authorised but not contracted for: EEEEHERTN
— additions of property, —REME BEKREE
plant and equipment 2.1 =
— additions in construction in —HREEEIRE
progress 0.6 2.0
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 commitments — as lessor (b) KREHERE—(EHEBA

RIER AT RS EHE Z AR R
RS MRAEENT
2019
—Z-NEF
HK$M
BHEAT
er than 1 year FRR—F 27.9
an 1 year and no later BR—FEERNERATE
han 5 years 41.4
329

an 5 years EBREF

102.2




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AREHM R RN

38 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 38 RBAMARS

The Group is controlled by USUMHK which owns 60.95% of AEBHNESBEG AEmE A

the Company's shares. The remaining 39.05% of the shares are BARRF60.95% 015 © HER39.05% %

widely held. The ultimate holding company of the Group is Loncin HHBEZFAEAFE SAEBERKE

Group Co., Ltd (incorporated in the PRC). The ultimate controlling KRrElaBREEEARARE (R

party of the Group is Mr. Tu. EMARIL) o AEBRARESH BRI

LEe

(a) Transactions (@ X5
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated FRER LGS I FEERFREME D
financial statements, the Group had the following BN REBRBEE_ZS-F
transactions with its related parties which mainly comprises k_E-NF+ZA=+—H1t
of joint ventures, associates, Loncin International Limited, FESHERKS (EEEES
USUMHK and their subsidiaries during the years ended 31 EhE -BMEAR BEERA
December 2020 and 2019. RABABEBRKRFNFA

8) EITUT RS

All of the transactions were carried out in the normal FIERXZHENETERBHEXEREB
course of the Group's business and on terms as agreed AR5 8 7 A i E BV RRE
between the transacting parties. They are summarised as 170 BRI
follows:
2020 2019
—EZTHE == gl
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEET
Sales of goods to BUTELHEEER
— Joint ventures —aghE 306.8 99.6
— Related parties — RS 85.9 173.3
Purchases of goods from BUTEAREER
— An associate —BrERE (20.0) (41.3)
— Joint ventures —aghE (222.7) (259.8)
— Related parties —RA A (84.5) (108.5)
Interest income from REUTE AR EWA
— Joint ventures —aEhE 0.9 1.0
— Related parties —RAMGS 0.9 0.5
Interest expense to AUATEAZAHFEREZ
— Related parties —RA A (0.7) (0.6)
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38 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 38 RABtARZ (@
(continued)
(a) Transactions (continued) (@ X% @
2020 2019
BB —E-NE
HK$M HK$M
BEAET BEBT
Sales of property, plant and BUTEAHEYME-
equipment to 5 B sk 1
— A related party —— % B A - 1.1
Other income from (Note (i)) KEUTEHNEMBA
(M 5EG))
— Joint ventures —aEhE 4.6 2.6
— Related parties —RAuG S 3.9 5.2

Administrative expenses to (Note (i) AW FNEALZATHTEREX

(B =X Gi))
— Joint ventures —5E ¥ (0.1) 0.7)
— Related parties —RAG S (2.7) (1.0)
Financial guarantee to mMU AR ERIER
— A related party (Note 43 (c)) —— R (FiEE43(0) 9.5 1.2
Notes: MIsE -
(i) Other income mainly comprised management fee income, rental (i) HtEAFZBEEEERA A
income, service income and commission income. FUA - BRI A B BB U ©
(ii) Administrative expenses mainly comprised management fee, lease (ii) THRAZFTZAEEEE BEH
expense and service fee. S RBRFSE o
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38 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 38
(continued)

(b) Key management compensation

(c)

Key management includes chairman of the Company, all
directors, chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
chief operating officer and chief investment officer. The

compensations paid or payable to key management for

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RIE RN
Rk SRR 5 (&)
b) TEEEREHH

TEEERAEEARTDERF 2
BES TR BREYBE
BEFEEEEREFEREE HLiE
HESRBMENNENEIEE

employee services are shown below: EBENFHMIIRAT
2020 2019
—ECTHE =S E
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BEEAT
Wages and salaries, including TERE BIEEEARERK
restructuring costs and other Hthsk ILEBEF]
termination benefits 35.1 271
Pension costs — defined contribution BfRk&E 2 — R E (L7t 3
plans 0.1 0.1
Other employee benefits Hitfg B1E7F] 0.3 0.7
Total “act 35.5 27.9
Year-end balances (0 FAREER
2020 2019
—ETHE —E-NF
HKS$M HK$M
BHEBT BEATT
Receivables from: FEWIA TS HIE -
— Joint ventures (Note (i)) —5E P MEEI) 100.5 33.9
— Related parties (Note (i) — B (BEEEG)) 28.8 14.0
129.3 47.9
Payables to: FEM AT & HRIE .
— Joint ventures (Note (ii)) —&aEhE FIEi)) (28.6) ({545))
— Related parties (Note (ii)) —REEE A (X)) (34.8) (22.0)
(63.4) (37.5)
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38 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 38 RAEtARSZ (B
(continued)
(c) Year-end balances (continued) () F#R&ER®G
Notes: Mt
(i) The receivables from joint ventures and related parties include trade (i) B &SRB A RIERE
receivables and other receivables. Trade receivables are repayable B RUGRIA R AR IE B
within 60 days, and other receivables are repayable on demand. Both SIEWRIBZAR60E AEE  ME
of them are unsecured and non-interest bearing. AR IE R B IR B REE - Z W

BREREAEIERR TR

(i) The payables to joint ventures and related parties include trade (ii) &S tERBEEHARERE
payables and other payables. Trade payables are repayable within 60 BRRANREREMELRIE &
days, and other payable are repayable on demand. Both of them are SEATRIBARC0E REE  MAE
unsecured and non-interest bearing. HFE (T FRIBRZBR B REE - Z W

BREEAEIERR TR

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39 EEEMREDT

(a) Directors’ emoluments @) i%ﬁmﬁ
The remuneration of the directors for the years ended 31 HE_ZS_ZE5R_F “jli
December 2020 and 2019 is set out below: +=A :+_ AILFEZBHH
EME AT
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
RIRAER
Year ended 31 December 2020 e HeEREW RRTA BE Hitvig st
BE_Z-ZFE+-A=+-HLEE HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BREAT BEAT BEAT BRAT BEAT BEAT
Executive directors: HWTEE:
Mr. Tu Jianhua RRERE - 4.0 28 - - 6.8
Mr. Qin Yongming (Note (i) RXEBEE (15) - 8.6 0.1 - 0.2 8.9
Mr. Chen Chunguo (Note (i) BEERE (ki) - 03 - - - 03
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Note (i)) ~ Rafael Heinrich Suchan?t 4
(Rizk (i) - 5.8 3.0 - - 8.8
Mr. Martin Simon (Note (iv)) Martin Simon%t &
(MizE(iv) - 19 0.6 - - 25
Mr. Ding Zhiyi (Note (i) TH&EEE (ki) - - - - - -
Mr. Miao Yu (Note (v)) BREE (V) = = = o - =
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Dr. Loke Yu BsMiELT 03 - - - - 0.3
Ms. Qian Liping (Note (vi) BEFLT (fizw) 03 - - - - 0.3
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (Note (vi)) Shrakd (Hskvi) 0.2 - - - - 02
Mr. Zhu HongChao (Note (vii)) REBEE (i 5Evii) 0.1 = = = = 0.1
Ms. Yang Yali (Note (x) ML L (i) - - - - - -
Mr. Wang Qiwei (Note (x)) FEAERE () - - = = - -
0.9 20.6 6.5 - 0.2 28.2
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39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39 EXREARER B)
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) E=E#ME @)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
BIRER
Year ended 31 December 2019 e HehEk RREAL BEIE HitiE a5t
HEZT-NE+-A=1+—-HLEE HKSM HK$M HK§M HK$M HK$M HK§M
BEAT BEET BEAET BEAT BEET BEAT
Executive directors: BITEE:
Mr. Tu Jianhua RRERE - 26 35 - - 6.1
Mr. Qin Yongming (Note (i) ZKBELE (30) = 5.2 40 = 0.7 99
Mr. Wong Wun Lam (Note (ix)) ERRALE (X)) = 30 = = - 3.0
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Dr. Loke Yu BEMiELT 03 = - - = 03
Ms. Qian Liping (Note (vi) EEEL T (fEV) 03 = = - - 03
Mr. Zhu HongChao (Note (vii)) FARBEE (i) 03 = - - - 03
09 108 75 - 07 199
Notes: B EE
(i) Mr. Qin Yongming was also the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") of (i) ROKBAEENRB AT TEER

(M7 EAR %)) > BN EXFriRE
2 Bl <& 645 T 1 3 E 4T BUAR B PR
RERB M T2 RAEE
ERZZ-TFE=H—HEB#HE
THARBNEETEATRNITE
FoREEBRIZE_ZTE+_A
+ARERERATSRITES

the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the CEO. Mr. Qin resigned as the CEO on
1 March 2020 but remained as an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Qin resigned as an executive director of the Company on 16
December 2020.

Rafael Heinrich Suchanfg4£R =%
CZFE=ZA—BEZEALQAT

(ii) Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan was appointed as an executive director (if)
and the CEO of the Company on 1 March 2020 and his emoluments

(iii)

disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the
CEO.

Mr. Chen Chunguo and Mr. Ding Zhiyi were appointed as executive
directors of the Company on 16 December 2020 and 29 December
2020, respectively. They resigned as the executive directors of the
Company on 3 March 2021 and 5 March 2021, respectively.

HaRFEERRAS

(iii)

HHTESERTBBH RN EX
PR 45 8 22 B < B0 95 WA 1 3B (R T BX
AR PR (R AR TS T 52 (S 2 B < 1F o

BREELERT SEHAEED R
= Ay =
EE+AZ+ABEZES
FRABHITES - REDFHNR_-F
——F=ZA=ZHR-EB_—f=
BAEAREARBTRNTES

—zozagR 271



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HRR N

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39 EXREMRER @)
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@) EEHfE @
Notes: (continued) Mz @ (@)

(iv)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Mr. Martin Simon was appointed as an executive director and the
Chief Financial Officer (“CFO") of the Company on 23 June 2020.
He also acts as the CFO of one of the major operation groups of the
Group. His emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the CFOs.

Mr. Miao was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
29 December 2020.

Ms. Qian Liping resigned as an independent non-executive director of
the Company on 29 December 2020.

Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 19 February 2020 and resigned
on 29 December 2020. He was re-appointed as an independent
executive director of the Company on 5 March 2021.

Mr. Zhu HongChao resigned as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 19 February 2020.

Mr. Wong Wun Lam was also the CFO of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as the CFO. Mr. Wong resigned as an executive director and the
CFO of the Company on 20 December 2019.

Ms. Yang Yali and Mr. Wang Qiwei were appointed as the
independent non-executive directors of the Company on 29
December 2020. They resigned as the independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 5 March 2021.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during both years.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(i)

Martin SimonftER = -ZF
RNREZ+=HEZTAEXRAN
TEEREEVHE (BEUH
Bl WAL ERFEESES
B2 —MNERUHE W XA
WEZNEOERBERETERY
BEAMRERBMZ A ZME -

BHRAER_Z 25+~
Z+NBEZEARATDRNTE
Ho

HESYITR _Z-ZE+_F
Z+HhHEREARABBEILIENR
TES-

BHBAEER_ZE_ZE_A8
+NBEERERAIRSEILIERN
TEFUIN 2224+ A8
Zt+hBEERE-BRR_ZZ—F
ZERBEENEEALRREE
UFEHITES

AHEBEENR_BE_TE_A1
+HBEBEEARATBILIENT
EREK

BMBREENARATRTES
FRERVMBEERER EXFEE
ZHEeBERRETEREMER
FriEEREME MBS - BEE
RIBE—-HhE+-A-_+HE#
ARABDPTESRERUBE -

MM ERETHELEER R
“EE+”_B+NHEZER
AABBIUFATEZ - RFER
R -—F=-AEHREEAR
BIJFRITES-

RWEFE AEEEREERNE
EXRBRSHATZAMEE
WS MA LRI A A B BB
RE S ERREABE HEEEN
B F ER RN E -
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39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
made contributions to the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Qin Yongming, Mr.
Rafael Heinrich Suchan and Mr. Wong Wun Lam in the
amount of HK$18,000, HK$18,000, HK$15,000 and
Nil, respectively (2019: HK$18,000, HK$18,000, Nil and
HK$18,000, respectively).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such directors

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and controlled
entities with such directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the financial year
(2019: Nil).

AREHM RN

39 EFEREFKMiED (B

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

EERFEEEARAE

HHEENREN
REE_Z_TFE+"_F=+—
BIEEE XABDNAERE
ESAE R KB E Rafael
Heinrich Suchanfc4 =M FR
EREBREIMEABSEEL
{#7%18,0007% 7t ~ 18,0008 7t
15,0008 T RE (CE—NE . 2
31 %18,0007 7T ~ 18,0007 7t
F1%18,00057T) ©

RHEERETMAE=R
i
KHE-S-SF+=F=+—
AL » AR LIRS
EEBMAENE=H2IRE
(CB—NE W o

FREREE HERESE
FNERARREERESH
FEIEFINERNER EUE
MR EMR ZHEE
RIEZEFRZZE—NEFE+Z
B=+—H" Mmu§$ z=E=]
FEEEFNER AR REARR
EEZHAEFNERAS S
HNEF BLUEREEMR S Z
BEo

EENRH EHAEHNFZ
EAtED

KARIEET AL REREZE
BEEMARBEERNETHES
BA#D TwmBEZEHEE 8
PR B E R E AR
BXEARZ ZHREH (&
T—NF ) o

—E_EGFR
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40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40 KEFRFIRE
Reconciliation from loss before income tax to cash generated PRPTSMAI G IR EKEMEREHR:
from operations:
2020 2019
—TER —Z—NEF
HKS$M HK$M
BEEAT BEEAT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBMBIRERE
Loss before income tax FRETISIRATE 18 (809.8) (99.5)
Adjustments for: AT EIERE
Finance costs (Note 10) MR ([5E10) 243.5 236.2
Finance income (Note 10) MEBUA (I5E10) (11.0) (23.6)
Dividend income (Note 6) B2 U A (FiEE6) (2.5) (4.8)
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 8) ITEE Rk aE (BP3E8) 450.8 4225
Fair value loss on derivative MESMIBZAFE
financial instruments, net (Note 7) 18958 (WEE7) 68.1 2.1
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets BRAFEEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss THMEEATERBER
(Note 7) (Wezm) (B5E7) 25 (1.7)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BEREEUR
equipment and right-of-use assets BRAREE WA (
(Note 7) MIEE7) (23.9) (33.3)
Net reversal of impairment TR AR E R DFEE
on financial assets (7.4) (39.4)
Provision/(Reversal of provision) for EFERE S BEERL)
inventories, net (Note 8) FEE (MI5E8) 18.5 (1.9)
Provision for impairment on property, ME- -BEREEZ
plant, and equipment (Note 7) BERE (WsE7) 150.0 0.9
Provision for impairment on right-of-use FREEENERE
assets (Note 7) (MF5E7) 72.8 -
Impairment on intangible assets (Note 7) mLBEEZRE (M:E7) 205.1 -
Impairment on assets held for sale (Note 7) FFEHEEERE (i5E7) 91.3 -
Loss on disposal and deregistration of HERFHEF AR
subsidiaries or joint ventures (Note 7) S PECEIE (:E7) 4.5 13.7
Share of post-tax loss of an associate FEIL S AR BRI B R 0.1 0.3
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures B & E R ERRE T (66.9) (47.6)
Non-cash post-employment FRFEELRRBE
benefit expenses Az (0.9) (0.6)
Net foreign exchange losses SMEE RS 1R P KB (19.3) (20.9)
366.0 402.4
Changes in working capital SEETED
Decrease in inventories FERD 344.8 580.3
(Increase)/Decrease in trade, bills and B ZEEREMEK
other receivables RIE (Em) R (424.7) 508.5
Change in derivative financial instruments T4 &/l T 2 & &) (27.0) 23.8
Increase/(Decrease) in trade, bills and B5 EEKRHEM
other payables FE(TRRIBE A0, GRiZL) 694.6 (711.4)
953.7 803.6
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AR ERIRR ML
40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40 RERFRE @
(continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from RixaReERE2x HEYE BEM
disposal of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets REUREAEEEZPIEMIEEE !
comprise:
2020 2019
—EZF “—2—NEF
HKS$M HK$M
BEBT BEET
Net book amount of property, plant and ME-BEREEBEZ
equipment (Note 14) IRECRE (isx14) 97.6 220.1
Net book amount of right-of-use assets FRAREEZREFE
(Note 15) (M45E15) 81.2 14.5
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME -BERZHEUK
equipment and right-of-use assets (Note 7) {FAEEE W (M15E7) 23.4 33.3
Proceeds receivable F’guﬁlﬁﬂ%?’ﬂ (17.3) =
Reduction in lease liabilities Ea@mb (7.0 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERREUAR
plant and equipment and right-of-use FREEEZFRSHIE
assets 177.9 267.9
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40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40 REMRBRE (@)
(continued)
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements

in net debt for each of the years presented.

I EBFRADT A2 EE
EEHFRE-

Liabilities from financing activities

REEDELNAM
Lease liabilities Bank Bank Other Other
due Lease liabilities borrowings Borrowing borrowings borrowings
within due due within due after due within due after
1 year after 1 year 1 year 1year 1year 1 year Total
R—ERE R—FE&E R-ERIE R-E238 R-£/1E R-FEI8
BMERAR BNAEaM BIIRITIER BISRITRRR BEMER BRI R @t
Net debt as at 1 January 2019 RZZ—-h—B—AMEERE 1652 407.4 971.5 388.7 250.5 1,738.1 39214
Proceeds/additions Fr8TB,/ HE 145.7 246.8 697.0 343 53.1 - 1,176.9
Repayments HETE (147.1) (51.6) (1,186.0) (101.0) - - (1,485.7)
Other non-cash movement HitER£28 30.2 (29.6) 84.1 (85.7) 1,739.8 (1,738.1) 0.7
Currency translation differences ERER 23) (3.6) (19.3) 9.9 (21.7) - (56.8)
Net debt as at 31 December 2019 RIB—RE
tTZA=+—-BNEKFE 191.7 569.4 547.3 2264 2,021.7 - 3,556.5
Proceeds/additions Fiigaa/ HE 386 55.4 416.0 121.6 - - 631.6
Reversals #o) 2.9 (%)) - - - - (7.0
Repayments EESE (180.8) (61.5) (379.7) (173.2) (488.1) - (1,2833)
Reclassification to liabilities directly BMNBEARFHESE
associated with assets held for sale BEEAENERE (11.7) (86.0) 0.7) (7.8) - - (106.2)
Other non-cash movement HittFREEE) 155.5 (151.0) (15.3) - (28) - (13.6)
Currency translation differences ERER 11.8 20.1 372 1.3 (15.5) - 64.9
Net debt as at 31 December 2020 R-B-2%
+ZA=+-BNEKEE 202.2 3423 604.8 178.3 1,5153 - 2,842.9
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] =
AR ERIRR ML
41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 41 EESGERKHEHEES
Balance sheet of the Company TRATZEEARR
2020 2019
Note HK$M HK$M
Mok BHEBT BEET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets JERENE E
Investment in subsidiaries, unlisted R F AT Z & E > JE LT 3,500.4 3,500.4
Investment in a joint venture, ReEhEREFFLEM
unlisted 4.1 4.1
Right-of-use assets BRAREEE 19.2 29.5
Other deposit Hihizs 2.7 2.7
Loan receivables from a subsidiary FEURF AT E - 89.1
3,526.4 3,625.8
Current assets RENBE
Other receivables Huh U IE 13.1 95.0
Amounts due from subsidiaries EUWF A B IE 2,155.6 2,335.1
Amount due from a related party  F& U B8 Bt 75 2018 1.7 1.3
Loan receivables from FEWFABIEM
a subsidiary 89.1 -
Cash and cash equivalents RecREEEEE 0.8 36.1
2,260.3 2,467.5
Total assets BEHE 5,786.7 6,093.3
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES k&R
Equity attributable to AT REEE D
shareholders of the company
Share capital &N 27 16.1 16.1
Reserves [ 3,612.8 3,785.0
Total equity arEn 3,628.9 3,801.1
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ARSI RS ML
41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 41 BE&SGBRKHEES @&
(continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TATIZEERER @)
2020 2019
ZEEE —E-nF
Note HK$M HK$M
Iz BEATT BEET
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 8.8 18.1
Other payables HhpERIa 3.0 3.0
11.8 211
Current liabilities B =R
Accruals and other payables FEst &R A EMENRIE 21.6 17.2
Amounts due to subsidiaries B FRBEIE 606.4 523.5
Lease liabilities HEa’d 9.3 8.6
Other borrowings HAEmR 1,508.7 1,721.8
2,146.0 2,271.1
Total liabilities meE 2,157.8 2,292.2
Total equity and liabilities METRER 5,786.7 6,093.3
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of KREIZEEBERCEEEENZ
Directors on 31 March 2021 and was signed on its behalf: T —F=—H=+—HBH#ELHUT
BEEAREE
Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan
REERE Rafael Heinrich Suchanst4
Director Director
E BE
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41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 41
(continued)

Reserves movement of the Company

Capital .
Share  redemption Capital
premium reserve reserve

B
B EE Ol NG
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEATT BEAT
(Note (i)

(Y EEG))

At 1 January 2019 RIZ—A%F
—B—H 59119 0.3
Loss for the year FERE - _

Total comprehensive loss FREHEEBEHE
for the year = =

At 31 December 2019 RIZE—hE
+-A=+—H 5,911.9 0.3
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41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 41 BE&SEXREFHEES @
(continued)
Reserves movement of the Company (continued) TATZHEEES @
Capital
Share redemption Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
=
R i 1E Bl BAf#E Rtk st
HK$M HK$SM HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEET BEHBT BEET BEHET
(Note (i)
(P =E())
At 1 January 2020 RoE-EH&
—RB—H 5,911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,343.4) 3,785.0
Loss for the year FREE - - - (172.2) (172.2)
Total comprehensive loss ERREEIBGE
for the year - - - (172.2) (172.2)
At 31 December 2020 ATE-FE
+—-B=+—H 5,911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,515.6) 3,612.8
Note: BEEE
(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal (i) ERAEBIRQARINEENFERE

value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the

nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange and (b) a
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010.
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42 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42
COMPANY

(a)

General information of principal subsidiaries

The table below shows the subsidiaries as at 31 December
2020, which in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affect the revenue, net assets or business aspects of the
Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

AT ZFATFIE

(@) FEFATN—MRKER
TRIWREEIANR T _ZTHF
+ZA=1+—HHAEBUYRA
FPEEREBEFIEFEZFA
BeoBERA REMETFAT
ZHBERELERBER TR

Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
L BETRERRS FE@AAHED
FRFRHE gy /B /iR RERGZRER TEEH
2020 2019
—2-88 "B2NF
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
EaXi (B8 BRAT &8 & 157 Group and wholesales
of metal scrap without
processing
FEBFERAERSERL
MIZBE%E
Chiho Eco Protection Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
EaRBRAERAT B BB 10,0007 metal scrap and WEEE
MIRHEBLEBRER
BARETHE
Chiho Environmental (Beijing) Company ~ The PRC The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - Providing services to group
Limited** Rl FE AR #50,000,0007 companies
EARR LR BRAF! RERBTERRT
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals The PRC The PRC US$108,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Company Limited** HE HE 108,000,000% 7T metal scrap
aMBEAREEBERAR! MIRHEBLERE
Chiho Environmental (Suyang) Resources  The PRC The PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Recycling Company Limited** HE HE AE5,000,0007 metal scrap
BERRELER (1R BRAR: MIRHEBLESE
Chiho-Tiande (YanTai) Resources The PRC The PRC US$40,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Recycling Company Limited** HE FE 40,000,000% 7T metal scrap
EaXit (B8 BEERERAG MIKHEELESE
Yantai Liheng Environmental Protection ~ The PRC The PRC RMB55,150,000 60% 60%  Processing and sales of
Technology Company Limited** HE ol AEH55,150,0007 lubricating oil
ERUHRRREERAT! MIRHERRR
*  For identification purpose only * o {EAER
+  Limited liability company +  BREEAF

& All these subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company
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e HRR N

42 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42 FTATZFRAEFHE @)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principal subsidiaries (@) FEFARN—KER @)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
L BETRERRS KEBAFEL
FAT%HE T / BILE /RRE REEGREE FEEH
2020 2019
—BEE DR
Dalian New Green Recycle & Resources  The PRC The PRC JPY 8,566,011,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Corporation** el FE 8,566,011,00080 metal scrap
AENGBEEERMIERAR MIKHEBLEE
Heng Hup Chiho Recycling Malaysia Malaysia RM5,000,000 51% 51%  Processing of metal scrap
(Malaysia) SDN. BND. ERAED ERFEE 5,000,005 KAHS & NIBELSE
Hidaka-Chiho Metal Recycling Thailand Thailand Baht152,500,000 45.7% 45.7%  Processing and sales of
(Thailand) Company Limited® %E % 152,500,000% 8k metal scrap
MIRHEBLERE
Delco Europe B.V. The Netherlands The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of
i HE 18,1518 7% the Group
RERZRBEAR
Fegert Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR84,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
(el (TG 84,0008170 metal scrap
MIKHEBLEE
Scholz Industrieservice GmbH Germany Germany EUR50,000 100% 100%  Providing industrial and
Z6 26 50,0081 7 logistic services
RETERRIRE
Scholz Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR100,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
6 (e 100,000,0008% 75 metal scrap
NIRHEELER
SIV Immobilien Verwaltungs GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Purchase and administration
(el 26 25,000817 of real estate
BEREERUE
Scholz Management Service GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Providing services to
Z6 = 25,0007t group companies

RERHEFEALT

*  For identification purpose only * o {ERER

+ Limited liability company +  BREAAF

#  The Group controls the board of directors o rEERNERE

4 All these subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company b ARSTAIYRAATRERE
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AREHM R RN

& All these subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company

4

HaRFEERRAS

42 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 42 FTATZFRAEFIE (@B)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principal subsidiaries (a) FEFATN—MREN @)
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
eI BETRERRS RE@AAHELD
FRERHE -3k /B /RMRE BAREREER TEEH
2020 2019
SBSEE _E2 G
SRW metalfloat GmbH Germany Germany EUR1,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
(el (3G 1,000,000k 7T metal scrap
MIKHEBLLE
Liberty Iron & Metal, Inc. USA USA US§3,100 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
EE Ee 3,100%7 metal scrap
MIRHEBLESLE
Uniscrap A/S Denmark Denmark DKK20,003,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
BE & 20,003,000/ %52 5 metal scrap
MIRHEELER
Uniscrap Sverige AB Sweden Sweden SEK100,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
i} il 100,0005% #5258 metal scrap
MIKHEBLLE
Scholz Polska Sp. z.0.0. Poland Poland PLN88,501,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
it RE 88,501,00044 12 metal scrap
MIRHEBLESE
Scholz Austria Holding Gmbh Republic of Austria Republic of Austria EUR35,000 100% 100%  Holding company
BRI A BRI A 35,0007 7 ERAE
Kovosrot Group CZ s.r.o. Czech Republic Czech Republic (ZK499,834,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
EREME ERAAE 499,834,000%8 72 52 & metal scrap
NIRHEELER
Sberne suroviny, a.s. Czech Republic Czech Republic CZK61,217,000 79.6% 79.6%  Processing and sales of
ERENE EREME 61,217,000 %525 metal scrap
MIRHEBLLE
DINOS d.d. Republic of Slovenia Republic of Slovenia  EUR2,279,700 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
AN EBEANE HANERENE  2,279,700807 metal scrap
MIRHEBESE

FEZEFARHAARRENE
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e HRR N

42 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(b) Significant restrictions

(c)

Cash and short-term deposits held in the PRC are subject
to local exchange control regulations. These regulations
provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC,
other than through normal dividend.

The carrying amount of the assets included within the
consolidated balance sheet to which these restrictions apply
is HK$389.1 million (2019: HK$396.7 million).

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interest

The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned
subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group.

43 CONTINGENCIES

(a)

The Company is one of the defendants to a legal claim
by Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”) regarding an alleged
non-payment of a portion of the loans advanced by Delco
Asia Company Limited (“Delco Asia”) to subsidiaries of the
Company, amounting to approximately HK$57.8 million
together with interest and costs. Delco alleged that it
acquired the assets and liabilities of Delco Asia in 2011.
Delco Asia was dissolved by deregistration in 2012. Each of
Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) and HWH Holdings Limited
("HWH") undertook to the Company to indemnify and hold
the Company harmless on demand against all losses arising
out of, inter alia, this claim in accordance with the terms of
a letter of indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour
of the Company on 17 December 2015 (the “Indemnity”).
Such indemnity was previously secured by a sum, including
the amount of HK$57.8 million in an escrow account set up
by HWH, and is now subject to a Mareva injunction granted
by the Court on 30 October 2019 until the determination
of, inter alia, HCA3040/2015 or further order of the Court.
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43 TIAEHIA

(a)
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Asia Company Limited (M'Delco
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(a)

(0

(continued)

The court case is still in progress, with the parties filing
amended pleadings and evidence, and preparing for trial.
The directors of the Company, after taking legal advice
from its legal advisers and in review of the Indemnity
and the Escrow Account, are of the opinion that it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle this claim. Accordingly, no
provision for this claim has been made.

The Company and Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, are two of the
defendants to another legal claim by Delco regarding an
alleged breach of a letter of undertaking in relation to a
convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed for
by Delco. Delco further claimed against CTHK for a sum of
US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK.
Delco further claimed interests, costs and further or other
relief of approximately HK$6.3 million.

The court case is still in progress, with the parties filing
amended pleadings and evidence, and preparing for trial.
The directors of the Company, after taking legal advice
from its legal advisers, are of the opinion that it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle this claim. Accordingly, no
provision for this claim has been made.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has provided financial
guarantees to a related party and certain joint ventures
of HK$9.5 million (2019: HK$1.2 million) and HK$38.0
million (2019: HK$35.3 million), respectively. As the risk of
default is very remote and there is no history of default, no
financial guarantee liability was recognised.

AREHM R RN
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5-Year Financial Summary

BEFMBHE

Summary of selected items of consolidated statement of
profit and loss

RERERECHBEME

For the year ended 31 December

BET-AZt-ALEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEITE Z2NF ZE-N\F IEZ—tE ZT—RE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
OeAT ©BEEx HEAT BEBrT  B2En
Revenue Wz 13,368.1 15,363.4 20,912.8 18,491.0 3,211.4
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRETISIRAD (§598) /E A (809.8) (99.5) 469.4 546.2 (443.6)
Income tax (expense)/credit st (%) /1% (54.4) (34.3) (70.4) (110.6) 04
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: LT HES (B18) /&7
Shareholders of the Company NG (848.1) (128.7) 401.2 426.8 (439.9)
Non-controlling interests JEIER R (16.1) (5.1) 2.2) 8.8 (3.3)
(864.2) (133.8) 399.0 435.6 (443.2)
Summary of selected items of consolidated balance sheet “EEERRRETHEHNE
As at 31 December
R+ZA=1+—8H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEIRFE “THEFE ZE-N\E ZZT+tH E-REF
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT HEBT B8%8r ©EAET  BEBER
Assets BE
Current assets RBEE 4,510.1 4,039.4 5,329.5 6,022.2 6,602.3
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,362.8 6,150.6 6,058.0 6,071.5 5,183.4
Total assets BEME 9,872.9 10,190.0 11,387.5 12,093.7 11,785.7
Liabilities &R
Current liabilities nREaE 4,392.0 3,996.5 3,298.0 5,365.2 5,032.9
Non-current liabilities E| =R 1,016.7 1,262.5 2,943.6 1,681.4 2,668.4
Total liabilities aEEE 5,408.7 5,259.0 6,241.6 7,046.6 7,701.3
4,464.2 4,931.0 5,145.9 5,047.1 4,084.4
Equity attributable to: MU & A LA |
Shareholders of the Company KATIIRER 4,477.6 49413 5,175.3 5,073.1 41172
Non-controlling interests RS (13.4) (10.3) (29.4) (26.0) (32.8)
4,464.2 4,931.0 5,145.9 5,047.1 4,084.4
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Chen Chunguo (Chairman)
(appointed on 16 December 2020
and resigned on 3 March 2021)

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
(resigned on 16 December 2020)

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 1 March 2020)

Mr. Martin Simon (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 23 June 2020)

Mr. Ding Zhiyi
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)

Mr. Miao Yu
(appointed on 29 December 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Loke Yu
Ms. Yang Yali
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Wang Qiwei
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)
Ms. Qian Liping
(resigned on 29 December 2020)
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed on 19 February 2020 and
resigned on 29 December 2020;
re-appointed on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned on 19 February 2020)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Chen Chunguo (Chairman)
(appointed on 16 December 2020
and resigned on 3 March 2021)

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
(resigned on 16 December 2020)

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 1 March 2020)

Mr. Martin Simon (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 23 June 2020)

Mr. Ding Zhiyi
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)

Mr. Miao Yu
(appointed on 29 December 2020)
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RE]EH

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman)
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed on 19 February 2020 and
resigned on 29 December 2020,
re-appointed on 5 March 2021)
Ms. Yang Yali
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Wang Qiwei
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)
Ms. Qian Liping
(resigned on 29 December 2020)
Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned on 19 February 2020)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Chunguo (Chairman)
(appointed on 16 December 2020
and resigned on 3 March 2021)

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
(resigned on 16 December 2020)

Dr. Loke Yu

Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed on 19 February 2020 and
resigned on 29 December 2020;
re-appointed on 5 March 2021)

Ms. Yang Yali
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Qiwei
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)

Ms. Qian Liping
(resigned on 29 December 2020)

Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned on 19 February 2020)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Yang Yali (Chairman)
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)

Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (Chairman)
(appointed on 19 February 2020 and
resigned on 29 December 2020,
re-appointed on 5 March 2021)

Dr. Loke Yu

Mr. Wang Qiwei
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)

Ms. Qian Liping
(resigned on 29 December 2020)

Mr. Zhu Hongchao
(resigned on 19 February 2020)
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Tu Jianhua
Mr. Chen Chunguo (Chairman)
(appointed on 16 December 2020
and resigned on 3 March 2021)
Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
(resigned on 16 December 2020)
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(appointed on 1 March 2020)
Mr. Martin Simon
(appointed on 23 June 2020)
Mr. Ding Zhiyi
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Miao Yu
(appointed on 29 December 2020)
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew
(appointed on 5 March 2021)
Mr. Goh Kian Guan

PRICING COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Chunguo (Chairman)
(appointed on 16 December 2020
and resigned on 3 March 2021)

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
(resigned on 16 December 2020)

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(appointed on 1 March 2020)

Mr. Martin Simon
(appointed on 23 June 2020)

Mr. Ding Zhiyi
(appointed on 29 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)

Mr. Miao Yu
(appointed on 29 December 2020)

Mr. Marc Breidenbach
(appointed on 23 June 2020)

Dr. Haehne Gerd
(appointed on 3 March 2020)

Mr. Kian Guan Goh
(appointed on 1 July 2020)

Mr. Udo Langhans

Mr. Maier Tobias
(appointed on 1 January 2021)

Mr. Zhao Wei
(resigned on 18 December 2020)
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Tu Jianhua
Ms. Lam Pui Sea
(appointed on 18 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)
Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty
(appointed on 24 July 2020 and
resigned on 18 December 2020;
re-appointed on 5 March 2021)
Ms. Yiu Yi Ting
(resigned on 24 July 2020)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Martin Simon
(appointed on 23 June 2020)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lam Pui Sea
(appointed on 18 December 2020
and resigned on 5 March 2021)
Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty
(appointed on 24 July 2020 and
resigned on 18 December 2020;
re-appointed on 5 March 2021)
Ms. Yiu Yi Ting
(resigned on 24 July 2020)

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Cayman Islands)
DLA Piper (Hong Kong)

Deacons (Hong Kong)

Dechert (Hong Kong)

LC Lawyers LLP (Hong Kong)
Ashurst (Hong Kong)

Aber-Law (Thailand)

Latham & Watkins LLP (Germany)
CMS Hasche Sigle (Germany)
Menold Bezler (Germany)
Acuminis (US)

Withers Worldwide
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

KeyBank National Association

Landesbank Baden-Wurttemberg (LBBW)

The Hongkong and Shanghai banking Corporation Limited
Targo Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

48 Wang Lok Street
Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

GROUP HEADQUARTERS

23/F., Infinitus Plaza

199 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

The PRC

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

Unit AF2, Block A, Gateway Plaza
No. 18, Xiaguangli

East 3rd Ring Road North
Chaoyang District

Beijing

The PRC

HEADQUARTERS IN EUROPE

Berndt-Ulrich-Scholz-Str. 1
73457 Essingen
Germany

HEADQUARTERS IN NORTH AND CENTRAL
AMERICA
2144 W. McDowell Road

Phoenix, AZ 85004
USA 85009

i For business addresses of other principal operational bases of the Group, please refer
to the Company’s website
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KeyBank National Association
Landesbank Baden-Wurttemberg (LBBW)
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Targo Bank
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Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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Berndt-Ulrich-Scholz-Str. 1
73457 Essingen

Germany
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2144 W. McDowell Road
Phoenix, AZ 85004
USA 85009
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